
 

 

  
 
 

 
 

 
GLADSTONE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
CIVIC CENTER COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

October 10, 2023 – 6:30 PM  
6:30 p.m. - CALL TO ORDER  
  

The City of Gladstone is abiding by guidelines set forth in House Bill 2560, which requires the governing body of the public body, to 
extent reasonably possible, to make all meetings accessible remotely through technological means and provide opportunity for 
members of general public to remotely submit oral and written testimony during meetings to extent in-person oral and written 
testimony is allowed. Therefore, this meeting will be open to the public both in person and virtually using the Zoom platform.  
 
Please click the link below to join the webinar: 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86327497813?pwd=YAnvlgMkBqcQUOmaZOExW1qy63xvxw.XQuF-EqfYfZh-OWn  
 
Passcode: 541637 
 
Or One tap mobile : 
    +17207072699,,86327497813#,,,,*541637# US (Denver);  +12532050468,,86327497813#,,,,*541637# US 
 
Or Telephone: 
    Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location): 
    +1 720 707 2699 US (Denver);  +1 253 205 0468 US 
 
Webinar ID: 863 2749 7813 
Passcode: 541637 
 
If members of the public would like to comment on an agenda item (either virtually or in person) please email your comments to 
kratz@ci.gladstone.or.us prior to 12:00 p.m. (noon) on October 10, 2023. Individuals attending in person may submit a speaker card 
to the City Recorder prior to the beginning of the meeting. Comments are limited to three (3) minutes. 
 
The City Council will also have Gladstone City Event Announcements during the meeting and Business from the Audience at the end 
of the meeting. To speak during either time, (virtually or in person) please email kratz@ci.gladstone.or.us prior to 12:00 p.m. (noon) 
on October 10, 2023 with your name, topic of discussion and city of residence. Individuals attending in person may submit a speaker 
card to the City Recorder prior to the beginning of the meeting. Comments are limited to three (3) minutes. 
 
ROLL CALL 
FLAG SALUTE 
 
AGENDA ADDITIONS OR CORRECTIONS 
 
CONSENT AGENDA: 
1. Approval of September 12, 2023 Regular Minutes  
2. Approval of August Bank Balances 
3. Budget Report for Period ending 08-30-2023 
4. Approval of August Check Register  
5. Legal Costs on Projects for July 
6. Department Head Monthly Reports for September 2023 



 

 

7. Consider approval of Resolution 1224 - Authorizing the City to submit a request for funding assistance from the 
Oregon Department of Land Conservation and Development to establish a Climate-Friendly Area and Metro 2040 
Town Center in Gladstone 

 
CORRESPONDENCE: None 
 
8. RECOGNITION – AMERICAN MEDICAL RESPONSE (AMR) NORTHWEST – Recognition for providing 

the River Safety Program at High Rocks Park for 23 years. (no attachments) 
 
9. REPORT – CLACKAMAS FIRE DISTRICT UPDATE  

 
10. PRESENTATION – METRO COUNCILOR CHRISTINE LEWIS 

 
11. PRESENTATION – RINEARSON NATURAL AREA – Evan Ocheltree and Gary Howard from Columbia 

Restoration will provide a presentation on the Rinearson Natural Area Project 
 

12. GLADSTONE CITY EVENT ANNOUNCEMENTS 
This is an opportunity for members of the audience to bring to the Council’s attention any upcoming city events otherwise not listed on the Agenda. Comments 
will be limited to three (3) minutes per person. Speakers may not yield their time to others and must fill out a speaker card available in the back of the room prior 
to making a comment. 

 
REGULAR AGENDA: 

 
13. ORDINANCE 1526 – AMENDING GLADSTONE MUNICIPAL CODE (GMC) CHAPTER 12.24 – UTILITY 

SERVICES – CONDITIONS OF UTILITY USE IN THE PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY IN GLADSTONE 
Consider approval of Ordinance 1526 – an Ordinance amending GMC Chapter 12.24 – Utility Services – to update 
and clarify the terms and conditions of utility use of the public rights-of-way in the City of Gladstone 
 

14. RESOLUTION 1228 – ADOPTING A REVISED MASTER FEE SCHEDULE AND REPEALING 
RESOLUTION 1220 – RATE CHANGES FOR RIGHT-OF-WAY FEES 
Consider approval of Resolution 1228 – a resolution revising the Master Fee Schedule and repealing Resolution 1220 
to include rate changes for Right-of-Way Fees 
 

15. RESOLUTION 1229 – FORMALIZING ALLOCATION OF REVENUE COLLECTED FOR 
IMPLEMENTATION OF RIGHT-OF-WAY USE FEE 
Consider approval of Resolution 1229 – a resolution formalizing allocation of revenue collected for implementation 
of right-of-way  
 

BUSINESS CARRIED FORWARD –  
 

BUSINESS FROM THE AUDIENCE 
Visitors: This is an opportunity for members of the audience to bring to the Council’s attention any item not otherwise listed on the Agenda. Comments will be limited 
to three (3) minutes per person. Speakers may not yield their time to others and must fill out a speaker card available in the back of the room prior to making a 
comment. 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE COUNCIL –   
 
ADJOURN 

 
Upcoming Meeting Dates: 

 October 24, 2023 – City Council Work Session at 5:30 pm. 
 November 14, 2023 – City Council Regular Meeting at 6:30 pm. 

 
MEETING ACCESSIBILITY SERVICES AND AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA) NOTICE 

The Civic Center is ADA accessible.  Hearing devices may be requested from the City Recorder at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 
Individuals requiring other assistance must make their request known 48 hours preceding the meeting by contacting the City Recorder 
at bannick@ci.gladstone.or.us. Staff will do their best to respond in a timely manner and to accommodate requests.    







1



GLADSTONE CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 12, 2023 
 
Meeting was called to order by Mayor Milch at 6:31 P.M. – (Via Zoom and In Person) 
 
ROLL CALL:                                                                                                                                                                    
Mayor Michael Milch, Councilor Alexander, Councilor Garlington, Councilor Huckaby, Councilor 
Reichle, Councilor Roberts, Councilor Cook 
 
ABSENT:                                                                                                                                                                    
None                                                                                                                             
 
STAFF:                                                                                                                                                                                
Jacque Betz, City Administrator; Tami Bannick, City Recorder; Tiffany Kirkpatrick, Community Services 
Manager;  Nancy McDonald, Human Resources Consultant;  Darren Caniparoli, Public Works Director;  
Chad Jacobs, City Attorney 
 
Mayor Milch called the meeting to order.  He explained that the City is abiding by guidelines set forth in 
House Bill 2560, which requires that they make all meetings accessible remotely, through technologic 
means and provide the opportunity for the public to participate to the best of their ability.  This meeting 
will be open to the public, both in person and virtually, using the Zoom platform.  The Council members 
and staff will be in person, as well as those citizens who wish to attend in person.  He went over the 
procedures that will be followed for the meeting and the meeting agenda.  He said that public 
announcements will be at the beginning of each meeting and public comments will still be at the end. 
 
He read some excerpts from a book, “The Place We Make:  Breaking The Legacy Of Legalized Hate” by 
Gladstone author Sarah Sanderson.   
  
AGENDA ADDITIONS OR CORRECTIONS:                                                                                                                     
None.       
 
CONSENT AGENDA:                                
1. Approval of August 8, 2023 Regular Meeting Minutes   
2. Approval of July Bank Balances 
3. Budget Report for Period ending 7-31-2023 
4. Approval of July Check Register 
5. Department Head Monthly Reports for August 2023 
6. Approval of a new OLCC Liquor License Application for The Brew LLC, 465 Portland Avenue 
7. Authorization for City Administrator to sign Amendment for Community Development Block Grant 

Program Agreement between City of Gladstone and Clackamas County Department of Health, 
Housing, and Human Services Housing and Community Development 

 
Councilor Alexander made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda.  Motion was seconded by Councilor 
Roberts.  Ms. Bannick took a roll call vote:  Councilor Garlington – yes.  Councilor Roberts – yes.   
Councilor Cook – yes.  Councilor Reichle – yes. Councilor Alexander – yes. Councilor Huckaby – yes.  
Mayor Milch – yes.  Motion passed with a unanimous vote. 
 
CORRESPONDENCE:                                                                                                                                                            
None.   
 

8. REPORT FROM CLACKAMAS FIRE DISTRICT:                                                                                                        

1 - 1



Fire Marshal Shawn Olson said that next month is Fire Prevention Month – they will be busy conducting 
open houses.  They will be hosting trick-or-treats at the Gladstone Fire Station.                                          
 
They had a smaller residential (bark dust/deck) fire earlier in the month off Clayton Way.  There have 
been some small bark dust fires at other locations.                                                                                                    
 
CFD will be at the Community Center on October 25th. 
 
Councilor Roberts thanked them for the partnership they have and said the preventative maintenance they 
do in the community is outstanding.  Councilor Alexander agreed.   
 

9. GLADSTONE CITY EVENT ANNOUNCEMENTS:                                                                                            
Gladstone School District Assistant Superintendent Jeremiah Patterson and Ali Ferrerstein (the teacher on 
special assignment for student and staff wellness) spoke about a major initiative going on throughout the 
school year.  They went over data regarding the pandemic, attendance, etc.  They came up with a model 
based in Grand Rapids, Michigan, which is a city-wide approach to increase attendance – “Gladstone 
shows up”.  They have created signs/posters and tee shirts with the motto.  They invited everyone to an 
event being held on October 9th pertaining to helping students find purpose. 
 
Ralph Matile wanted to bring attention to the Gladstone High School multi-class reunion they held last 
month – he thanked everyone who was involved (Chief Schmerber, Darren Caniparoli, Jacques Betz, 
Mayor Milch, and Tami Bannick).    
 
Robert Everett thanked everyone on the City Council, Public Works, Police Department, and Ms. Betz for 
their work during the Community Festival.  They estimated there were 8,000 – 10,000 attendees over the 
two days.  They are already planning next year’s event and if anyone has suggestions, they are open to 
them.                                                                                                                                                                  
 
This Friday they are starting the monthly bingo games – they will be held on the third Friday of each month 
at the Senior/Community Center.  They start selling tickets at 4:30, doors open at 4:50, and bingo starts at 
5:30.  The cost is $5 for seven tickets.  They have food and beverages available. 
 
Nancy Eichsteadt, representing the Friends of Gladstone Nature Park, announced a new event coming on 
October 14th - the first annual Gladstone Nature Park Dog Fest in the Park.  They will have a dog 
Halloween costume contest, holiday photo booth, games/prizes, vendors for K-9’s, and hot dogs/cider. 
 

REGULAR AGENDA  
 

10. PUBLIC HEARING:  ORDINANCE 1524 – TEXT AMENDMENTS TO ADD A NEW 
CHAPTER 17.81 – ANNEXATION – TO THE GLADSTONE MUNICIPAL CODE (GMC), 
FILE TXT-2023-02:                                                                                                                                                            
Ms. Betz explained that the City does not have language in the GMC pertaining to annexation requests, 
so staff has developed policy for the Council to consider regarding extending utilities to property 
owners outside the City limits.  It is intended to facilitate efficient urban and economic development 
opportunities by transferring jurisdiction over property within the Metro Urban Growth Boundary from 
Clackamas County to the City of Gladstone.  The City Attorney prepared language for the GMC.  They 
recently held a meeting with the Planning Commission to go through it. 
 
Councilor Huckaby made a motion to open the public hearing.  Motion was seconded by Councilor 
Roberts.  Ms. Bannick took a roll call vote:  Councilor Huckaby – yes.  Councilor Alexander – yes.  

1 - 2



Councilor Reichle – yes.  Councilor Cook – yes.  Councilor Roberts – yes.  Councilor Garlington – yes.  
Mayor Milch – yes.  Motion passed with a unanimous vote.  
 
Mayor Milch opened the public hearing. He explained that this is a legislative land use hearing.  He 
went over the order of business to be followed.  Any interested person may present testimony 
concerning the proposed amendments.  He went over the procedures for testifying. He asked the 
Councilors if anyone wished to abstain from this matter or needed to declare any kind of conflict of 
interest – none did.                                        
 
Mr. Jacobs went over the staff report and gave an overview of the language/proposed changes.  He said 
that owners may initiate an application for a petition, but they still have to go through the quasi-judicial 
process to approve that application.  They are going to require that the property owner enter into an 
annexation agreement with the City in accordance with State law in order to receive utility services.  
That would allow the City to provide services, and then when the property does become contiguous to 
the City, and therefore eligible for annexation, they would annex at that time.  The City Council will 
look at the approval criteria when an application comes before them and determine whether or not the 
particular property in question meets the criteria.  There are two amendments that pertain to fees and 
public hearings.  The Planning Commission has reviewed this and is recommending approval.                           
There was no written correspondence/testimony. 
 
PUBLIC TESTIMONY:                                                                                                                                                   
Anneliese Kiefer said she lives on the ridge above the middle school – they are not part of Gladstone, 
but they want to hook up to the City sewer system.  She hopes this will be a pathway for other people 
who want to modernize their plumbing systems.   
 
Ms. Betz said there is already an amount set for annexation ($3,000) in the City’s Master Fee Schedule.  
This is a land use application process.  They are not sure the amount will cover the City’s costs.  This 
is not a revenue making mechanism for municipalities – the fee is set because the City has to pay a 
planner to review the annexation application, the Public Works Department is involved, Administration 
is involved, sending notifications, etc.  There is also a sewer connection fee of $235, and a sewer 
inspection fee of $100.  They will be monitoring the first application to make sure they are capturing 
all of the costs involved.  A group of property owners can apply and only have to pay one fee and only 
go through one hearing. 
 
Councilor Roberts made a motion to close the public hearing.  Motion was seconded by Councilor 
Alexander.  Ms. Bannick took a roll call vote:  Councilor Roberts – yes.  Councilor Cook – yes.  
Councilor Reichle – yes.  Councilor Alexander – yes.  Councilor Huckaby – yes.  Councilor Garlington 
– yes.  Mayor Milch – yes.  Motion passed with a unanimous vote. 
 
Mayor Milch closed the public hearing. 
 
Discussion:                                                                                                                                                                  
Councilor Alexander feels this is a good thing.                                                                                                   
 
Councilor Cook feels this has been thought through, is a quick response to a community need, and that 
it’s fair and balanced.                                                                                                                                        
 
Councilor Roberts is pleased with it.                                                                                                                       
 
Councilor Garlington asked that 17.94 reads that the City will hold public hearings for all quasi-judicial 
and legislative land use applications except when State or local law does not require a hearing.                           

1 - 3



Councilor Reichle agreed with Councilor Roberts, as did Councilor Huckaby.                           
Mayor Milch agreed that we need to be consistent in the way we handle this – not to have it just be an 
administrative matter, but have hearings when they are required. 
 
Councilor Roberts made a motion to approve Ordinance 15.24, approving a text amendment to the 
Gladstone Municipal Code (GMC) to add Chapter 17.81, Annexations, City File TXT-23-02, with the 
proposed change to Chapter 17.94, stating the City will hold public hearings.  Motion was seconded 
by Councilor Alexander.  Ms. Bannick took a roll call vote:  Councilor Huckaby – yes.  Councilor 
Alexander – yes.  Councilor Reichle – yes.  Councilor Cook – yes.  Councilor Roberts – yes.  Councilor 
Garlington – yes.  Mayor Milch – yes.  Motion passed with a unanimous vote.                                                        
                                                                                                                                                                                             

11. ORDINANCE 1525 – AMENDING GLADSTONE MUNICIPAL CODE (GMC) CHAPTERS 
2.10 AND 2.70 – RENAMING OF THE GLADSTONE SENIOR CENTER ADVISORY 
BOARD AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD: 
Ms. Betz said they recently changed the name to Gladstone Community Center.  The advisory board 
looked at the duties/responsibilities of the board to make sure it is going to be consistent with the 
adopted City Council goals in relation to the future vision of the Community Center.                  
 
Ms. Kirkpatrick, Community Services Manager, and Mindy Proski, Board Chair went over the staff 
report and proposed changes.  They have worked on trying to reach their goal of including a multi-
generational, warm, creative center that people feel is theirs to attend.  They are also working on their 
van, which will reflect the name change.  They would like the name of the advisory board to represent 
the name of the center.  Chair Proski said this is a very positive change.  They have great plans for 
expanding services out into the community and going for the multi-generational aspect of it.  It was a 
unanimous vote to rename it the Gladstone Community Center Advisory Board.  They are excited 
about getting some new members.                                                                                               
 
They have included language regarding having ad hoc committees that will focus on individual events 
(Music On The Green, Winter Market, etc.).  There will be an application process for those as well.                           
Councilor Huckaby asked about page 11-7, 2.70.020, third line, asked if “Senior” was supposed to be 
underlined.  It should be a strike-through. 
 
Councilor Huckaby made a motion to approve Ordinance 1525, amending Gladstone Municipal Code 
(GMC) Chapter 2.10, Boards, Commissions, and Committees generally, and Chapter 2.70, Senior 
Center Advisory Board. Motion was seconded by Councilor Reichle.  Ms. Bannick took a roll call 
vote:  Councilor Cook – yes.  Councilor Reichle – yes.  Councilor Alexander – yes.  Councilor Huckaby 
– yes.  Councilor Roberts – yes.  Councilor Garlington – yes.  Mayor Milch – yes.  Motion passed with 
a unanimous vote.                                                                                                    
 

12. RESOLUTION 1225 – PARTICIPATION IN THE ICMA/MISSION SQUARE 401 PLAN:             
Ms. McDonald went over the staff report.  This would authorize the establishment of 401(a) money 
purchase plans through Mission Square for executive management employees.  She explained that 
recruitment has become much more competitive in the last few years.  They have been looking at ways 
to recruit and retain employees.  Tualatin and Oregon City are also offering the 401 plan.   
 
Councilor Garlington asked what the actual dollar amount is (page 12-2/cost impact/percentage rate) 
- .55% will depend on how much the employee puts in that account. The fee would be paid by the 
employee.  She asked about City contributions.  Ms. McDonald said there are currently two suppliers 
of 457 plans – one has been here for decades, and the other for approximately 10-15 years.  Councilor 
Garlington asked if a full-time employee wanted to invest more money into their retirement program 
how many plans does the City have right now?  The only one they have currently is the 457 plan, 

1 - 4



either through ICMA or Equitable.  Out of the 50 employees that are eligible to do that, 20 of them 
are participating.  Councilor Garlington questions the need for adding another layer because she feels 
the salaries are already competitive.  Ms. McDonald said any changes would involve a minimal 
amount of administrative time.  If the Council approves this, that would allow her to work with ICMA 
to get the administrative agreement.  There was further discussion regarding options.                           
Councilor Alexander asked why this isn’t an option for all employees.  Ms. McDonald said the IRS 
established these plans for the higher wage earners for the executive level employees (six employees).  
The other type of plan in a government agency is the 457, which has a lower contribution limit.                           
Councilors Cook and Huckaby feel this is a great way to recruit/retain some of our highest qualified 
positions with a minimal cost to the City.   
 
Councilor Huckaby made a motion to approve Resolution 1225 to authorize the establishment of 
401(a) money purchase plans through Mission Square (aka ICMA RC) for executive management 
employees.  Motion was seconded by Councilor Cook.                                                                              
 
Discussion:  Councilor Garlington wanted to make sure they were talking about an employee 
contribution, and if that should ever change, then Resolution 1225 would have to change.  Ms. 
McDonald said if there was a change in this resolution it would come before the Council to address it 
and it would be done through an amendment.  This is only authorizing the implementation of the plan.  
The initial plan can be set up with the City Administrator’s contribution, and if the remaining executive 
group agrees on a percentage, it can be set up as well.  Going forward, any benefits included in a 
compensation package for new executive employees will be determined at the time of an employment 
offer being given.  We will have a document that allows for a provision of an employer contribution, 
but they are not committed to that by adopting this resolution.  Any change like that would have to 
come by an amendment.  There was further explanation/examples.  This would not be retroactive.  The 
City Administrator can only make a recommendation for hiring a new Department Head – the City 
Council has to approve that, which would include the compensation package.  Any compensation 
package has to fall under the City Administrator’s budget authority.                                                                                
 
Ms. Bannick took a roll call vote:  Councilor Reichle – yes.  Councilor Alexander – yes.  Councilor 
Huckaby – yes.  Councilor Garlington – yes.  Councilor Roberts – yes.  Councilor Cook – yes.  Mayor 
Milch – yes.   
 
Motion passed with a unanimous vote.        
 
Mayor Milch asked Ms. Betz and Mr. Jacobs to prepare an agenda item for the October meeting to go 
over this in more detail, such as the City Administrator’s current employment contract, timelines, 
changes in compensation, etc.  Ms. McDonald said that if this is set up in October Ms. Betz can direct 
her contributions into it and that would not require an amendment of her contract.  If the Council wants 
to make a decision to direct a contribution there, whether it’s a percentage of salary or the equivalent 
of leave time, then that would require an amendment to her employment agreement – it just needs to 
happen in a timely manner.  Mr. Jacobs said the current contract is set to expire on June 30th, 2024.  If 
the City does not intend to renew it, they must provide 120 days’ notice.  They are also required to do 
an evaluation this spring.          
 

13. RESOLUTION 1226 – ADOPT A PAVEMENT CONDITION INDEX (PCI) OF 71 FOR THE 
CITY OF GLADSTONE PAVEMENT MANAGEMENT PLAN:                                                                              
Mr. Caniparoli went over the staff report.  In 2016 the City established a Pavement Management 
Program.  At that time a citywide review and rating of roadways within the City was completed.  The 
initial rating provided a Pavement Condition Index (PCI) rating of 67 on a 0-100 scale – a rating of 67 
is in the “fair” category.  The current funding level of $400,000 per year will no longer maintain that 

1 - 5



index.  In 2022 the roads were re-graded, and the PCI stayed at a rating of 67.  At the March City 
Council work session staff brought the Pavement Management Program to them to discuss funding.  
They discussed what it would cost to bring our current streets to a PCI of 71, which is considered 
“good”.  It would cost approximately $900,000 per year (for five years), which is currently budgeted 
in the current biennium.  He went over the two options – to approve/adopt a Pavement Condition Index 
of 71 for the City of Gladstone Pavement Management Program or not to approve it and continue with 
the current funding. 
 
Councilor Garlington asked if this would include any streets that are “in dire straits” – Mr. Caniparoli 
said there is money put aside for the streets that are in very poor condition in the final two years of the 
five-year plan.  Once they have the roads re-rated they can look at what it’s going to take to keep the 
rating at 71, or if the Council would want to look at other options to be able to bring that rating to a 
higher PCI at that time.                                                                                            
 
Councilor Cook feels that the strategy is sound; but it’s just not intuitive.  They asked if there was an 
opportunity to do some social media marketing and include information in the newsletter for residents 
to help them understand the approach that the City is taking.  Mr. Caniparoli thinks that’s an excellent 
idea.  Ms. Betz agreed that they need to educate the public better about how the funds are spent and 
how the streets are prioritized.  Mayor Milch pointed out that just because Public Works isn’t going 
to completely reconstruct some of the bad streets, that doesn’t mean that they won’t do some patching 
work.   
 
Councilor Alexander made a motion to approve Resolution 1226 to adopt a Pavement Condition Index 
(PCI) of 71 for the City of Gladstone Pavement Management Plan.  Motion was seconded by Councilor 
Huckaby.  Ms. Bannick took a roll call vote:  Councilor Alexander – yes.  Councilor Reichle – yes.  
Councilor Cook – yes.  Councilor Roberts – yes.  Councilor Garlington – yes.  Councilor Huckaby – 
yes.  Mayor Milch – yes.  Motion passed with a unanimous vote.                                                                                      
   

14. RESOLUTION 1227 – ADOPTING COUNCIL RULES FOR THE GLADSTONE CITY 
COUNCIL:                    
Mr. Jacobs went over the staff report.  He said the language hasn’t changed much since they went over 
it during the last meeting.  He pointed out two changes:  1) page 14-9, G-2, Council Member Conduct 
– language regarding identifying themselves as individuals, 2) page 14-15, Rule R, 2-d, the language 
in the last sentence about limitations on serving on more than one committee doesn’t apply to the 
Budget Committee (reincorporating existing language).                               
 
Councilor Garlington – said on page 14-14, R-1-a, there should be the word “to” after “council”.  
Councilor Roberts feels that it is correct as-is, because this pertains to council committees.  Mr. Jacobs 
confirmed that and said it could be read either way, but will make the change. 
 
Councilor Roberts made a motion to approve Resolution 1227, a Resolution adopting Council Rules 
for the Gladstone City Council and repealing prior rules, with the amendment noted.  Motion was 
seconded by Councilor Reichle.  Ms. Bannick took a roll call vote:  Councilor Garlington – yes.  
Councilor Roberts – yes.  Councilor Cook – yes.  Councilor Reichle – yes.  Councilor Alexander – 
yes.  Councilor Huckaby – yes.  Mayor Milch – yes.  Motion passed with a unanimous vote. 

       
BUSINESS CARRIED FORWARD:                                                                                                                                   
Mayor Milch said there is a letter included in the packet regarding some action that our Representative in 
Washington, D.C. is hoping to make on the tolling issue.  He encouraged everyone to read it and be 
informed about it.  It provides a summary of some of the concerns on this issue.  He feels they should be 

1 - 6



able to advise our legislators at all different levels of government how this impacts our community and 
what the best way forward needs to be.   
 
BUSINESS FROM THE AUDIENCE:                                                                                                                                   
None. 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE COUNCIL:                                                                                                                              
 
Councilor Huckaby:                                                                                                                                                    
She wanted to recognize and give kudos to the Community Center and their staff/volunteers for putting on 
the Music On The Greens event last Friday – it was a great success.  She wanted to give huge kudos to 
Happy Rock Coffee Roasters who brought the community together by giving out over 100 
burgers/chips/drinks to the community.  She said there were some people who showed up in opposition of 
Happy Rock giving out free food, but for the most part they were ignored – it sent the message that that 
type of unnecessary opposition and hate is not welcome in our community. 
 
Councilor Alexander:                                                                                                                                                         
He said he had the opportunity to ride around with Officer Olson and Nanuk.  He got to watch the K-9 in 
action in Lake Oswego – he found gloves, a hat, and a shirt that they were able to obtain DNA from.  Nanuk 
also located some suspects from an incident in Wilsonville in the Ford parking lot.  He encouraged everyone 
to go on a ride-along.     
 
Councilor Reichle:                                                                                                                                                         
She attended the Parks & Rec Board meeting last night.  She reminded everyone that AMR is done for the 
season at High Rocks, so use extra caution if you are utilizing the resources there.  Chief Schmerber had 
reported that the calls this season were way down from previous years and there were no deaths reported 
this year at High Rocks.  The restrooms will remain closed, and the port-a-potties are being removed this 
week.  The Board is working on reviewing some options on grant ideas to make improvements in parks.                           
They are waiting on some surveys/permitting pieces to happen in order to get the pavement project 
completed at the Nature Park.  She reminded everyone about the Dog Fest that is going to be happening 
there on October 14th – from noon to 3:00 P.M.                                                                                                          
 
The play structures for Robin Hood and Meldrum Bar Park have been ordered – they will be delivered in 
late fall.                                                                                                                                                                 
 
Councilor Cook:                                                                                                                                                                
Their kids started school.  Back to school is a transformative time where parents, teachers, and 
neighbors/community members are involved in raising children.  They are seeing the support and joy 
happen for all families of young children and they are grateful for it.  It’s a wonderful time to be in a 
community like Gladstone where we all come together to uplift all children.    
 
Councilor Roberts:                                                                                                                                                               
He also had the opportunity to ride along with the Police Department again – he rode with Jeff Oliver, who 
came to us from Lake Oswego.  He said we are lucky to have him – he brings a unique amount of experience, 
including specialized skills such as crash reconstruction.  He is a resource that other neighboring 
jurisdictions will call upon.                                                                                                                        
 
He is thankful for the relationship with have with AMR at High Rocks.     
 
Councilor Garlington:                                                                                                                                                         
She asked if the life jacket stand at High Rocks was taken out for the season – that is correct.                  

1 - 7



She said on Saturday, September 16th (from 1 – 3 P.M.) they are doing the groundbreaking at the Oak Lodge 
Library.  They have supported Gladstone in the building of our library. She hopes everyone will go and 
take a peak to see what they’re doing.                                                                                                         
 
October 14th, at 9:14 A.M. there will be a solar eclipse.  She encouraged everyone to experience it.          
 
In regard to the property owner asking to be annexed - she was impressed with how environmentally 
conscious they are – she feels it is remarkable that they put that before the benefits of their family.  She said 
after working with Mr. Jacobs on the Charter and the Council Rules that his professionalism is of the highest 
standard.  She appreciates all the little things they’ve been able to add and making sure all their notes are 
taken, etc.   
 
Mayor Milch:                                                                                                                                                                         
He said last week he got to attend an event at Somerset Lodge that was celebrating the 100th birthday of a 
Gladstone resident named Betty Farley.  It was a fun experience.                                                             
 
He serves as the Council Liaison to the School Board and has attended their meetings – he was invited to 
participate in the event they had the week before school starts where teachers get together and hear some 
speakers, recognize accomplishments, etc.  It was a positive experience.  He said Sarah Sanderson gave a 
good presentation about her book.  He encouraged everyone to read it to inform themselves about our role 
in encouraging a diverse, equitable, and inclusive community.                                                  
 
On Friday they have a tour with some people from Metro – they are going to show them what Gladstone is 
and what it could be in the future and hope we get support for some of the grants and technical assistance 
we need in making this community live up to even greater potential.     
  
Mayor Milch asked for a motion to adjourn the meeting. 
 
ADJOURN:                                                                                                                                                                                
Councilor Roberts made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  Motion was seconded by Councilor Cook.  Ms. 
Bannick took a roll call vote:  Councilor Huckaby – yes.  Councilor Alexander – yes.  Councilor Reichle – 
yes.  Councilor Cook – yes.  Councilor Roberts – yes. Councilor Garlington – yes.  Mayor Milch – yes.  
Motion passed with a unanimous vote. 
 
Meeting was adjourned at 9:00 P.M.           
 
Approved by the Mayor this ________ day of ___________________________, 2023.                                                         
 

ATTEST: 
 
 

_____________________________________                  ______________________________________       
Michael Milch, Mayor                                                        Hayley Kratz, Acting City Recorder     

1 - 8



2



Bank
July

 2023

August

 2023

September

 2023

October

 2023

November

2023

December

 2023

LGIP -City Of Gladstone #4472 25,192,979.55$       25,449,877.99$     

LGIP - Urban Renewal Agency #4650 2,427,381.48            2,438,367.43          

Checking Accounts:

General Fund 432,049.63               169,111.09             

Urban Renewal 549,462.65               33,760.33               

Municipal Court 28,242.65                 30,073.80               

Totals 28,630,115.96$       28,121,190.64$     -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         

Bank
January

 2024

February

2024

March

 2024

April

 2024

May

2024

June

2024

LGIP -City Of Gladstone #4472

LGIP - Urban Renewal Agency #4650

Checking Accounts:

General Fund

Urban Renewal

Municipal Court 

Totals -$                           -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         

BANK BALANCES

Month Ending Balance

2 - 1





3



10/3/2023 3:23:16 PM Page 1 of 20

Budget Report
City of Gladstone Account Summary

For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 08/31/2023

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Fund: 100 - GENERAL FUND

Revenue

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL.

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 8,240,000.00 0.00 -8,240,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-000-309999 8,240,000.00

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL. Total: 0.000.008,240,000.00 8,240,000.00 -8,240,000.00 0.00 %

RptType: 3100 - LOCAL TAXES

CURRENT YEAR TAXES 9,959,943.00 0.00 -9,959,943.00 0.00 %0.00100-000-310010 9,959,943.00

PRIOR YEAR TAXES 70,000.00 0.00 -70,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-000-310050 70,000.00

TRANSIENT LODGING TAX 350,000.00 4,386.58 -345,613.42 1.25 %2,353.22100-000-314045 350,000.00

RptType: 3100 - LOCAL TAXES Total: 4,386.582,353.2210,379,943.00 10,379,943.00 -10,375,556.42 0.04 %

RptType: 3110 - STATE SHARED TAXES

STATE REVENUE SHARING 310,000.00 0.00 -310,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-000-310170 310,000.00

ALCOHOL TAX REVENUE 486,922.00 0.00 -486,922.00 0.00 %0.00100-000-311010 486,922.00

MARIJUANA TAX 88,955.00 0.00 -88,955.00 0.00 %0.00100-000-311015 88,955.00

CIGARETTE TAX REVENUE 17,402.00 0.00 -17,402.00 0.00 %0.00100-000-311020 17,402.00

RptType: 3110 - STATE SHARED TAXES Total: 0.000.00903,279.00 903,279.00 -903,279.00 0.00 %

RptType: 3120 - RIGHT OF WAY FEES

GLADSTONE DISPOSAL FRANCHISE … 275,000.00 0.00 -275,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-000-312010 275,000.00

PGE FRANCHISE FEES 1,018,440.00 0.00 -1,018,440.00 0.00 %0.00100-000-312025 1,018,440.00

NW NATURAL GAS FRANCHISE FEE 315,700.00 0.00 -315,700.00 0.00 %0.00100-000-312030 315,700.00

COMCAST CABLE TV FRANCHISE FE 280,000.00 0.00 -280,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-000-312040 280,000.00

RptType: 3120 - RIGHT OF WAY FEES Total: 0.000.001,889,140.00 1,889,140.00 -1,889,140.00 0.00 %

RptType: 3130 - LICENSES AND PERMITS

BUSINESS LICENSE FEES 187,500.00 1,595.00 -185,905.00 0.85 %755.00100-000-313010 187,500.00

LIQUOR LICENSE RENEWALS 1,000.00 170.00 -830.00 17.00 %170.00100-000-313015 1,000.00

ALARM PERMITS 19,000.00 1,225.00 -17,775.00 6.45 %400.00100-000-313020 19,000.00

PARKING PERMITS 227,000.00 23,052.00 -203,948.00 10.16 %8,932.00100-000-313025 227,000.00

RptType: 3130 - LICENSES AND PERMITS Total: 26,042.0010,257.00434,500.00 434,500.00 -408,458.00 5.99 %

RptType: 3140 - CHARGES FOR SERVICES

RECREATION FEES 14,000.00 559.17 -13,440.83 3.99 %220.95100-000-314010 14,000.00

SENIOR CENTER BUILDING RENTAL … 13,500.00 587.50 -12,912.50 4.35 %720.00100-000-314015 13,500.00

PLANNING APPLICATION FEES 80,000.00 6,781.88 -73,218.12 8.48 %6,781.88100-000-314020 80,000.00

SOCIAL SERVICES CONTRACT 90,000.00 0.00 -90,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-000-314025 90,000.00

LIEN SEARCH FEES 9,500.00 570.00 -8,930.00 6.00 %300.00100-000-314030 9,500.00

RptType: 3140 - CHARGES FOR SERVICES Total: 8,498.558,022.83207,000.00 207,000.00 -198,501.45 4.11 %

RptType: 3150 - GRANTS

POLICE GRANTS 90,000.00 0.00 -90,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-000-315030 90,000.00

WES/GOOD NEIGHBOR GRANT 110,250.00 50,000.00 -60,250.00 45.35 %50,000.00100-000-315065 110,250.00

OTHER GRANTS 100,000.00 0.00 -100,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-000-315080 100,000.00

RptType: 3150 - GRANTS Total: 50,000.0050,000.00300,250.00 300,250.00 -250,250.00 16.65 %

RptType: 3260 - FINES AND FORFEITURES

COURT FINES & FORFEITURES 670,000.00 48,979.44 -621,020.56 7.31 %19,747.28100-000-326010 670,000.00

RptType: 3260 - FINES AND FORFEITURES Total: 48,979.4419,747.28670,000.00 670,000.00 -621,020.56 7.31 %

RptType: 3301 - INTEREST

INTEREST 565,000.00 185,508.92 -379,491.08 32.83 %94,951.49100-000-330100 565,000.00

RptType: 3301 - INTEREST Total: 185,508.9294,951.49565,000.00 565,000.00 -379,491.08 32.83 %

RptType: 3600 - MISCELLANEOUS

ALL OTHER GF RECEIPTS 40,000.00 3,221.26 -36,778.74 8.05 %1,982.76100-000-360000 40,000.00

3 - 1



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 08/31/2023

10/3/2023 3:23:16 PM Page 2 of 20

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

NAT'L OPIOID SETTLEMENT FUNDS 140,000.00 7,447.65 -132,552.35 5.32 %7,447.65100-000-360100 140,000.00

SENIOR CENTER MISC. INCOME 5,500.00 238.00 -5,262.00 4.33 %77.00100-000-362115 5,500.00

TRAM TRIPS 22,000.00 2,793.00 -19,207.00 12.70 %1,226.50100-000-362212 22,000.00

MEAL DONATIONS 40,000.00 2,689.05 -37,310.95 6.72 %1,479.15100-000-362213 40,000.00

RptType: 3600 - MISCELLANEOUS Total: 16,388.9612,213.06247,500.00 247,500.00 -231,111.04 6.62 %

RptType: 3700 - OTHER

SALE OF SURPLUS EQUIP/PROPERTY 30,000.00 1,379.73 -28,620.27 4.60 %1,379.73100-000-371000 30,000.00

RptType: 3700 - OTHER Total: 1,379.731,379.7330,000.00 30,000.00 -28,620.27 4.60 %

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL Total: 341,184.18198,924.6123,866,612.00 23,866,612.00 -23,525,427.82 1.43 %

Department: 910 - TRANSFER IN

RptType: 3990 - TRANSFERS IN

TRANSFER IN FROM ARPA FUND 653,500.00 0.00 -653,500.00 0.00 %0.00100-910-399105 653,500.00

TRANSFER IN FROM STREET FUND 584,717.00 0.00 -584,717.00 0.00 %0.00100-910-399205 584,717.00

TRANSFER IN FROM URBAN RENE… 590,503.00 0.00 -590,503.00 0.00 %0.00100-910-399390 590,503.00

TRANSFER IN FROM SEWER FUND 417,900.00 0.00 -417,900.00 0.00 %0.00100-910-399730 417,900.00

TRANSFER IN FROM WATER FUND 523,678.00 0.00 -523,678.00 0.00 %0.00100-910-399740 523,678.00

TRANSFER IN FROM STORM WATER 427,101.00 0.00 -427,101.00 0.00 %0.00100-910-399750 427,101.00

RptType: 3990 - TRANSFERS IN Total: 0.000.003,197,399.00 3,197,399.00 -3,197,399.00 0.00 %

Department: 910 - TRANSFER IN Total: 0.000.003,197,399.00 3,197,399.00 -3,197,399.00 0.00 %

Revenue Total: 341,184.18198,924.6127,064,011.00 27,064,011.00 -26,722,826.82 1.26 %

Expense

Department: 121 - ADMIN

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

CITY ADMINISTRATOR 409,752.00 37,187.66 372,564.34 9.08 %16,418.64100-121-431010 409,752.00

CITY RECRDR/HR MGR 390,672.00 17,008.00 373,664.00 4.35 %8,504.00100-121-431020 390,672.00

FINANCE DIRECTOR (.80) 206,542.00 0.00 206,542.00 0.00 %0.00100-121-431030 206,542.00

TOURISM/EC DEV COORDINATOR 127,812.00 7,090.34 120,721.66 5.55 %4,167.86100-121-431035 127,812.00

OFFICE ASSISTANT 154,764.00 12,708.00 142,056.00 8.21 %6,354.00100-121-431070 154,764.00

ACCOUNTING CLERK 182,179.00 14,799.20 167,379.80 8.12 %7,399.60100-121-431500 182,179.00

CAREER RECOGNITION PAY 17,311.00 1,485.80 15,825.20 8.58 %742.90100-121-450500 17,311.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 887,946.00 48,020.00 839,926.00 5.41 %23,180.12100-121-470000 887,946.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 138,299.0066,767.122,376,978.00 2,376,978.00 2,238,679.00 5.82 %

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL S… 152,700.00 24,713.75 127,986.25 16.18 %18,173.75100-121-500110 152,700.00

MUNICIPAL AUDIT CONTRACT 67,500.00 10,500.00 57,000.00 15.56 %10,500.00100-121-500120 67,500.00

LEGAL FEES 206,000.00 10,076.00 195,924.00 4.89 %10,076.00100-121-500130 206,000.00

COUNCIL ACTIVITIES 25,000.00 1,865.30 23,134.70 7.46 %795.30100-121-500490 25,000.00

OUTSIDE AGENCY REQUESTS 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-121-500491 10,000.00

PLANNING SERVICES CONTRACT 180,000.00 11,822.00 168,178.00 6.57 %11,822.00100-121-500492 180,000.00

COMM PROMOTIONS/BUSINESS D… 293,000.00 6,622.64 286,377.36 2.26 %5,049.17100-121-510020 293,000.00

TOURISM PROMOTION/ACTIVITIES 42,000.00 7,879.52 34,120.48 18.76 %6,912.32100-121-510021 42,000.00

BANK CHARGES 8,700.00 96.56 8,603.44 1.11 %0.06100-121-520120 8,700.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT 37,000.00 1,152.75 35,847.25 3.12 %557.65100-121-520400 37,000.00

CITY NEWSLETTER 85,000.00 6,874.89 78,125.11 8.09 %6,874.89100-121-520450 85,000.00

FIRE & LIABILITY INSURANCE 436,800.00 168,621.96 268,178.04 38.60 %0.00100-121-530000 436,800.00

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 5,000.00 85.50 4,914.50 1.71 %42.75100-121-530200 5,000.00

EMPLOYEE APPRECIATION 8,000.00 306.35 7,693.65 3.83 %306.35100-121-540110 8,000.00

PERSONNEL RECRUITMENT 20,000.00 819.50 19,180.50 4.10 %787.50100-121-540120 20,000.00

DUES & MEMBERSHIPS 60,000.00 11,029.82 48,970.18 18.38 %375.00100-121-540200 60,000.00

TRAVEL, CONFERENCES & TRAINING 45,000.00 1,345.97 43,654.03 2.99 %80.99100-121-540220 45,000.00

MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-121-540230 2,000.00

PUBLICATIONS & SUBSCRIPTIONS 15,000.00 3,166.99 11,833.01 21.11 %446.90100-121-542000 15,000.00

TELEPHONES 18,500.00 1,244.55 17,255.45 6.73 %623.48100-121-560120 18,500.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 268,224.0573,424.111,717,200.00 1,717,200.00 1,448,975.95 15.62 %

Department: 121 - ADMIN Total: 406,523.05140,191.234,094,178.00 4,094,178.00 3,687,654.95 9.93 %

3 - 2



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 08/31/2023

10/3/2023 3:23:16 PM Page 3 of 20

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Department: 122 - INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

IT MANAGER 239,844.00 19,688.00 220,156.00 8.21 %9,844.00100-122-432010 239,844.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 125,511.00 10,056.47 115,454.53 8.01 %5,028.30100-122-470000 125,511.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 29,744.4714,872.30365,355.00 365,355.00 335,610.53 8.14 %

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL 10,600.00 0.00 10,600.00 0.00 %0.00100-122-500110 10,600.00

COMPUTER/TECHNOLOGY SERVICE 247,524.00 27,762.13 219,761.87 11.22 %13,560.37100-122-500210 247,524.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT 40,260.00 2,086.48 38,173.52 5.18 %1,443.26100-122-520400 40,260.00

TRAVEL, CONFERENCES & TRAINING 3,000.00 229.73 2,770.27 7.66 %229.73100-122-540220 3,000.00

SMALL TOOLS, EQUIPMENT & SAFE… 1,000.00 72.77 927.23 7.28 %72.77100-122-540300 1,000.00

CELL PHONES, PAGERS & RADIOS 71,076.00 5,015.55 66,060.45 7.06 %1,784.76100-122-560110 71,076.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 35,166.6617,090.89373,460.00 373,460.00 338,293.34 9.42 %

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

COMPUTER & EQUIPMENT RESERVE 130,499.00 245.01 130,253.99 0.19 %57.99100-122-661018 130,499.00

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY Total: 245.0157.99130,499.00 130,499.00 130,253.99 0.19 %

Department: 122 - INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY Total: 65,156.1432,021.18869,314.00 869,314.00 804,157.86 7.50 %

Department: 124 - FACILITIES

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

PUBLIC WORKS SUPERVISOR 19,846.00 256.67 19,589.33 1.29 %0.00100-124-437050 19,846.00

UTILITY WORKER II 119,296.00 5,328.08 113,967.92 4.47 %2,763.89100-124-437070 119,296.00

OVERTIME 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-124-450100 1,000.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 81,639.00 3,008.32 78,630.68 3.68 %1,450.26100-124-470000 81,639.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 8,593.074,214.15221,781.00 221,781.00 213,187.93 3.87 %

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL S… 165,500.00 5,583.74 159,916.26 3.37 %3,953.76100-124-500110 165,500.00

OPERATIONS, MAINTENANCE & RE… 100,000.00 8,940.78 91,059.22 8.94 %8,082.11100-124-520130 100,000.00

TRAVEL, CONFERENCES & TRAINING 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 0.00 %0.00100-124-540220 2,500.00

SMALL TOOLS, EQUIPMENT & SAFE… 5,000.00 99.28 4,900.72 1.99 %84.97100-124-540300 5,000.00

UTILITIES 193,500.00 15,109.07 178,390.93 7.81 %7,608.62100-124-560100 193,500.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 29,732.8719,729.46466,500.00 466,500.00 436,767.13 6.37 %

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

PUBLIC WORKS FACILITY CONSTRU… 4,660,188.00 175,982.17 4,484,205.83 3.78 %170,130.93100-124-641005 4,660,188.00

BUILDING RESERVE/REPAIR 20,000.00 0.00 20,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-124-641010 20,000.00

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY Total: 175,982.17170,130.934,680,188.00 4,680,188.00 4,504,205.83 3.76 %

Department: 124 - FACILITIES  Total: 214,308.11194,074.545,368,469.00 5,368,469.00 5,154,160.89 3.99 %

Department: 220 - COURT

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

MUNICIPAL COURT CLERK 144,999.00 11,871.78 133,127.22 8.19 %5,935.89100-220-432020 144,999.00

COURT ADMINISTRATOR 187,908.00 15,426.00 172,482.00 8.21 %7,713.00100-220-432035 187,908.00

CAREER RECOGNITION PAY 7,041.00 578.04 6,462.96 8.21 %289.02100-220-450500 7,041.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 190,166.00 15,233.64 174,932.36 8.01 %7,617.11100-220-470000 190,166.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 43,109.4621,555.02530,114.00 530,114.00 487,004.54 8.13 %

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL S… 2,000.00 10.50 1,989.50 0.53 %10.50100-220-500110 2,000.00

PROSECUTING ATTORNEY 85,000.00 3,500.00 81,500.00 4.12 %0.00100-220-500132 85,000.00

ATTORNEYS FOR INDIGENT CLIENTS 57,000.00 3,050.00 53,950.00 5.35 %650.00100-220-500134 57,000.00

MUNICIPAL COURT JUDGE 84,000.00 7,000.00 77,000.00 8.33 %3,500.00100-220-500136 84,000.00

PRO-TEM JUDGE 3,000.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-220-500137 3,000.00

JURY EXPENSES 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-220-500138 1,000.00

COURTROOM SECURITY 21,000.00 1,500.00 19,500.00 7.14 %1,500.00100-220-500282 21,000.00

BANK CHARGES 12,000.00 0.00 12,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-220-520120 12,000.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT 12,000.00 253.72 11,746.28 2.11 %9.99100-220-520400 12,000.00

3 - 3



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 08/31/2023

10/3/2023 3:23:16 PM Page 4 of 20

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

TRAVEL, CONFERENCES & TRAINING 4,000.00 229.73 3,770.27 5.74 %229.73100-220-540220 4,000.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 15,543.955,900.22281,000.00 281,000.00 265,456.05 5.53 %

Department: 220 - COURT Total: 58,653.4127,455.24811,114.00 811,114.00 752,460.59 7.23 %

Department: 240 - POLICE

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

POLICE CHIEF 337,464.00 27,704.00 309,760.00 8.21 %13,852.00100-240-432110 337,464.00

POLICE LIEUTENANT 271,116.00 0.00 271,116.00 0.00 %0.00100-240-432130 271,116.00

POLICE DETECTIVE 184,332.00 16,213.03 168,118.97 8.80 %8,124.70100-240-432140 184,332.00

POLICE OFFICER 1,529,200.00 96,363.50 1,432,836.50 6.30 %50,487.34100-240-432160 1,529,200.00

POLICE SERGEANT 642,360.00 51,281.65 591,078.35 7.98 %25,840.15100-240-432170 642,360.00

PROPERTY ROOM TECHNICIAN 59,430.00 5,242.96 54,187.04 8.82 %3,002.02100-240-432182 59,430.00

POLICE RECORDS CLERK 131,004.00 10,544.00 120,460.00 8.05 %5,272.00100-240-432185 131,004.00

OVERTIME 290,000.00 26,841.16 263,158.84 9.26 %15,279.75100-240-450100 290,000.00

TRAFFIC GRANT OVERTIME 80,000.00 6,350.92 73,649.08 7.94 %2,918.26100-240-450110 80,000.00

HOLIDAY PAY 30,000.00 7,087.52 22,912.48 23.63 %2,783.87100-240-450200 30,000.00

TRAINING OVERTIME 18,000.00 0.00 18,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-240-450210 18,000.00

PROFICIENCY PAY 176,563.00 11,208.04 165,354.96 6.35 %5,771.77100-240-450300 176,563.00

CAREER RECOGNITION PAY 8,604.00 2,567.98 6,036.02 29.85 %1,313.08100-240-450500 8,604.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 2,192,668.00 144,743.48 2,047,924.52 6.60 %73,661.29100-240-470000 2,192,668.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 406,148.24208,306.235,950,741.00 5,950,741.00 5,544,592.76 6.83 %

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL S… 149,350.00 27,455.76 121,894.24 18.38 %1,095.85100-240-500110 149,350.00

PARK  PATROL 19,076.00 8,898.19 10,177.81 46.65 %8,898.19100-240-500284 19,076.00

SHARE COST CCOM DISPATCH 153,700.00 13,013.76 140,686.24 8.47 %13,013.76100-240-500498 153,700.00

JUVENILE DIVERSION PROGRAM 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-240-510044 5,000.00

OPERATIONAL SUPPLIES AND EXPE… 89,948.00 3,013.96 86,934.04 3.35 %2,639.08100-240-520100 89,948.00

FIREARMS/AMMUNITION 72,080.00 44.00 72,036.00 0.06 %0.00100-240-520112 72,080.00

FLEET FUEL, MAINTENANCE & REPA… 176,960.00 27,982.19 148,977.81 15.81 %17,706.97100-240-520320 176,960.00

RADAR MAINTENANCE REPLACEM… 4,240.00 0.00 4,240.00 0.00 %0.00100-240-520345 4,240.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT 37,492.00 2,102.76 35,389.24 5.61 %1,138.92100-240-520400 37,492.00

EMPLOYEE APPRECIATION 12,000.00 300.00 11,700.00 2.50 %300.00100-240-540110 12,000.00

DUES & MEMBERSHIPS 12,000.00 180.00 11,820.00 1.50 %0.00100-240-540200 12,000.00

TRAVEL, CONFERENCES & TRAINING 58,652.00 3,011.99 55,640.01 5.14 %2,584.63100-240-540220 58,652.00

UNIFORMS AND SAFETY EQUIPMENT 41,976.00 3,545.86 38,430.14 8.45 %433.86100-240-540301 41,976.00

PUBLICATIONS & SUBSCRIPTIONS 5,000.00 432.00 4,568.00 8.64 %280.00100-240-542000 5,000.00

TELEPHONES 21,412.00 1,536.95 19,875.05 7.18 %775.90100-240-560120 21,412.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 91,517.4248,867.16858,886.00 858,886.00 767,368.58 10.66 %

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT RESERV… 182,850.00 62,223.46 120,626.54 34.03 %19,637.79100-240-651000 182,850.00

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY Total: 62,223.4619,637.79182,850.00 182,850.00 120,626.54 34.03 %

Department: 240 - POLICE Total: 559,889.12276,811.186,992,477.00 6,992,477.00 6,432,587.88 8.01 %

Department: 250 - FIRE

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL S… 3,668,444.00 555,817.50 3,112,626.50 15.15 %0.00100-250-500110 3,668,444.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 555,817.500.003,668,444.00 3,668,444.00 3,112,626.50 15.15 %

Department: 250 - FIRE Total: 555,817.500.003,668,444.00 3,668,444.00 3,112,626.50 15.15 %

Department: 526 - PARKS

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 56,935.00 4,341.20 52,593.80 7.62 %2,170.60100-526-437049 56,935.00

PUBLIC WORKS SUPERVISOR 89,310.00 1,155.01 88,154.99 1.29 %0.00100-526-437050 89,310.00

PW ADMIN ASSISTANT 42,343.00 3,339.20 39,003.80 7.89 %1,677.10100-526-437055 42,343.00

UTILITY WORKER, JOURNEY 0.00 5,763.00 -5,763.00 0.00 %5,763.00100-526-437070 0.00

UTILITY WORKER II 237,712.00 14,812.06 222,899.94 6.23 %7,505.88100-526-437071 237,712.00

SEASONAL HELP 77,125.00 0.00 77,125.00 0.00 %0.00100-526-439011 77,125.00

OVERTIME 4,000.00 116.49 3,883.51 2.91 %27.39100-526-450100 4,000.00

CAREER RECOGNITION PAY 163.00 118.66 44.34 72.80 %111.11100-526-450500 163.00

3 - 4



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 08/31/2023

10/3/2023 3:23:16 PM Page 5 of 20

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 249,276.00 14,708.10 234,567.90 5.90 %8,145.43100-526-470000 249,276.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 44,353.7225,400.51756,864.00 756,864.00 712,510.28 5.86 %

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL S… 70,000.00 5,939.14 64,060.86 8.48 %3,965.88100-526-500110 70,000.00

BANK CHARGES 11,200.00 1,223.53 9,976.47 10.92 %476.50100-526-520120 11,200.00

OPERATIONS, MAINTENANCE & RE… 152,000.00 7,986.18 144,013.82 5.25 %5,045.76100-526-520130 152,000.00

HAZARDOUS TREE REMOVAL 50,000.00 0.00 50,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-526-520132 50,000.00

FLEET FUEL, MAINTENANCE & REPA… 45,000.00 1,923.20 43,076.80 4.27 %918.74100-526-520320 45,000.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT 5,000.00 166.82 4,833.18 3.34 %64.58100-526-520400 5,000.00

TRAVEL, CONFERENCES & TRAINING 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-526-540220 2,000.00

SMALL TOOLS, EQUIPMENT & SAFE… 10,000.00 688.13 9,311.87 6.88 %673.82100-526-540300 10,000.00

DUMPING, HAULING, GARBAGE 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-526-540400 1,000.00

UTILITIES 73,300.00 11,554.49 61,745.51 15.76 %6,094.21100-526-560100 73,300.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 29,481.4917,239.49419,500.00 419,500.00 390,018.51 7.03 %

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT RESER… 50,000.00 0.00 50,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-526-660100 50,000.00

SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS & PROJEC… 599,623.00 6,161.15 593,461.85 1.03 %6,161.15100-526-676050 599,623.00

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY Total: 6,161.156,161.15649,623.00 649,623.00 643,461.85 0.95 %

Department: 526 - PARKS Total: 79,996.3648,801.151,825,987.00 1,825,987.00 1,745,990.64 4.38 %

Department: 527 - RECREATION

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

RECREATION COORDINATOR 20,000.00 4,054.05 15,945.95 20.27 %2,653.20100-527-435120 20,000.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 7,500.00 1,582.81 5,917.19 21.10 %1,035.87100-527-470000 7,500.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 5,636.863,689.0727,500.00 27,500.00 21,863.14 20.50 %

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

SUMMER PROGRAMS 3,000.00 854.82 2,145.18 28.49 %664.65100-527-510062 3,000.00

SPECIAL EVENTS 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-527-510064 5,000.00

MAINTENANCE & SUPPLIES 2,200.00 0.00 2,200.00 0.00 %0.00100-527-520136 2,200.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 854.82664.6510,200.00 10,200.00 9,345.18 8.38 %

Department: 527 - RECREATION Total: 6,491.684,353.7237,700.00 37,700.00 31,208.32 17.22 %

Department: 528 - SENIOR CENTER

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

COMMUNITY SERVICES MANAGER 223,061.00 16,615.50 206,445.50 7.45 %8,111.50100-528-435210 223,061.00

TRAM DRIVER 69,366.00 7,822.63 61,543.37 11.28 %4,111.62100-528-435240 69,366.00

NUTRITION CATERER 112,776.00 9,057.00 103,719.00 8.03 %4,541.00100-528-435250 112,776.00

CENTER ASSISTANT 140,388.00 12,148.08 128,239.92 8.65 %5,763.00100-528-435280 140,388.00

BUILDING MONITOR 4,500.00 208.69 4,291.31 4.64 %177.19100-528-435295 4,500.00

CAREER RECOGNITION PAY 1,404.00 121.48 1,282.52 8.65 %57.63100-528-450500 1,404.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 297,810.00 24,313.95 273,496.05 8.16 %12,053.75100-528-470000 297,810.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 70,287.3334,815.69849,305.00 849,305.00 779,017.67 8.28 %

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

NUTRITION PROGRAM SUPPLIES 30,000.00 2,157.01 27,842.99 7.19 %1,692.51100-528-510075 30,000.00

TRAM EXPENSES 14,500.00 1,442.94 13,057.06 9.95 %705.60100-528-520140 14,500.00

BLDG MAINTENANCE & SUPPLIES 4,000.00 124.00 3,876.00 3.10 %0.00100-528-520200 4,000.00

FLEET FUEL, MAINTENANCE & REPA… 2,800.00 675.02 2,124.98 24.11 %665.02100-528-520320 2,800.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT 5,000.00 730.65 4,269.35 14.61 %377.50100-528-520400 5,000.00

DUES & MEMBERSHIPS 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-528-540200 1,000.00

TELEPHONES 3,000.00 239.91 2,760.09 8.00 %120.70100-528-560120 3,000.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 5,369.533,561.3360,300.00 60,300.00 54,930.47 8.90 %

Department: 528 - SENIOR CENTER Total: 75,656.8638,377.02909,605.00 909,605.00 833,948.14 8.32 %

3 - 5



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 08/31/2023

10/3/2023 3:23:16 PM Page 6 of 20

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Department: 529 - LIBRARY

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL S… 446,540.00 0.00 446,540.00 0.00 %0.00100-529-500110 446,540.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 0.000.00446,540.00 446,540.00 446,540.00 0.00 %

Department: 529 - LIBRARY Total: 0.000.00446,540.00 446,540.00 446,540.00 0.00 %

Department: 600 - DEBT SERVICE

RptCategory: 70 - DEBT SERVICE

DEBT PRINCIPAL 854,265.00 177,775.00 676,490.00 20.81 %177,775.00100-600-720040 854,265.00

DEBT SERVICE - INTEREST 364,010.00 35,091.48 328,918.52 9.64 %35,091.48100-600-730040 364,010.00

RptCategory: 70 - DEBT SERVICE Total: 212,866.48212,866.481,218,275.00 1,218,275.00 1,005,408.52 17.47 %

Department: 600 - DEBT SERVICE Total: 212,866.48212,866.481,218,275.00 1,218,275.00 1,005,408.52 17.47 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER

CONTINGENCY FUNDS 821,908.00 0.00 821,908.00 0.00 %0.00100-990-910000 821,908.00

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER Total: 0.000.00821,908.00 821,908.00 821,908.00 0.00 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY Total: 0.000.00821,908.00 821,908.00 821,908.00 0.00 %

Expense Total: 2,235,358.71974,951.7427,064,011.00 27,064,011.00 24,828,652.29 8.26 %

Fund: 100 - GENERAL FUND Surplus (Deficit): -1,894,174.53-776,027.130.00 0.00 -1,894,174.53 0.00 %

3 - 6



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 08/31/2023

10/3/2023 3:23:16 PM Page 7 of 20

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Fund: 105 - AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN RESERVE FUND

Revenue

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL

RptType: 3150 - GRANTS

OTHER GRANTS (ARPA) 2,367,344.00 0.00 -2,367,344.00 0.00 %0.00105-000-315080 2,367,344.00

RptType: 3150 - GRANTS Total: 0.000.002,367,344.00 2,367,344.00 -2,367,344.00 0.00 %

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL Total: 0.000.002,367,344.00 2,367,344.00 -2,367,344.00 0.00 %

Revenue Total: 0.000.002,367,344.00 2,367,344.00 -2,367,344.00 0.00 %

Expense

Department: 150 - ARPA GRANT

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL S… 115,300.00 6,540.00 108,760.00 5.67 %0.00105-150-500110 115,300.00

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 17,600.00 13,048.80 4,551.20 74.14 %0.00105-150-530200 17,600.00

ARPA FUNDING (TBD) 280,944.00 0.00 280,944.00 0.00 %0.00105-150-530210 280,944.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 19,588.800.00413,844.00 413,844.00 394,255.20 4.73 %

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT 100,000.00 0.00 100,000.00 0.00 %0.00105-150-660100 100,000.00

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY Total: 0.000.00100,000.00 100,000.00 100,000.00 0.00 %

Department: 150 - ARPA GRANT Total: 19,588.800.00513,844.00 513,844.00 494,255.20 3.81 %

Department: 920 - TRANSFER OUT

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT

TRANSFER OUT TO GENERAL FUND 653,500.00 0.00 653,500.00 0.00 %0.00105-920-899100 653,500.00

TRANSFER OUT TO SEWER FUND 840,000.00 0.00 840,000.00 0.00 %0.00105-920-899730 840,000.00

TRANFER OUT TO STORM WATER F… 360,000.00 0.00 360,000.00 0.00 %0.00105-920-899750 360,000.00

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT Total: 0.000.001,853,500.00 1,853,500.00 1,853,500.00 0.00 %

Department: 920 - TRANSFER OUT Total: 0.000.001,853,500.00 1,853,500.00 1,853,500.00 0.00 %

Expense Total: 19,588.800.002,367,344.00 2,367,344.00 2,347,755.20 0.83 %

Fund: 105 - AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN RESERVE FUND Surplus (Defici… -19,588.800.000.00 0.00 -19,588.80 0.00 %

3 - 7



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 08/31/2023

10/3/2023 3:23:16 PM Page 8 of 20

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Fund: 205 - ROAD AND STREET FUND

Revenue

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL.

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 2,822,000.00 0.00 -2,822,000.00 0.00 %0.00205-000-309999 2,822,000.00

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL. Total: 0.000.002,822,000.00 2,822,000.00 -2,822,000.00 0.00 %

RptType: 3100 - LOCAL TAXES

VEHICLE REGISTRATION FEES 500,000.00 0.00 -500,000.00 0.00 %0.00205-000-310060 500,000.00

RptType: 3100 - LOCAL TAXES Total: 0.000.00500,000.00 500,000.00 -500,000.00 0.00 %

RptType: 3110 - STATE SHARED TAXES

STATE HIGHWAY TAXES 1,944,766.00 53,533.53 -1,891,232.47 2.75 %53,533.53205-000-310140 1,944,766.00

RptType: 3110 - STATE SHARED TAXES Total: 53,533.5353,533.531,944,766.00 1,944,766.00 -1,891,232.47 2.75 %

RptType: 3120 - RIGHT OF WAY FEES

RIGHT OF WAY - TELECOM 240,000.00 49.86 -239,950.14 0.02 %49.86205-000-312050 240,000.00

RIGHT OF WAY - OTHER 225,000.00 0.00 -225,000.00 0.00 %0.00205-000-312055 225,000.00

ROW LICENSES & APP FEES 1,000.00 0.00 -1,000.00 0.00 %0.00205-000-312060 1,000.00

RptType: 3120 - RIGHT OF WAY FEES Total: 49.8649.86466,000.00 466,000.00 -465,950.14 0.01 %

RptType: 3600 - MISCELLANEOUS

ALL OTHER ROAD/STREET RECEIPTS 50,000.00 1,175.00 -48,825.00 2.35 %235.00205-000-360000 50,000.00

RptType: 3600 - MISCELLANEOUS Total: 1,175.00235.0050,000.00 50,000.00 -48,825.00 2.35 %

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL Total: 54,758.3953,818.395,782,766.00 5,782,766.00 -5,728,007.61 0.95 %

Department: 910 - TRANSFER IN

RptType: 3990 - TRANSFERS IN

TRANSFER IN FROM SEWER FUND 462,275.00 0.00 -462,275.00 0.00 %0.00205-910-399730 462,275.00

TRANSFER IN FROM WATER FUND 349,000.00 0.00 -349,000.00 0.00 %0.00205-910-399740 349,000.00

TRANSFER IN FROM STORM WATER 110,500.00 0.00 -110,500.00 0.00 %0.00205-910-399750 110,500.00

RptType: 3990 - TRANSFERS IN Total: 0.000.00921,775.00 921,775.00 -921,775.00 0.00 %

Department: 910 - TRANSFER IN Total: 0.000.00921,775.00 921,775.00 -921,775.00 0.00 %

Revenue Total: 54,758.3953,818.396,704,541.00 6,704,541.00 -6,649,782.61 0.82 %

Expense

Department: 305 - ROAD AND STREET

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 56,935.00 4,341.20 52,593.80 7.62 %2,170.60205-305-437049 56,935.00

PUBLIC WORKS SUPERVISOR 89,310.00 1,155.02 88,154.98 1.29 %0.00205-305-437050 89,310.00

PW UTILITIES MANAGER 60,981.00 4,769.88 56,211.12 7.82 %2,384.94205-305-437051 60,981.00

PW ADMIN ASSISTANT 62,632.00 5,023.71 57,608.29 8.02 %2,528.73205-305-437055 62,632.00

UTILITY WORKER, JOURNEY 154,764.00 18,260.63 136,503.37 11.80 %11,641.20205-305-437070 154,764.00

UTILITY WORKER II 165,676.00 12,756.72 152,919.28 7.70 %5,836.44205-305-437071 165,676.00

SEASONAL HELP 77,125.00 3,640.88 73,484.12 4.72 %765.60205-305-439011 77,125.00

OVERTIME 10,000.00 533.55 9,466.45 5.34 %61.63205-305-450100 10,000.00

CAREER RECOGNITION PAY 11,727.00 1,199.48 10,527.52 10.23 %642.48205-305-450500 11,727.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 427,801.00 31,622.12 396,178.88 7.39 %15,852.36205-305-470000 427,801.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 83,303.1941,883.981,116,951.00 1,116,951.00 1,033,647.81 7.46 %

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL S… 40,000.00 15,347.98 24,652.02 38.37 %9,242.86205-305-500110 40,000.00

OPERATIONS, MAINTENANCE & RE… 630,000.00 140,763.12 489,236.88 22.34 %85,463.47205-305-520130 630,000.00

STREET LIGHT MAINTENANCE 200,000.00 14,688.72 185,311.28 7.34 %7,369.16205-305-520172 200,000.00

TRAFFIC SIGNAL MAINTENANCE 14,000.00 0.00 14,000.00 0.00 %0.00205-305-520176 14,000.00

STREET SIGN MAINTENANCE 50,000.00 0.00 50,000.00 0.00 %0.00205-305-520178 50,000.00

FLEET FUEL, MAINTENANCE & REPA… 50,000.00 4,661.28 45,338.72 9.32 %1,171.51205-305-520320 50,000.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT 4,000.00 172.82 3,827.18 4.32 %67.58205-305-520400 4,000.00

TRAVEL, CONFERENCES & TRAINING 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 0.00 %0.00205-305-540220 2,500.00

SMALL TOOLS, EQUIPMENT & SAFE… 20,000.00 0.00 20,000.00 0.00 %0.00205-305-540300 20,000.00

DUMPING, HAULING, GARBAGE 7,500.00 0.00 7,500.00 0.00 %0.00205-305-540400 7,500.00

3 - 8



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 08/31/2023

10/3/2023 3:23:16 PM Page 9 of 20

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

UTILITIES 2,500.00 101.45 2,398.55 4.06 %51.04205-305-560100 2,500.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 175,735.37103,365.621,020,500.00 1,020,500.00 844,764.63 17.22 %

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT RESER… 250,000.00 0.00 250,000.00 0.00 %0.00205-305-660100 250,000.00

BIKEWAY & SIDEWALK IMPROVEM… 19,447.00 0.00 19,447.00 0.00 %0.00205-305-675056 19,447.00

SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS & PROJEC… 1,884,122.00 57,007.70 1,827,114.30 3.03 %0.00205-305-676050 1,884,122.00

RESERVE FROM  SDC'S 596,139.00 0.00 596,139.00 0.00 %0.00205-305-678090 596,139.00

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY Total: 57,007.700.002,749,708.00 2,749,708.00 2,692,700.30 2.07 %

Department: 305 - ROAD AND STREET Total: 316,046.26145,249.604,887,159.00 4,887,159.00 4,571,112.74 6.47 %

Department: 920 - TRANSFER OUT

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT

TRANSFER OUT TO GENERAL FUND 584,717.00 0.00 584,717.00 0.00 %0.00205-920-899100 584,717.00

TRANSFER OUT TO SEWER FUND 277,555.00 0.00 277,555.00 0.00 %0.00205-920-899730 277,555.00

TRANSFER OUT TO WATER 277,555.00 0.00 277,555.00 0.00 %0.00205-920-899740 277,555.00

TRANSFER OUT TO STORM 277,555.00 0.00 277,555.00 0.00 %0.00205-920-899750 277,555.00

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT Total: 0.000.001,417,382.00 1,417,382.00 1,417,382.00 0.00 %

Department: 920 - TRANSFER OUT Total: 0.000.001,417,382.00 1,417,382.00 1,417,382.00 0.00 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER

CONTINGENCY FUNDS 400,000.00 0.00 400,000.00 0.00 %0.00205-990-910000 400,000.00

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER Total: 0.000.00400,000.00 400,000.00 400,000.00 0.00 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY Total: 0.000.00400,000.00 400,000.00 400,000.00 0.00 %

Expense Total: 316,046.26145,249.606,704,541.00 6,704,541.00 6,388,494.74 4.71 %

Fund: 205 - ROAD AND STREET FUND Surplus (Deficit): -261,287.87-91,431.210.00 0.00 -261,287.87 0.00 %

3 - 9



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 08/31/2023

10/3/2023 3:23:16 PM Page 10 of 20

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Fund: 228 - POLICE LEVY FUND

Revenue

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL.

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 23,000.00 0.00 -23,000.00 0.00 %0.00228-000-309999 23,000.00

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL. Total: 0.000.0023,000.00 23,000.00 -23,000.00 0.00 %

RptType: 3100 - LOCAL TAXES

CURRENT LEVY TAX 1,515,498.00 0.00 -1,515,498.00 0.00 %0.00228-000-310020 1,515,498.00

PRIOR YEAR TAXES 10,000.00 0.00 -10,000.00 0.00 %0.00228-000-310050 10,000.00

RptType: 3100 - LOCAL TAXES Total: 0.000.001,525,498.00 1,525,498.00 -1,525,498.00 0.00 %

RptType: 3301 - INTEREST

INTEREST 4,000.00 123.05 -3,876.95 3.08 %-66.98228-000-330100 4,000.00

RptType: 3301 - INTEREST Total: 123.05-66.984,000.00 4,000.00 -3,876.95 3.08 %

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL Total: 123.05-66.981,552,498.00 1,552,498.00 -1,552,374.95 0.01 %

Revenue Total: 123.05-66.981,552,498.00 1,552,498.00 -1,552,374.95 0.01 %

Expense

Department: 245 - POLICE LEVY

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

POLICE OFFICER 184,338.00 17,012.22 167,325.78 9.23 %8,487.92228-245-432160 184,338.00

SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICER 184,338.00 0.00 184,338.00 0.00 %0.00228-245-432165 184,338.00

MUNICIPAL ORDINANCE SPECIALIST 137,556.00 4,789.25 132,766.75 3.48 %1,158.71228-245-432180 137,556.00

EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT 161,508.00 13,326.00 148,182.00 8.25 %6,663.00228-245-432195 161,508.00

OVERTIME 30,000.00 1,701.19 28,298.81 5.67 %1,155.52228-245-450100 30,000.00

HOLIDAY PAY 4,000.00 0.00 4,000.00 0.00 %0.00228-245-450200 4,000.00

PROFICIENCY PAY 67,507.00 2,590.51 64,916.49 3.84 %1,268.51228-245-450300 67,507.00

CAREER RECOGNITION PAY 0.00 353.85 -353.85 0.00 %175.40228-245-450500 0.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 490,468.00 24,938.53 465,529.47 5.08 %11,810.79228-245-470000 490,468.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 64,711.5530,719.851,259,715.00 1,259,715.00 1,195,003.45 5.14 %

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

SHARE COST CCOM DISPATCH 161,386.00 13,544.94 147,841.06 8.39 %13,544.94228-245-500498 161,386.00

SRO EXPENSES 4,000.00 1,040.70 2,959.30 26.02 %1,040.70228-245-510032 4,000.00

K-9 EXPENSES 14,000.00 1,232.77 12,767.23 8.81 %653.82228-245-510040 14,000.00

SWAT PROGRAM 8,200.00 0.00 8,200.00 0.00 %0.00228-245-510041 8,200.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 15,818.4115,239.46187,586.00 187,586.00 171,767.59 8.43 %

Department: 245 - POLICE LEVY Total: 80,529.9645,959.311,447,301.00 1,447,301.00 1,366,771.04 5.56 %

Department: 991 - UNAPPROPRIATED BALANCE

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER

UNAPPROPRIATED ENDING FUND B… 105,197.00 0.00 105,197.00 0.00 %0.00228-991-990000 105,197.00

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER Total: 0.000.00105,197.00 105,197.00 105,197.00 0.00 %

Department: 991 - UNAPPROPRIATED BALANCE Total: 0.000.00105,197.00 105,197.00 105,197.00 0.00 %

Expense Total: 80,529.9645,959.311,552,498.00 1,552,498.00 1,471,968.04 5.19 %

Fund: 228 - POLICE LEVY FUND Surplus (Deficit): -80,406.91-46,026.290.00 0.00 -80,406.91 0.00 %

3 - 10



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 08/31/2023

10/3/2023 3:23:16 PM Page 11 of 20

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Fund: 229 - FIRE LEVY FUND

Revenue

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL.

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 160,000.00 0.00 -160,000.00 0.00 %0.00229-000-309999 160,000.00

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL. Total: 0.000.00160,000.00 160,000.00 -160,000.00 0.00 %

RptType: 3100 - LOCAL TAXES

CURRENT LEVY TAX 690,889.00 0.00 -690,889.00 0.00 %0.00229-000-310020 690,889.00

PRIOR YEAR TAXES 5,000.00 0.00 -5,000.00 0.00 %0.00229-000-310050 5,000.00

RptType: 3100 - LOCAL TAXES Total: 0.000.00695,889.00 695,889.00 -695,889.00 0.00 %

RptType: 3301 - INTEREST

INTEREST 6,000.00 1,290.66 -4,709.34 21.51 %658.73229-000-330100 6,000.00

RptType: 3301 - INTEREST Total: 1,290.66658.736,000.00 6,000.00 -4,709.34 21.51 %

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL Total: 1,290.66658.73861,889.00 861,889.00 -860,598.34 0.15 %

Revenue Total: 1,290.66658.73861,889.00 861,889.00 -860,598.34 0.15 %

Expense

Department: 255 - FIRE LEVY

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL S… 861,889.00 0.00 861,889.00 0.00 %0.00229-255-500110 861,889.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 0.000.00861,889.00 861,889.00 861,889.00 0.00 %

Department: 255 - FIRE LEVY Total: 0.000.00861,889.00 861,889.00 861,889.00 0.00 %

Expense Total: 0.000.00861,889.00 861,889.00 861,889.00 0.00 %

Fund: 229 - FIRE LEVY FUND Surplus (Deficit): 1,290.66658.730.00 0.00 1,290.66 0.00 %

3 - 11



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 08/31/2023

10/3/2023 3:23:16 PM Page 12 of 20

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Fund: 390 - URBAN RENEWAL FUND

Revenue

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL.

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 2,980,000.00 0.00 -2,980,000.00 0.00 %0.00390-000-309999 2,980,000.00

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL. Total: 0.000.002,980,000.00 2,980,000.00 -2,980,000.00 0.00 %

RptType: 3100 - LOCAL TAXES

CURRENT YEAR TAXES 2,129,997.00 0.00 -2,129,997.00 0.00 %0.00390-000-310010 2,129,997.00

PRIOR YEAR TAXES 18,000.00 0.00 -18,000.00 0.00 %0.00390-000-310050 18,000.00

RptType: 3100 - LOCAL TAXES Total: 0.000.002,147,997.00 2,147,997.00 -2,147,997.00 0.00 %

RptType: 3301 - INTEREST

INTEREST 100,000.00 19,026.77 -80,973.23 19.03 %9,109.40390-000-330100 100,000.00

RptType: 3301 - INTEREST Total: 19,026.779,109.40100,000.00 100,000.00 -80,973.23 19.03 %

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL Total: 19,026.779,109.405,227,997.00 5,227,997.00 -5,208,970.23 0.36 %

Revenue Total: 19,026.779,109.405,227,997.00 5,227,997.00 -5,208,970.23 0.36 %

Expense

Department: 410 - URBAN RENEWAL

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL S… 22,000.00 0.00 22,000.00 0.00 %0.00390-410-500110 22,000.00

MUNICIPAL AUDIT CONTRACT 38,000.00 0.00 38,000.00 0.00 %0.00390-410-500120 38,000.00

FIRE & LIABILITY INSURANCE 69,000.00 0.00 69,000.00 0.00 %0.00390-410-530000 69,000.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 0.000.00129,000.00 129,000.00 129,000.00 0.00 %

RptCategory: 70 - DEBT SERVICE

DEBT SERVICE PRINCIPAL 986,320.00 485,896.00 500,424.00 49.26 %485,896.00390-410-730030 986,320.00

DEBT SERVICE - INTEREST 89,952.00 29,806.60 60,145.40 33.14 %29,806.60390-410-730040 89,952.00

RptCategory: 70 - DEBT SERVICE Total: 515,702.60515,702.601,076,272.00 1,076,272.00 560,569.40 47.92 %

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT

TRANSFER OUT TO GENERAL FUND 590,503.00 33,000.00 557,503.00 5.59 %0.00390-410-899100 590,503.00

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT Total: 33,000.000.00590,503.00 590,503.00 557,503.00 5.59 %

Department: 410 - URBAN RENEWAL Total: 548,702.60515,702.601,795,775.00 1,795,775.00 1,247,072.40 30.56 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER

CONTINGENCY FUNDS 3,432,222.00 0.00 3,432,222.00 0.00 %0.00390-990-910000 3,432,222.00

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER Total: 0.000.003,432,222.00 3,432,222.00 3,432,222.00 0.00 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY Total: 0.000.003,432,222.00 3,432,222.00 3,432,222.00 0.00 %

Expense Total: 548,702.60515,702.605,227,997.00 5,227,997.00 4,679,294.40 10.50 %

Fund: 390 - URBAN RENEWAL FUND Surplus (Deficit): -529,675.83-506,593.200.00 0.00 -529,675.83 0.00 %

3 - 12



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 08/31/2023

10/3/2023 3:23:16 PM Page 13 of 20

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Fund: 730 - SEWER FUND

Revenue

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL.

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 4,400,000.00 0.00 -4,400,000.00 0.00 %0.00730-000-309999 4,400,000.00

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL. Total: 0.000.004,400,000.00 4,400,000.00 -4,400,000.00 0.00 %

RptType: 3140 - CHARGES FOR SERVICES

OAK LODGE SANITARY 1,900,000.00 174,280.30 -1,725,719.70 9.17 %87,113.33730-000-314050 1,900,000.00

TRI-CITY SERVICE DISTRICT 6,505,000.00 550,105.95 -5,954,894.05 8.46 %274,353.94730-000-314055 6,505,000.00

CONNECTION FEES 10,000.00 0.00 -10,000.00 0.00 %0.00730-000-314080 10,000.00

RptType: 3140 - CHARGES FOR SERVICES Total: 724,386.25361,467.278,415,000.00 8,415,000.00 -7,690,613.75 8.61 %

RptType: 3141 - SDC

SEWER SDCS 20,000.00 0.00 -20,000.00 0.00 %0.00730-000-314110 20,000.00

RptType: 3141 - SDC Total: 0.000.0020,000.00 20,000.00 -20,000.00 0.00 %

RptType: 3600 - MISCELLANEOUS

ALL OTHER SEWER RECEIPTS 482,033.00 200.00 -481,833.00 0.04 %0.00730-000-360000 482,033.00

RptType: 3600 - MISCELLANEOUS Total: 200.000.00482,033.00 482,033.00 -481,833.00 0.04 %

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL Total: 724,586.25361,467.2713,317,033.00 13,317,033.00 -12,592,446.75 5.44 %

Department: 910 - TRANSFER IN

RptType: 3990 - TRANSFERS IN

OPERATING TRANSFERS IN-ARPA RE… 840,000.00 0.00 -840,000.00 0.00 %0.00730-910-399105 840,000.00

TRANSFER IN FROM ROAD & STREET… 277,555.00 0.00 -277,555.00 0.00 %0.00730-910-399205 277,555.00

RptType: 3990 - TRANSFERS IN Total: 0.000.001,117,555.00 1,117,555.00 -1,117,555.00 0.00 %

Department: 910 - TRANSFER IN Total: 0.000.001,117,555.00 1,117,555.00 -1,117,555.00 0.00 %

Revenue Total: 724,586.25361,467.2714,434,588.00 14,434,588.00 -13,710,001.75 5.02 %

Expense

Department: 703 - SEWER

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

ACCOUNTING CLERK 34,269.00 2,614.00 31,655.00 7.63 %1,307.00730-703-431500 34,269.00

PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 56,935.00 4,341.20 52,593.80 7.62 %2,170.60730-703-437049 56,935.00

PUBLIC WORKS SUPERVISOR 60,560.00 4,672.25 55,887.75 7.72 %2,350.25730-703-437050 60,560.00

PW UTILITIES MANAGER 60,981.00 4,769.88 56,211.12 7.82 %2,384.94730-703-437051 60,981.00

PW ADMIN ASSISTANT 62,632.00 5,023.71 57,608.29 8.02 %2,528.73730-703-437055 62,632.00

UTILITY WORKER, JOURNEY 71,964.00 5,327.57 66,636.43 7.40 %3,177.00730-703-437070 71,964.00

UTILITY WORKER II 37,216.00 8,887.42 28,328.58 23.88 %4,443.71730-703-437071 37,216.00

UTILITY WORKER III 146,012.00 2,744.70 143,267.30 1.88 %0.00730-703-437072 146,012.00

SEASONAL HELP 38,600.00 0.00 38,600.00 0.00 %0.00730-703-439011 38,600.00

OVERTIME 10,000.00 302.05 9,697.95 3.02 %61.63730-703-450100 10,000.00

CAREER RECOGNITION PAY 6,148.00 439.60 5,708.40 7.15 %257.33730-703-450500 6,148.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 351,705.00 25,267.38 326,437.62 7.18 %12,903.36730-703-470000 351,705.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 64,389.7631,584.55937,022.00 937,022.00 872,632.24 6.87 %

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL S… 64,000.00 4,656.78 59,343.22 7.28 %4,583.02730-703-500110 64,000.00

OAK LODGE SANITARY DISTRICT 1,193,800.00 122,157.76 1,071,642.24 10.23 %122,157.76730-703-500456 1,193,800.00

WATER ENVIRONMENT SERVICES (… 2,891,161.00 253,844.57 2,637,316.43 8.78 %126,973.40730-703-500458 2,891,161.00

BANK CHARGES 72,500.00 4,496.90 68,003.10 6.20 %2,323.81730-703-520120 72,500.00

OPERATIONS, MAINTENANCE & RE… 100,000.00 3,829.29 96,170.71 3.83 %1,739.24730-703-520130 100,000.00

FLEET FUEL, MAINTENANCE & REPA… 57,800.00 1,935.15 55,864.85 3.35 %1,058.48730-703-520320 57,800.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT 5,000.00 283.16 4,716.84 5.66 %67.58730-703-520400 5,000.00

UTILITY BILLS & POSTAGE 17,500.00 1,430.16 16,069.84 8.17 %712.95730-703-520430 17,500.00

TRAVEL, CONFERENCES & TRAINING 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.00 %0.00730-703-540220 5,000.00

SMALL TOOLS, EQUIPMENT & SAFE… 15,000.00 832.74 14,167.26 5.55 %576.90730-703-540300 15,000.00

DUMPING, HAULING, GARBAGE 8,000.00 0.00 8,000.00 0.00 %0.00730-703-540400 8,000.00

UTILITIES 5,000.00 212.49 4,787.51 4.25 %107.28730-703-560100 5,000.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 393,679.00260,300.424,434,761.00 4,434,761.00 4,041,082.00 8.88 %

3 - 13



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 08/31/2023

10/3/2023 3:23:16 PM Page 14 of 20

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT RESER… 665,000.00 0.00 665,000.00 0.00 %0.00730-703-660100 665,000.00

SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS & PROJEC… 6,648,471.00 2,801.65 6,645,669.35 0.04 %1,903.12730-703-676050 6,648,471.00

RESERVE FROM SDC'S 469,159.00 0.00 469,159.00 0.00 %0.00730-703-678090 469,159.00

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY Total: 2,801.651,903.127,782,630.00 7,782,630.00 7,779,828.35 0.04 %

Department: 703 - SEWER Total: 460,870.41293,788.0913,154,413.00 13,154,413.00 12,693,542.59 3.50 %

Department: 920 - TRANSFER OUT

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT

TRANSFER OUT TO GENERAL FUND 417,900.00 0.00 417,900.00 0.00 %0.00730-920-899100 417,900.00

TRANSFER OUT TO ROAD & STREET … 462,275.00 0.00 462,275.00 0.00 %0.00730-920-899205 462,275.00

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT Total: 0.000.00880,175.00 880,175.00 880,175.00 0.00 %

Department: 920 - TRANSFER OUT Total: 0.000.00880,175.00 880,175.00 880,175.00 0.00 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER

CONTINGENCY FUNDS 400,000.00 0.00 400,000.00 0.00 %0.00730-990-910000 400,000.00

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER Total: 0.000.00400,000.00 400,000.00 400,000.00 0.00 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY Total: 0.000.00400,000.00 400,000.00 400,000.00 0.00 %

Expense Total: 460,870.41293,788.0914,434,588.00 14,434,588.00 13,973,717.59 3.19 %

Fund: 730 - SEWER FUND Surplus (Deficit): 263,715.8467,679.180.00 0.00 263,715.84 0.00 %

3 - 14



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 08/31/2023

10/3/2023 3:23:16 PM Page 15 of 20

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Fund: 740 - WATER FUND

Revenue

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL.

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 6,100,000.00 0.00 -6,100,000.00 0.00 %0.00740-000-309999 6,100,000.00

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL. Total: 0.000.006,100,000.00 6,100,000.00 -6,100,000.00 0.00 %

RptType: 3140 - CHARGES FOR SERVICES

WATER SERVICE REVENUE 6,350,000.00 603,351.92 -5,746,648.08 9.50 %295,775.85740-000-314060 6,350,000.00

WATER SERVICE CONNECTIONS 10,000.00 890.00 -9,110.00 8.90 %890.00740-000-314080 10,000.00

RptType: 3140 - CHARGES FOR SERVICES Total: 604,241.92296,665.856,360,000.00 6,360,000.00 -5,755,758.08 9.50 %

RptType: 3141 - SDC

WATER SDC'S 20,000.00 19,860.80 -139.20 99.30 %19,860.80740-000-314110 20,000.00

SDC Reimbursement Fee 0.00 1,204.20 1,204.20 0.00 %1,204.20740-000-314111 0.00

RptType: 3141 - SDC Total: 21,065.0021,065.0020,000.00 20,000.00 1,065.00 105.33 %

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL Total: 625,306.92317,730.8512,480,000.00 12,480,000.00 -11,854,693.08 5.01 %

Department: 910 - TRANSFER IN

RptType: 3990 - TRANSFERS IN

TRANSFER IN FROM ROAD & STREET… 277,555.00 0.00 -277,555.00 0.00 %0.00740-910-399205 277,555.00

RptType: 3990 - TRANSFERS IN Total: 0.000.00277,555.00 277,555.00 -277,555.00 0.00 %

Department: 910 - TRANSFER IN Total: 0.000.00277,555.00 277,555.00 -277,555.00 0.00 %

Revenue Total: 625,306.92317,730.8512,757,555.00 12,757,555.00 -12,132,248.08 4.90 %

Expense

Department: 704 - WATER

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

ACCOUNTING CLERK 41,123.00 3,136.80 37,986.20 7.63 %1,568.40740-704-431500 41,123.00

PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 56,935.00 4,341.20 52,593.80 7.62 %2,170.60740-704-437049 56,935.00

PUBLIC WORKS SUPERVISOR 62,396.00 4,855.40 57,540.60 7.78 %2,463.04740-704-437050 62,396.00

PW UTILITIES MANAGER 60,981.00 4,732.38 56,248.62 7.76 %2,366.19740-704-437051 60,981.00

PW ADMIN ASSISTANT 62,632.00 5,023.71 57,608.29 8.02 %2,528.73740-704-437055 62,632.00

UTILITY WORKER, JOURNEY 154,764.00 12,708.00 142,056.00 8.21 %6,354.00740-704-437070 154,764.00

UTILITY WORKER II 155,649.00 12,502.06 143,146.94 8.03 %6,251.03740-704-437071 155,649.00

SEASONAL HELP 38,600.00 0.00 38,600.00 0.00 %0.00740-704-439011 38,600.00

OVERTIME 10,000.00 303.26 9,696.74 3.03 %61.63740-704-450100 10,000.00

CAREER RECOGNITION PAY 6,746.00 546.20 6,199.80 8.10 %323.67740-704-450500 6,746.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 370,175.00 28,204.86 341,970.14 7.62 %14,113.37740-704-470000 370,175.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 76,353.8738,200.661,020,001.00 1,020,001.00 943,647.13 7.49 %

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL S… 275,000.00 12,877.85 262,122.15 4.68 %2,233.09740-704-500110 275,000.00

METER READING CONTRACT 64,000.00 4,761.00 59,239.00 7.44 %2,380.50740-704-500240 64,000.00

WHOLESALE WATER 1,272,960.00 141,319.01 1,131,640.99 11.10 %73,075.92740-704-500425 1,272,960.00

BANK CHARGES 72,000.00 4,111.94 67,888.06 5.71 %2,008.83740-704-520120 72,000.00

OPERATIONS, MAINTENANCE & RE… 250,000.00 11,751.76 238,248.24 4.70 %8,575.00740-704-520130 250,000.00

LABORATORY WATER TESTS 40,000.00 0.00 40,000.00 0.00 %0.00740-704-520162 40,000.00

FIRE HYDRANT MAINTENANCE & RE… 25,000.00 0.00 25,000.00 0.00 %0.00740-704-520165 25,000.00

FLEET FUEL, MAINTENANCE & REPA… 45,000.00 2,224.52 42,775.48 4.94 %1,347.84740-704-520320 45,000.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT 6,000.00 316.76 5,683.24 5.28 %101.18740-704-520400 6,000.00

UTILITY BILLS & POSTAGE 17,500.00 1,430.16 16,069.84 8.17 %712.95740-704-520430 17,500.00

TRAVEL, CONFERENCES & TRAINING 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.00 %0.00740-704-540220 5,000.00

SMALL TOOLS, EQUIPMENT & SAFE… 15,000.00 583.07 14,416.93 3.89 %327.16740-704-540300 15,000.00

DUMPING, HAULING, GARBAGE 15,000.00 0.00 15,000.00 0.00 %0.00740-704-540400 15,000.00

UTILITIES 50,000.00 4,112.81 45,887.19 8.23 %2,072.48740-704-560100 50,000.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 183,488.8892,834.952,152,460.00 2,152,460.00 1,968,971.12 8.52 %

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT RESER… 279,000.00 0.00 279,000.00 0.00 %0.00740-704-660100 279,000.00

SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS & PROJEC… 7,018,269.00 0.00 7,018,269.00 0.00 %0.00740-704-676050 7,018,269.00

3 - 15



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 08/31/2023

10/3/2023 3:23:16 PM Page 16 of 20

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

RESERVE FROM SDC'S 657,771.00 0.00 657,771.00 0.00 %0.00740-704-678090 657,771.00

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY Total: 0.000.007,955,040.00 7,955,040.00 7,955,040.00 0.00 %

RptCategory: 70 - DEBT SERVICE

2005 BONDED DEBT/PRINCIPAL 347,000.00 0.00 347,000.00 0.00 %0.00740-704-720040 347,000.00

2005 BONDED DEBT/INTEREST 10,376.00 0.00 10,376.00 0.00 %0.00740-704-730040 10,376.00

RptCategory: 70 - DEBT SERVICE Total: 0.000.00357,376.00 357,376.00 357,376.00 0.00 %

Department: 704 - WATER Total: 259,842.75131,035.6111,484,877.00 11,484,877.00 11,225,034.25 2.26 %

Department: 920 - TRANSFER OUT

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT

TRANSFER OUT TO GENERAL FUND 523,678.00 0.00 523,678.00 0.00 %0.00740-920-899100 523,678.00

TRANSFER OUT TO ROAD & STREET … 349,000.00 0.00 349,000.00 0.00 %0.00740-920-899205 349,000.00

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT Total: 0.000.00872,678.00 872,678.00 872,678.00 0.00 %

Department: 920 - TRANSFER OUT Total: 0.000.00872,678.00 872,678.00 872,678.00 0.00 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER

CONTINGENCY FUNDS 400,000.00 0.00 400,000.00 0.00 %0.00740-990-910000 400,000.00

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER Total: 0.000.00400,000.00 400,000.00 400,000.00 0.00 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY Total: 0.000.00400,000.00 400,000.00 400,000.00 0.00 %

Expense Total: 259,842.75131,035.6112,757,555.00 12,757,555.00 12,497,712.25 2.04 %

Fund: 740 - WATER FUND Surplus (Deficit): 365,464.17186,695.240.00 0.00 365,464.17 0.00 %

3 - 16



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 08/31/2023

10/3/2023 3:23:16 PM Page 17 of 20

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Fund: 750 - STORM WATER FUND

Revenue

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL.

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 1,875,000.00 0.00 -1,875,000.00 0.00 %0.00750-000-309999 1,875,000.00

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL. Total: 0.000.001,875,000.00 1,875,000.00 -1,875,000.00 0.00 %

RptType: 3140 - CHARGES FOR SERVICES

STORM REVENUE 2,010,500.00 163,964.75 -1,846,535.25 8.16 %81,985.37750-000-314060 2,010,500.00

RptType: 3140 - CHARGES FOR SERVICES Total: 163,964.7581,985.372,010,500.00 2,010,500.00 -1,846,535.25 8.16 %

RptType: 3141 - SDC

STORMWATER SDC'S 11,000.00 0.00 -11,000.00 0.00 %0.00750-000-314110 11,000.00

RptType: 3141 - SDC Total: 0.000.0011,000.00 11,000.00 -11,000.00 0.00 %

RptType: 3600 - MISCELLANEOUS

ALL OTHER STORM FUND RESOURC… 187,833.00 0.00 -187,833.00 0.00 %0.00750-000-360000 187,833.00

RptType: 3600 - MISCELLANEOUS Total: 0.000.00187,833.00 187,833.00 -187,833.00 0.00 %

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL Total: 163,964.7581,985.374,084,333.00 4,084,333.00 -3,920,368.25 4.01 %

Department: 910 - TRANSFER IN

RptType: 3990 - TRANSFERS IN

TRANSFER IN FROM ARPA FUND 360,000.00 0.00 -360,000.00 0.00 %0.00750-910-399105 360,000.00

TRANSFER IN FROM ROAD & STREET… 277,555.00 0.00 -277,555.00 0.00 %0.00750-910-399205 277,555.00

RptType: 3990 - TRANSFERS IN Total: 0.000.00637,555.00 637,555.00 -637,555.00 0.00 %

Department: 910 - TRANSFER IN Total: 0.000.00637,555.00 637,555.00 -637,555.00 0.00 %

Revenue Total: 163,964.7581,985.374,721,888.00 4,721,888.00 -4,557,923.25 3.47 %

Expense

Department: 705 - PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

ACCOUNTING CLERK 34,269.00 2,614.00 31,655.00 7.63 %1,307.00750-705-431500 34,269.00

PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 56,935.00 4,341.20 52,593.80 7.62 %2,170.60750-705-437049 56,935.00

PUBLIC WORKS SUPERVISOR 60,560.00 4,630.68 55,929.32 7.65 %2,308.68750-705-437050 60,560.00

PW UTILITIES MANAGER 60,981.00 4,769.84 56,211.16 7.82 %2,384.92750-705-437051 60,981.00

PW ADMIN ASSISTANT 62,632.00 5,023.67 57,608.33 8.02 %2,528.71750-705-437055 62,632.00

UTILITY WORKER, JOURNEY 71,964.00 5,327.56 66,636.44 7.40 %3,177.00750-705-437070 71,964.00

UTILITY WORKER II 112,157.00 5,906.84 106,250.16 5.27 %2,953.42750-705-437071 112,157.00

UTILITY WORKER III 146,012.00 2,744.70 143,267.30 1.88 %0.00750-705-437072 146,012.00

OVERTIME 5,000.00 302.04 4,697.96 6.04 %61.61750-705-450100 5,000.00

CAREER RECOGNITION PAY 6,148.00 439.50 5,708.50 7.15 %257.26750-705-450500 6,148.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 376,348.00 23,990.23 352,357.77 6.37 %12,250.04750-705-470000 376,348.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 60,090.2629,399.24993,006.00 993,006.00 932,915.74 6.05 %

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL S… 44,000.00 3,255.07 40,744.93 7.40 %2,681.35750-705-500110 44,000.00

BANK CHARGES 80,000.00 4,496.89 75,503.11 5.62 %2,323.81750-705-520120 80,000.00

OPERATIONS, MAINTENANCE & RE… 60,000.00 3,273.30 56,726.70 5.46 %1,734.77750-705-520130 60,000.00

FLEET FUEL, MAINTENANCE & REPA… 50,000.00 2,455.79 47,544.21 4.91 %2,455.79750-705-520320 50,000.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT 5,000.00 283.08 4,716.92 5.66 %67.55750-705-520400 5,000.00

UTILITY BILLS & POSTAGE 17,500.00 1,430.61 16,069.39 8.17 %713.17750-705-520430 17,500.00

TRAVEL, CONFERENCES & TRAINING 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.00 %0.00750-705-540220 2,000.00

SMALL TOOLS, EQUIPMENT & SAFE… 6,000.00 832.75 5,167.25 13.88 %576.91750-705-540300 6,000.00

DUMPING, HAULING, GARBAGE 7,500.00 0.00 7,500.00 0.00 %0.00750-705-540400 7,500.00

UTILITIES 2,000.00 101.43 1,898.57 5.07 %51.03750-705-560100 2,000.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 16,128.9210,604.38274,000.00 274,000.00 257,871.08 5.89 %

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT RESER… 215,000.00 0.00 215,000.00 0.00 %0.00750-705-660100 215,000.00

3 - 17



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 08/31/2023

10/3/2023 3:23:16 PM Page 18 of 20

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS & PROJEC… 2,302,281.00 1,221.15 2,301,059.85 0.05 %815.63750-705-676050 2,302,281.00

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY Total: 1,221.15815.632,517,281.00 2,517,281.00 2,516,059.85 0.05 %

Department: 705 - PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR Total: 77,440.3340,819.253,784,287.00 3,784,287.00 3,706,846.67 2.05 %

Department: 920 - TRANSFER OUT

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT

TRANSFER OUT TO GENERAL FUND 427,101.00 0.00 427,101.00 0.00 %0.00750-920-899100 427,101.00

TRANSFER OUT TO ROAD & STREET … 110,500.00 0.00 110,500.00 0.00 %0.00750-920-899205 110,500.00

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT Total: 0.000.00537,601.00 537,601.00 537,601.00 0.00 %

Department: 920 - TRANSFER OUT Total: 0.000.00537,601.00 537,601.00 537,601.00 0.00 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER

CONTINGENCY FUNDS 400,000.00 0.00 400,000.00 0.00 %0.00750-990-910000 400,000.00

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER Total: 0.000.00400,000.00 400,000.00 400,000.00 0.00 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY Total: 0.000.00400,000.00 400,000.00 400,000.00 0.00 %

Expense Total: 77,440.3340,819.254,721,888.00 4,721,888.00 4,644,447.67 1.64 %

Fund: 750 - STORM WATER FUND Surplus (Deficit): 86,524.4241,166.120.00 0.00 86,524.42 0.00 %

3 - 18



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 08/31/2023

10/3/2023 3:23:16 PM Page 19 of 20

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Fund: 801 - MUNICIPAL COURT TRUST FUND

Revenue

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL.

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 40,000.00 0.00 -40,000.00 0.00 %0.00801-000-309999 40,000.00

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL. Total: 0.000.0040,000.00 40,000.00 -40,000.00 0.00 %

RptType: 3260 - FINES AND FORFEITURES

CITY OF GLADSTONE FINES/FEES 710,000.00 40,623.92 -669,376.08 5.72 %20,876.64801-000-326020 710,000.00

CLACKAMAS COUNTY FINES/FEES 34,000.00 2,131.83 -31,868.17 6.27 %1,142.02801-000-326030 34,000.00

STATE OF OREGON FINES/FEES 122,000.00 8,429.23 -113,570.77 6.91 %4,217.11801-000-326040 122,000.00

RESTITUTION 3,000.00 -100.00 -3,100.00 3.33 %0.00801-000-326050 3,000.00

BOND 1,000.00 1,935.27 935.27 193.53 %1,040.64801-000-326060 1,000.00

RptType: 3260 - FINES AND FORFEITURES Total: 53,020.2527,276.41870,000.00 870,000.00 -816,979.75 6.09 %

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL Total: 53,020.2527,276.41910,000.00 910,000.00 -856,979.75 5.83 %

Revenue Total: 53,020.2527,276.41910,000.00 910,000.00 -856,979.75 5.83 %

Expense

Department: 220 - COURT

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CITY OF GLADSTONE FINES & FEES 710,000.00 48,979.44 661,020.56 6.90 %19,747.28801-220-500500 710,000.00

CLACKAMAS COUNTY FINES & FEES 34,000.00 2,429.32 31,570.68 7.15 %989.81801-220-500510 34,000.00

STATE OF OREGON FINES & FEES 122,000.00 9,862.98 112,137.02 8.08 %4,212.12801-220-500520 122,000.00

RESTITUTION 3,000.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.00 %0.00801-220-500530 3,000.00

BOND - COURT 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00 %0.00801-220-500540 1,000.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 61,271.7424,949.21870,000.00 870,000.00 808,728.26 7.04 %

Department: 220 - COURT Total: 61,271.7424,949.21870,000.00 870,000.00 808,728.26 7.04 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER

CONTINGENCY FUNDS 40,000.00 0.00 40,000.00 0.00 %0.00801-990-910000 40,000.00

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER Total: 0.000.0040,000.00 40,000.00 40,000.00 0.00 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY Total: 0.000.0040,000.00 40,000.00 40,000.00 0.00 %

Expense Total: 61,271.7424,949.21910,000.00 910,000.00 848,728.26 6.73 %

Fund: 801 - MUNICIPAL COURT TRUST FUND Surplus (Deficit): -8,251.492,327.200.00 0.00 -8,251.49 0.00 %

Report Surplus (Deficit): -1,121,551.36 -2,076,390.340.00 0.00 -2,076,390.34 0.00 %

3 - 19



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 08/31/2023

10/3/2023 3:23:16 PM Page 20 of 20

Fund Summary

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)Fund
Period

Activity
Current

Total Budget
Original

Total Budget

100 - GENERAL FUND -1,894,174.53-776,027.130.00 0.00 -1,894,174.53

105 - AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN RESERVE FUND -19,588.800.000.00 0.00 -19,588.80

205 - ROAD AND STREET FUND -261,287.87-91,431.210.00 0.00 -261,287.87

228 - POLICE LEVY FUND -80,406.91-46,026.290.00 0.00 -80,406.91

229 - FIRE LEVY FUND 1,290.66658.730.00 0.00 1,290.66

390 - URBAN RENEWAL FUND -529,675.83-506,593.200.00 0.00 -529,675.83

730 - SEWER FUND 263,715.8467,679.180.00 0.00 263,715.84

740 - WATER FUND 365,464.17186,695.240.00 0.00 365,464.17

750 - STORM WATER FUND 86,524.4241,166.120.00 0.00 86,524.42

801 - MUNICIPAL COURT TRUST FUND -8,251.492,327.200.00 0.00 -8,251.49

Report Surplus (Deficit): -1,121,551.36 -2,076,390.340.00 0.00 -2,076,390.34

3 - 20



4



Check Date Check No. Vendor Amount Line Item Description

08/01/2023 93673 United States Postal Service 1,279.09              Newsletter Postage - Admin
08/02/2023 93674 - 93678 Utility Billing Refund Checks 681.14                 Utility Billing Refund Checks - PW
08/04/2023 417 Amy Lindgren Law, LLC 3,500.00              Municipal Judge - CT
08/04/2023 418 Beery Elsner & Hammond LLP 4,913.00              Legal Fees - Admin
08/04/2023 419 Ian Jeffrey Slavin 2,400.00              Indigent Defense - CT
08/04/2023 420 Lundquist, Kyndre 3,500.00              Prosecutor Services - CT
08/04/2023 421 Metereaders 2,380.50              Meter Reading Service - PW
08/04/2023 422 Nancy McDonald 6,195.00              HR Consultant Services - Admin
08/04/2023 423 Rotator, LLC 5,000.00              Mural Project - Admin
08/04/2023 93679 Aramark 203.24                 Mat Rental - PW
08/04/2023 93680 Backflow Management Inc 78.00                    Backflow Testing Letters - PW
08/04/2023 93681 Brown & Caldwell 2,133.75              Professional Fees - PW
08/04/2023 93682 Clackamas County Finance Department 1,760.53              Signal Maint/Work Crew/Ammo - PW/PD
08/04/2023 93683 Gladstone Oak Grove Rotary Foundation 360.00                 Annual Memberships - Admin/PD
08/04/2023 93684 Integrity Staffing, Inc. 2,260.80              Temporary Staffing - PW
08/04/2023 93685 Lane Council of Governments 15.00                    Background Checks - Admin
08/04/2023 93686 League of Oregon Cities 1,610.00              Conference Reg. - Admin/Council
08/04/2023 93687 Les Schwab Tires 2,279.15              Vehicle Maintenance - PD
08/04/2023 93688 Northwest Natural Gas 304.67                 Natural Gas Usage - All Depts.
08/04/2023 93689 Oak Lodge Water Services 1,345.63              Water Purchases - PW
08/04/2023 93690 Oregonian Media Group 473.32                 Public Hearing Notification - Admin
08/04/2023 93691 Paramount Pest Control Inc 385.00                 Pest Control - PW
08/04/2023 93692 Passport To Languages 19.25                    Interpreting Service - CT
08/04/2023 93693 Philadelphia Insurance Companies 301.00                 Insurance on Volunteers - Admin
08/04/2023 93694 Portland General Electric 7,856.21              Electric Usage - All Depts
08/04/2023 93695 Ritz Safety 3,267.59              Training/Safety Supplies - PW
08/04/2023 93696 Stericycle 169.91                 Shredding Service - PD
08/04/2023 93697 Verizon Wireless 3,178.24              Cell Phone Usage - All Depts.
08/04/2023 93698 Workplace Results LLC 787.50                 Professional Fees - Admin
08/04/2023 93699 WorkSAFE Service Inc 60.00                    Drug Testing - Admin
08/09/2023 424 Amazon Capital Services 77.56                    Office Supplies - PW
08/09/2023 425 Daily Journal of Commerce 68.85                    Project Bid Announcement - PW
08/09/2023 426 Jill Tate 345.00                 Transcription - Admin
08/09/2023 427 Smith-Wagar Brucker Consulting Inc. 10,263.75            Financial Services - Admin
08/09/2023 93700 BMS Technologies 2,139.07              Utility Bill Printing/Mailing
08/09/2023 93701 Buel's Impressions Printing 304.00                 Business Card/Form Printing - PD
08/09/2023 93702 Cascade Form Systems 85.75                    Business Card Printing - Admin
08/09/2023 93703 Cintas First Aid Lockbox 49.00                    Water Cooler Rental - Admin
08/09/2023 93704 City of Oregon City 506.50                 GIS Services - PW
08/09/2023 93705 Comcast 52.55                    Digital TV Receivers - PD
08/09/2023 93706 Ferguson Enterprises 976.97                 Water System Parts - PW
08/09/2023 93707 The Garden Corner 967.20                 Flower Basket Watering - Admin
08/09/2023 93708 Gold Wrench 953.85                 Vehicle Maintenance - PD
08/09/2023 93709 Integrity Staffing, Inc. 2,034.72              Temporary Staffing - PW
08/09/2023 93710 Laserwerks 17.00                    Name Badges - Admin
08/09/2023 93711 Portland General Electric 6,731.18              Street Light Electricity - PW
08/09/2023 93712 Sign Guy 720.00                 Vehicle Graphics - PD
08/09/2023 93713 Stein Oil Co. Inc. 4,784.79              Gasoline - PD/PW/SC
08/09/2023 93714 Water Environment Services 128,434.37          Sewer Billing - PW
08/09/2023 93715 Mackin's Canby Auto Body 1,000.00              Vehicle Repair Deductible - PD
08/17/2023 428 3J Consulting, Inc. 4,246.00              Planning Services - Admin
08/17/2023 429 Amazon Capital Services 117.63                 Office/Summer Rec Supplies - Admin/CT/PW
08/17/2023 430 BridgePay Network Solutions, LLC 191.00                 Utility Billing Online Pmt Fees - PW
08/17/2023 431 Ian Jeffrey Slavin 650.00                 Indigent Defense - CT
08/17/2023 93716 American Society Composers & Conductors 418.25                 Community Festival Costs - Admin
08/17/2023 93717 Bravo Land Care & Maintenance 945.00                 Landscape Maintenance - PW
08/17/2023 93718 The Campbell Course 200.00                 Rental Deposit - Clack. Cities Dinner - Admin
08/17/2023 93719 Cintas First Aid Lockbox 733.73                 First Aid Suplies/Water Coolers - All Depts

CHECK REGISTER FOR AUGUST 2023

4 - 1



Check Date Check No. Vendor Amount Line Item Description
CHECK REGISTER FOR AUGUST 2023

08/17/2023 93720 CivicPlus, LLC 3,677.90              Web Platform Annual Pmt - IT
08/17/2023 93721 Clackamas Community College 500.00                 Watershed/Stormwater Education - PW
08/17/2023 93722 Clackamas County Clerk 93.00                    Recording - Admin
08/17/2023 93723 Clackamas County Finance Department 349.82                 Ammo/Signal Maint. - PD/PW
08/17/2023 93724 Cummins Sales and Service 5,427.30              Generator Mainenance/Repairs -PW
08/17/2023 93725 The Garden Corner 1,520.00              Flower Baskets/Installation/Delivery - Admin
08/17/2023 93726 Grainger 28.62                    Safety Glasses - PW
08/17/2023 93727 Integrity Staffing, Inc. 4,069.44              Temporary Staffing - PW
08/17/2023 93728 Knife River Corporation NW 46,110.00            Pavement Repair Project - PW
08/17/2023 93729 Kristi Walls 167.50                 Training Per Diem - PD
08/17/2023 93730 Lake Oswego Police Department 55.00                    Metro Law Enforcement Dinner - PD
08/17/2023 93731 One Call Concepts Inc 67.20                    Utility Locates - PW
08/17/2023 93732 Oregonian Media Group 1,116.77              Public Notifications - Admin
08/17/2023 93733 School Specialty, LLC 13,048.80            Computer Tables - Community Center
08/17/2023 93734 Sign Guy 670.00                 Vehicle Graphics - PD
08/17/2023 93735 Sonya Norton 200.00                 Comm. Ctr. Deposit Refund - SC
08/17/2023 93736 SymbolArts, LLC 170.00                 Employee Recognition - PD
08/17/2023 93737 Trio Community Meals 679.22                 Nutrition Program Supplies - SC
08/17/2023 93738 Two Chicks and a Rooster 427.50                 Deposit - Clack. Cities Dinner - Admin
08/17/2023 93739 Tyler Technologies, Inc. 2,901.95              Annual Software Fee - Admin
08/17/2023 93740 Walter E. Nelson Co. 571.28                 Park/Janitorial Supplies - PW
08/17/2023 93741 Wire Works LLC 6,752.13              Vehicle Modification - PD
08/24/2023 434 8x8, Inc. 1,788.99              Phone Service - IT
08/24/2023 435 Amazon Capital Services 134.97                 Office/Summer Rec Supplies - Admin/PW
08/24/2023 436 Daily Journal of Commerce 324.00                 RFP Publications - PW
08/24/2023 437 Metereaders 2,380.50              Meter Reading Service - PW
08/24/2023 438 Quadient Finance, USA 1,000.00              Postage - All Depts
08/24/2023 439 Satcom Global Ltd. 42.75                    Satellite Phone Access - PD
08/24/2023 93742 Allstream 186.23                 Land Lines - PW
08/24/2023 93743 American Medical Response 600.00                 Blood Draws - PD
08/24/2023 93744 Backflow Management Inc 52.00                    Backflow Testing Letters - PW
08/24/2023 93745 Buel's Impressions Printing 224.00                 Form Printing - PD
08/24/2023 93746 Canon Financial Services, Inc. 1,443.26              Copier Leases/Usage - IT
08/24/2023 93747 Cathy Rowe Arts 4,998.28              Mural Project - Admin
08/24/2023 93748 Clackamas 800 Radio Group 55,919.00            Radio Use/FY 23 Cost Sharing - PD
08/24/2023 93749 CNA Insurance 10,515.00            Builders Risk Policy - Admin
08/24/2023 93750 Cumming Management Group, Inc. 1,232.50              Professional Fees - PW
08/24/2023 93751 Elite Window Tinting, LLC 773.00                 Vehicle Modification - PD
08/24/2023 93752 FlashAlert Newswire 484.00                 Emerg. Flash Notice Subscription - Admin/PD
08/24/2023 93753 General Tree Service 128.00                 Tree Maintenance - PW
08/24/2023 93754 Gladstone Municipal Court 25.00                    Reimburse Misposted check - Admin
08/24/2023 93755 Hadronex 2,402.00              Rain Data Tracking Device/Software - PW
08/24/2023 93756 Integrity Staffing, Inc. 3,391.20              Temporary Staffing - PW
08/24/2023 93757 League of Oregon Cities 59.00                    Training Registration - Admin
08/24/2023 93758 Les Schwab Tires 606.71                 Vehicle Maintenance - PD
08/24/2023 93759 North Clackamas County Water 66,897.46            Water Purchases - PW
08/24/2023 93760 Northwest Success, Inc. 2,253.31              Janitorial Service - PW
08/24/2023 93761 Oregon DMV 12.00                    Driving Records - PD
08/24/2023 93762 Oregon Economic Development Association 375.00                 Annual Membership - Admin
08/24/2023 93763 Oregon Patrol Service 5,193.29              Security - PD/CT/Admin
08/24/2023 93764 Pacific Mobile Structures, Inc. 2,332.00              Mobile Office Rent/Relocation - PW
08/24/2023 93765 UB Customer Overpayment Refund 2,000.00              Overpayment Refund - PW
08/24/2023 93766 Platt Electric Supply 551.23                 Repair Parts - PW
08/24/2023 93767 Sisul Engineering 2,025.00              Professional Fees - PW
08/24/2023 93768 Stein Oil Co. Inc. 4,962.12              Gasoline - PD/PW/SC
08/24/2023 93769 T-Mobile 83.75                    Cell Phone Usage - PW
08/24/2023 93770 TransUnion Risk and Alternative 75.00                    Data Research - PD
08/24/2023 93771 TriTech Software Systems 9,134.31              Annual APS Software Fee - IT

4 - 2



Check Date Check No. Vendor Amount Line Item Description
CHECK REGISTER FOR AUGUST 2023

08/24/2023 93772 United Rentals Inc 1,080.31              Forklift Rental - PW
08/24/2023 93773 Wire Works LLC 2,799.37              Vehicle Modification - PD
08/25/2023 93774 Roberson Motors 42,182.38            2023 Dodge Durango - PD
08/29/2023 93774 Payroll Check 425.00                 Payroll Check
08/30/2023 93375 United States Postal Service 1,165.50              Newsletter Postage (Aug 23)
08/30/2023 93376 United States Postal Service 1,259.80              Newsletter Postage (Balance due FY 22-23)
08/30/2023 440 CIS Trust 65,725.17            Monthly Health Insurance
08/30/2023 441 HRA VEBA Plan 3,552.20              Employer VEBA contribution
08/30/2023 442 MissionSquare Retirement 15,443.04            Voluntary Payroll Deferred Comp
08/30/2023 93778 Axa Equi-Vest 8,894.12              Voluntary Payroll Deferred Comp
08/30/2023 93779 Clackamas Community Federal Credit Union 1,064.71              GPA Union Dues
08/30/2023 93780 Equitable 1,463.22              Non-PERS Retirment Pmt
08/30/2023 93781 Equitable Financial Life Insurance Co. 86.00                    Non-PERS Retirment Pmt
08/30/2023 93782 Oregon AFSCME Council #75 1,184.97              AFSCME Union Dues
08/30/2023 93783 Oregon Department of Justice/Child Support 286.00                 Child Support

Total August 2023 Payments 646,531.32$        

4 - 3





5



Attorneys: July, 2023 Aug, 2023 Sept, 2023 Oct, 2023 Nov, 2023 Dec, 2023 Totals

City Charter -$                 -$                 

Elections 132.50             132.50             

Finance -                   -                   

General 199.50             199.50             

          Meeting Attendance -                   -                   

Governance/City Council 655.50             655.50             

          Meeting Attendance 1,852.50         1,852.50          

Intergovernmental 57.00               57.00               

          Meeting Attendance -                   -                   

Land Use/ Community Development 1,054.50         1,054.50          

          Meeting Attendance -                   -                   

Parks & Recreation 28.50               28.50               

Personnel/Labor -                   -                   

          GPA -                   -                   

         City Administration -                   -                   

          Personnel Handbook -                   -                   

          Meeting Attendance -                   -                   

Public Records & Meetings 399.00             399.00             

Public Safety 199.50             199.50             

Public Works 464.50             464.50             

Public Works Facility Project 737.00             737.00             

Real Property Transactions 57.00               57.00               

Risk Management/Litigation 28.50               28.50               

Rights of Way-Telecommunications 4,210.50         4,210.50          

Urban Renewal -                   

Total 10,076.00$     -$               -$               -$                -$               -$               10,076.00$     

ATTORNEY CHARGES

Attorneys: Jan, 2024 Feb, 2024 Mar, 2024 Apr, 2024 May, 2024 June, 2024

Totals for

 Year

City Charter -$                 

Elections 132.50             

Finance -                   

General 199.50             

          Meeting Attendance -                   

Governance/City Council 655.50             

          Meeting Attendance 1,852.50          

Intergovernmental 57.00               

         Meeting Attendance -                   

Land Use/ Community Development 1,054.50          

          Meeting Attendance -                   

Parks & Recreation 28.50               

Personnel/Labor -                   

          GPA -                   

         City Administration -                   

          Personnel Handbook -                   

          Meeting Attendance -                   

Public Records & Meetings 399.00             

Public Safety 199.50             

Public Works 464.50             

Public Works Facility Project 737.00             

Real Property Transactions 57.00               

Risk Management/Litigation 28.50               

Rights of Way-Telecommunications 4,210.50          

Urban Renewal -                   

Total -$                 -$               -$               -$                -$               -$               10,076.00$     

5 - 1





6



 

Public Works 
 

Staff Report for   

September 2023 
 

       Report Date : September 30, 2023 
To : Jacque M. Betz, City Administrator 

Copy : Mayor and City Council 
From : Darren Caniparoli, Public Works Director 

 

 

PARKS:  

 Trash pick-up in all parks two days a week.  

 Park irrigation has been turned off for the season. 

 Mowing parks weekly:  Irrigated fields are mowed weekly; non-irrigated fields are mowed bi-weekly. 

 Detail work within our parks has been a priority.  Edging and trimming of flowerbeds, trimming and cutting back plants, 

which need attention.  

 

 

While Graffitti continues to be an ongoing issue citywide, 

parks staff came across this fun artistic expression down at 

the bridge bulkhead.  This location is regularly tagged with 

far less appealing art but Tigger is a welcome addition to this 

area, for now anyways!  

 

Fall is here, with that, we have some new, and surprising 

items that we find being used to make messes in our 

bathrooms.  Pumpkins being exploded inside the bathrooms, 

makes a huge mess, luckily as of yet the damage has been 

just the mess but with the explosives being used eventually 

more costly damage could result.   

 

We continue to see large amounts of drug paraphernalia in 

our bathrooms, crewmembers have to dispose of these 

items daily.     

 

 

 

 

6 - 1



 

 
 

Pumpkin explosion @ park bathrooms 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Drug paraphernalia 

in park bathrooms 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Drug paraphernalia and garbage removed 

from our park bathrooms 

 

 

 

 

 
6 - 2



 

 
Crewmember Chris Mott works to make repairs to 

the boat dock at Meldrum Bar Park.  The City 

maintains the boat ramp, dock and bathroom facility 

for our boaters who utilize Meldrum Bar Park for 

access to the waterway.   

 

Did you know the City of Gladstone receives 

additional funding based on a percentage of funds 

spent for repairs and ongoing maintenance in the 

form of a grant from Oregon State Marine Board 

(OSMB)?  Time and cost associated with repairs 

and ongoing maintenance are tracked over two year 

spans, which are then reported to the (OSMB) for 

funding of the Maintenance Assistance Grant 

Program (MAG).   

 

 

 

STREETS: 

 
Skin patching continues when weather allows, the streets 

crew is making progress with the long list of areas in town that 

need attention.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Crews were able to install the flashing beacon in the school zone near Kraxberger 

Middle School; the original beacon was damaged in a single vehicle accident 

several months ago. 

 

 
 

 6 - 3



 

 

 

FACILITIES:  

  

• Twice a month Facility Inspections continue 

• Completed several work orders at City facilities, hanging artwork, signage, bulletin boards, etc.  

 

 

 

 

Public Works staff has worked with multiple vendors to complete a      

door and blind project at the Gladstone Community Center.  The project 

is complete with the installation of new remote blinds and fire rated doors 

for the office spaces in the center.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

WATER: 
 

• Read and reported Master Meter reads weekly. 

• Change Charts at Webster Pump Station weekly. 

• Test Chlorine Residuals at least 2 times per week. 

• Routine maintenance for the pump station control panels 

and auto dialer.  

• Routine Water Samples as required. 

• Door Hangers and water meter shut offs for non-

payment.  

• Map updates, utility locates.  

• Leak detected at The Sommerset Lodge, Turned out to 

be an irrigation leak for the complex. 

• Water leak repair at 7504/7506 Springhill Dr.  

 

 
6 - 4



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

The Water Dept. had what appeared to be a small water leak 

that turned into a substantial job that included two taps that 

serve three businesses and one residence.  The repair took 

crews several days to complete with challenges due to the 

location and other ongoing construction projects in the area.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Crewmember Eric Fanning using the tapping machine to re-tap the 
water main for the new service lines on Portland Ave.  (Pictured right) 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

SEWER: 
• Utilized the new camera truck to perform CCTV inspection of a troubled sewer line on E. Clarendon St.  

• Crews are working on jetting known sewer line hotspots within the city. 

6 - 5



 

 

 
 

 

Utility Journey Dan Ori, is working to familiarize himself with the new CCTV 

truck the City recently purchased from WES.  This new to us piece of 

equipment will be a game-changer for the Public Works Dept. and we are 

excited to get it up and running.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

STORM:  

 

• Finished cleaning stormwater catch basins 

• Jetted the troubled storm lines ahead of the rainy season 

• Cleaned key storm system manholes 

• CCTV performed on a storm line on River rd. @ the Nissan Car lot 

• City wide street sweeping performed per schedule. 

 
 
 
 
The Barclay Stormline project is coming up on the end of its 
maintenance bond period requiring an inspection of the projects 
main components.  Crews jetted, cleaned and CCTV’d the new 
stormline on Barclay from Portland Ave to Watts Ave.   
 
During the inspection, deficiencies were found.  Public Works 
administration is working to extend the maintenance bond with the 
contractor until the work can be done to correct the deficiencies that 
were identified.  
 

 

 

 6 - 6



 

 

ADMINISTRATION: 
   

• Clackamas River Basin Council conducted an invasive species treatment at Cross Park as part of the Cross Park 

Restoration Project. 

• Worked with Jim Smith Excavating to complete the Oatfield Rd at Hereford St pressure reducing valve replacement. 

• Worked with Sisul Engineering to complete Barclay Ave Project as builts. 

• Working on preparing stormwater MS4 annual report to submit to DEQ. 

• Working with North Clackamas Watersheds Council to coordinate May-October temperature monitoring on Rinearson 

Creek adjacent to the Olsen Wetlands and at Meldrum Bar Park. 

• Working with Backflow Management Incorporated (BMI) to complete water system Lead and Copper Rule sampling. 

• Working on completing Gladstone’s Clackamas County Multi-Jurisdiction Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan Addendum. 

• Clackamas County Building Permit plan reviews, approvals and release letters. 

• Filed the bi-annual Maintenance Assistance Grant Program (MAG) with Oregon State Marine Board.   

 

  
 

 
“Just one small positive thought in the morning can change your whole day” 

        ~Dalai Lama 

6 - 7



6 - 8



6 - 9



6 - 10



6 - 11



6 - 12



6 - 13



6 - 14



6 - 15



6 - 16



6 - 17



6 - 18



6 - 19



6 - 20



6 - 21



6 - 22



6 - 23



6 - 24



6 - 25



6 - 26



6 - 27



6 - 28



 

City of Gladstone Monthly Planning Report 

September 2023 
PUBLIC CONTACTS/PLANNING ACTIONS 

 

CUSTOMER 
CONTACT/ 

 

Jan 

 

Feb 

 

Mar 

 
April 

 
May 

 
June 

 
July 

 
Aug 

 
Sept 

 
Oct 

 
Nov 

 
Dec 

YEAR-
TO-DATE 

TOTALS Planning 
Actions 

Customer 
Service 
Counter 
Contacts 

 
1 

 
1 

 
1 

 
1 

 
0 

 
1 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
5 

Customer 
phone/email 
Contacts 

 
48 

 
37 

 
31 

 
43 

 
34 

 
27 

 
20 

 
32 

 
42 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

314 

Building 
Permits with 
Land Use 
Review 

 

4 

 

6 

 

2 

 

4 

 

8 

 

4 

 

2 

 

6 

 

9 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

45 

Code 
Compliance 
Review 

1 1 1 0 0 0 1 0 0    4 

Pre-application 
Conferences 

1 0 1 0 0 0 1 1 1    5 

Administrative 
Decisions 

2 2 0 0 0 0 2 0 1    7 

 

 
PLANNING COMMISSION ACTIONS/DECISIONS 

• No Planning Commission in September 2023 
 

CITY COUNCIL LAND USE ACTIONS/DECISIONS 

• Annexation Code Update- Council Approved 

 

PRE-APPLICATION CONFERENCES 

• PAC 23-04 Toyota of Gladstone Expansion 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE PERMITS 

• Approval of sign replacement at Subway 

 

 

 

 6 - 29



BUILDING PERMITS WITH LAND USE REVIEW 

    

Date Address Permit # Description 
09/06/23 18595 Portland Ave B0203923 Gladstone Public Works Building (approved by 

PC in April 2023) Re-review. Conditions met. 

09/06/23 18355 Cornell Pl B0457023 Replace and expand existing deck attached to 

single-household detached residence. All 

setbacks and applicable standards met. 

09/06/23 6665 Devonshire Dr B0456823 Addition of a deck attached to single-

household detached residence. All setbacks 

and applicable standards met. 

09/13/23 

09/20/23 

275 Ipswich Street B0210923 Triplex addition to site with 1 dwelling unit (total of 

4 dwelling units/quadplex) 

Middle Housing- no design review required.  

Setbacks and maximum height met.  No trees to 

be removed.  Parking not required because site is 

within ½ mile of McLoughlin (high frequency 

transit) per CFEC rules.  However, if parking is 

provided, it must meet city standards.  Returned 

to applicant to revise parking to either meet city 

standards or remove one or more spaces on 

09/13/23. Applicant revised to meet standards 

and was approved on 09/20/23. 

09/13/23 19505 McLoughlin 

Blvd 

B0198123 Gladstone Nissan Service Bay Expansion 

(approved by PC in February 2023)- addition to 

service bay in rear of property and a small shed 

to side of existing building.  Small landscaping 

change.  All PC Conditions met with submittal. 

09/18/23 

09/27/23 

19405 McLoughlin 

Blvd 

B0194023 Mazda of Gladstone addition. Approved by 

Planning Commission in March 2023. Submitted 

building permit complies with approval. 

09/27/23 
430 High Court  

B0506123 Addition to an existing single-household 

detached residence which meets all setbacks  

and other dimensional standards of the R-7.2 

zoning district. 

 

FUTURE ITEMS/PROPERTY UPDATES 
 

Date Topic 

10/17/23 

 

10/24/23 

Planning Commission Public Hearing- FIRE Warehouse Building Design Review at 
6075 Duniway Avenue 

City Council Work Session- Updating Home Occupation Code Language (GMC 
Chapter 17.78) 

  

 
 

Page 2 6 - 30



 

 GLADSTONE MUNICIPAL COURT FROM SEPTEMBER 2023 
 

General Court Information from September 2023 
 

 40 traffic citations filed  
 59 violations disposed 
 7 misdemeanors filed  
 11 misdemeanors disposed 
 7 payment agreements entered 
 21 warrants were issued 
 31 payment reminders were mailed to defendants 
 33 driver’s licenses were requested suspended  
 17 driver’s licenses were released 
 44 violations were sent to collections 
 180 cases were sent to the Department of Revenue 
 0 Jury trial was held 
 $20,765.00 in violation fees assessed 
 $23,599.95 in violation fees paid 
 $10, 323.80 in misdemeanor fees assessed 
 $7,261.55 in misdemeanor fees paid 
 $316.80 collection with Department of Revenue 
 $12,133.08 collected with The Western Agency  

 

 

Tr
af

fic
 C

ite
s I

ss
ue

d 
20

21
 

Tr
af

fic
 C

ite
s I

ss
ue

d 
20

22
 

Tr
af

fic
 C

ite
s I

ss
ue

d 
20

23
 

Tr
af

fic
 V

io
l D

isp
 2

02
1 

Tr
af

fic
 V

io
l D

isp
 2

02
2 

Tr
af

fic
 V

io
l D

isp
 2

02
3 

M
isd

. I
ss

ue
d 

20
21

 

M
isd

. I
ss

ue
d 

20
22

 

M
Isd

. I
ss

ue
d 

20
23

 

M
isd

. D
isp

. 2
02

1 

M
isd

. D
isp

. 2
02

2 

M
Isd

. D
isp

. 2
02

3 

Pa
rk

in
g 

20
21

 

Pa
rk

in
g 

20
22

 

Pa
rk

in
g 

20
23

 

Jan 96 78 120 197 97 132 6 2 2 14 3 10 3 0 1 
Feb 49 86 64 117 115 173 5 13 9 8 8 6 2 0 1 
Mar 157 62 129 87 122 92 6 3 3 10 8 6 3 1 21 
Apr 107 118 84 137 93 166 6 13 8 6 2 8 8 3 4 
May 92 76 69 173 189 109 5 4 10 6 9 9 9 40 14 
Jun 177 118 64 93 150 122 5 13 10 7 8 12 49 13 3 
Jul 146 42 61 254 160 111 21 2 11 4 9 13 45 61 7 
Aug 101 37 59 199 111 99 7 16 12 10 12 10 19 21 6 
Sep 127 35 40 144 76 59 7 5 7 7 8 11 12 5 17 
Oct 55 37  199 32  2 4  10 3  4 5  
Nov 70 67  87 64  8 4  3 9  8 2  
Dec 55 99  85 62  0 4  7 3  1 0  
Total 1232 855 690 1772 1271 1063 78 83 72 92 82 85 163 151 7412,133.08 

 
 
 

6 - 31



 

 GLADSTONE MUNICIPAL COURT FROM SEPTEMBER 2023 
 

TRAFFIC FINE & FEES ASSESSED AND PAID BY YEAR 

 
 

Tr
af

fic
 F

ee
s 

A
ss

es
se

d 
20

21
 

 
Tr

af
fic

 F
ee

s 
A

ss
es

se
d 

20
22

 

Tr
af

fic
 F

ee
s 

A
ss

es
se

d 
20

23
 

 
Tr

af
fic

 F
ee

s 
Pa

id
 2

02
1 

 
Tr

af
fic

 F
ee

s 
Pa

id
 2

02
2 

Tr
af

fic
 F

ee
s 

Pa
id

 2
02

3 

Jan 51,046.00 35,192.50 39,830.00 16,230.42 18,573.88 24,445.59 
Feb 31,940.00 30,750.00 58,120.00 32,689.75 25,724.67 19,848.78 
Mar 22,844.00 33,126.10 22,835.00 16,401.78 36,100.00 21,799.95 
Apr 39,964.84 28,805.00 50,087.50 40,979.85 26,349.01 45,057.40 
May 50,745.00 57,275.00 37,620.00 22,791.29 27,039.72 25,258.81 
Jun 28,460.00 38,788.00 39,330.00 23,934.76 42,927.32 29,711.23 
July 22,818.60 51,636.25 36,920.00 43,103.86 24,562.98 21,100.71 
Aug 53,950.00 28,160.00 33,645.00 26,648.20 25,312.14 21,492.13 
Sept 44,225.00 31,143.00 20,765.00 25,539.13 23,137.49 23,599.95 
Oct 47,026.00 24,148.77  28,491.79 9,505.00  
Nov 26,505.00 17,975.00  21,086.93 20,958.48  
Dec 30,290.00 16,775.00  17,573.05 28,268.41  
       
Total $449,814.44 $393,774.62 $339,152.50 $315,470.81 $308,459.10 $232,314.55 

 
MISDEAMNOR FINE & FEES ASSESSED AND PAID BY YEAR 

 

 
M

isd
em

ea
no

r 
Fe

es
 A

ss
es

se
d 

20
21

 

 
M

isd
em

ea
no

r 
Fe

es
 A

ss
es

se
d 

20
22

 

M
isd

em
ea

no
r 

Fe
es

 A
ss

es
se

d 
20

23
 

 
M

isd
em

ea
no

r 
Fe

es
 P

ai
d 

20
21

 

 
M

isd
em

ea
no

r 
Fe

es
 P

ai
d 

20
22

 

M
isd

em
ea

no
r 

Fe
es

 P
ai

d 
20

23
 

 

Jan 13,698.48 2,136.00 14,109.00 7,346.08 3,771.92 2,944.52 
Feb 5,511.00 6,511.00 10,168.00 5,267.95 10,412.41 5,025.10 
Mar 4,308.00 5,831.62 6,775.00 10,012.54 6,955.75 4,709.73 
Apr 4,128.28 963.00 12,564.00 14,939.91 6,962.43 10,229.69 
May 4,737.00 7,062.00 5,293.92 5,646.16 1,841.15 8,143.54 
Jun 9,960.01 7,183.00 9,794.00 5.179.63 9,152.68 6,316.30 
July 4,381.00 7,921.38 12,359.10 6,741.67 3,411.36 3,803.50 
Aug 14,716.00 8,991.00 13,131.75 10,463.60 2,149.64 4,873.64 
Sept 30,584.00 6,868.00 10,323.80 6,507.01 2,668.68 7,261.55 
Oct 5,546.00 4,155.73  9,914.75 6,588.00  
Nov 5,463.00 8,535.00  5,557.93 3,654.71  
Dec 3,786.00 2,580.00  1,834.12 2,552.88  
       
Total $106,818.77 $68,737.73 $94,518.57 $89,411.35 $60,121.61 $53,307.57 

 

6 - 32



1   Senior Center September Monthly Report 2023 
 

Monthly Report Date:  September 2023 

To:  City Administrator, Jacque Betz 

From:  Community Services Manager, Tiffany Kirkpatrick, MA 

 

Current Staffing:  1.) Full-time Manager   2.) Full-time Office/Program Assistant II.   3.) Full-time Temporary Nutrition 

Assistant     4.) 25hr/wk Tram Driver 

Services we provide; The center captured 6 Info and Assistance calls coming in about inquiries regarding program/service 

needs, transportation, follow-up etc. The center handled 5 reassurance calls out into the community to assist 

participants, gather resource info to assist, follow-up with other organizations/businesses that provide services. As well 

as 5 case management, calls to direct plan, support and assist our senior participants navigate the system. 

Guest Attendance 

Total number of participants/guests, 575 this month  

Food Program/Home Deliveries and Volunteers 

The center continues to have a highly active volunteer staff who have helped us serve food in and out of the center. A 

total of 270  in-dining meals were served to our guests/participants. 

We delivered_1594  Homebound meals to Gladstone community members. 

Over the month, 180 food boxes were sourced, prepped, and delivered. 

We reported 485 volunteer hours over the month, and 3 new volunteers. 

We total 135 active volunteers. 

September HIGHLIGHTS 

We shared, as required by our grantee Kroger Co /Fred Meyers, via social media, they the center was 
awarded $5000 in gift cards to shop at Fred Meyer for our weekly Food Box grocery program for food 
insecure 60+ community members.  

We literally could not deliver fresh vegetables/fruits and other staples to community members who 
are in need of food, and typically socially isolated, each week, if it were not for a combination of donations 
from Gleaners, Gladstone Food Bank, Neighbors Buy Nothing group via Becky, our volunteer, all of our 
center's Food Pantry volunteers that pickup, deliver, call people, create the grocery bags...shop for the 
food...the list goes on... 
THANK YOU!!! 

The center will hold the City’s Annual Volunteer Appreciation BBQ - for all City volunteers to be held, 
Friday, Oct 6th, at 5pm. 

 

6 - 33



2   Senior Center September Monthly Report 2023 
 

 

 

 

 Grant-funded Dining/Kitchen Modernization updates— 

American Legacy Home + Construction LLC has started on the kitchen back door 

awning/shelter and it’s almost complete. They will paint the structure and add gutters.  

Also, the center had local senior artist, Jerry Schmidt made a handmade wooden sign 

for the lobby with our new name 

“Gladstone Community Center”. 

Public Works installed the sign this 

month and everyone loves it.  

   

  

 

 

 

Public Work install our new 

signage in the lobby 

6 - 34



3   Senior Center September Monthly Report 2023 
 

Lunch and Learn w/ Clackamas County Sustainability Team + Visit from ODOT on the Toll Bridge:   

We had a very engaged audience for the presentation Reduce, Reuse and Recycle, by the Sustainability team in 

September. Lots of questions about items that can or cannot be recycled and also questions 

were answered by Tenille, staff at Clackamas County regarding disposal services and services 

like, Ridwell and Junk pickups. We also held space for ODOT, Toll Bridge team to come set-up in 

the library in September. There were approximately 40-45 people that came there, besides the 

regulars at the center. The team shared lots of good 

resource info and displays to help the community 

understand the tolling project and its timeline, and where 

their info and suggestions go from here.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

GEM; Gladstone Emergency 

Management Team + 

Clackamas Fire will host Fire 

Prevention Training in October 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6 - 35



4   Senior Center September Monthly Report 2023 
 

Gladstone Community 

Center Advisory Board 

recruiting for Ad-Hoc 

Committee Members – 

openings for the committee, start in 

October and end Dec. 9th 2023. 

These were posting on all socials, 

and provided at the public via 

website, email, and as flyers. 

 

 

 

 

GLAD TO BE HERE featured in September  

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

6 - 36



7



City of Gladstone 
Staff Report  

              
 
Report Date: October 3, 2023  
Meeting Date: October 10, 2023  
To:    Gladstone City Council 
From:   Jacque M. Betz, City Administrator    
 
AGENDA ITEM 
 
Approve Resolution 1224 authorizing the City of Gladstone to submit a request for funding 
assistance from the Oregon Development of Land Conservation and Development to 
assist Gladstone in the creation of a Town Center Boundary and Plan and establishment 
of  goals, policies and regulations for development in the Town Center. 
 
History/Background 
 
In 2022, the Oregon Department of Land Conservation and Development (DLCD) 
implemented the Climate-Friendly and Equitable Communities (CFEC) Oregon 
Administrative Rules, compelling cities in metro regions, such as Gladstone, to “change 
their local transportation and land use plans to do more to ensure Oregonians have more 
safe, comfortable ways to get around, and don’t have to drive long distances just to meet 
their daily needs.”  In order to meet this requirement, the City of Gladstone must adopt 
formal boundaries for its “Town Center”, a designation of a place that our regional 
government, Metro, categorizes as the center of activity for a community.  In addition to 
designating this area, the city will adopt regulations regarding development in these areas 
as well as completing required parking reform. 
 
Funding assistance for the type of planning work described above is potentially available 
through a Technical Assistance (TA) Grant from DLCD.  The city of Gladstone submitted 
an application by the October 2, 2023 deadline for the 2023-25 funding period and is 
awaiting response.  If the city is unsuccessful in securing a TA grant, DLCD staff have 
stated that direct CFEC funding will be available in the coming months.  Gladstone staff 
intend to submit for CFEC funding if the TA Grant application is not successful. 
 
PROPOSAL: 
 
The City of Gladstone has requested technical assistance in the amount of $75,000 for 
the purpose of several related initiatives intended to designate the city’s Town Center and 
implement regulations for development. Specifically, if awarded the funds would be used 
for technical assistance to create a Town Center Boundary and Plan, and to create and 
adopt revisions to our Comprehensive Plan and Development Code. A copy of the full 
application is included in the packet (Attachment A).  Note that our application calls for a 
thorough community engagement effort as part of this work. 
 
DLCD specifically asks for local governing bodies to also submit a resolution authorizing 
the submission of requests for funding; and it is permissible for the City Council to approve 
the resolution after the submittal of the grant application.  
 
 

7 - 1



7 - 2



RESOLUTION 1224 
 

A resolution authorizing the City of Gladstone to submit a request 
 for funding assistance from the Oregon Department of Land  

Conservation and Development to promote the City’s endeavors to create a Town 
Center in Gladstone with associated land use regulations.  

 
 
WHEREAS,  the Oregon Legislature appropriated funds to the Oregon Department of Land 

Conservation and Development (DLCD) for the purpose of providing Technical 
Assistance (TA) to local governments in various planning efforts, including 
those that promote economic development and climate resiliency; and 

 
WHEREAS,   the Metro Urban Growth Management Functional Plan will be updated by the 

end of 2024 to require that all cities (such as Gladstone) adopt, by December 
31, 2025, boundaries for Town Centers identified on the 2040 Growth Concept 
map; and 

 
WHEREAS,   a Town Center in Gladstone would comply with the Climate-Friendly and 

Equitable Communities (CFEC) rules that require designation of a Climate-
Friendly Area in cities, parking reform, and associated development 
regulations; and 

 
WHEREAS,  the City of Gladstone is beginning the long-range planning work required to 

designate a Town Center with associated land use regulations; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the City of Gladstone desires to participate in the DLCD TA grant program in 

order to complete the planning effort of designating a Town Center, including 
implementable land use regulations and a robust community involvement 
process; and 

 
WHEREAS,  the City of Gladstone has available in-kind matching resources and capacity to 

fulfill its share of obligation related to this grant application should the grant 
funds be awarded. 

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED as follows: 
 

Section 1. The City of Gladstone City Council supports a request for funding assistance 
(Exhibit A) from DLCD in the amount of $75,000 to fulfill the obligations set forth above. 
 
Section 2.  The City Administrator is hereby authorized to submit the request for funding 
assistance to DLCD on behalf of the City of Gladstone. 
 
Section 3. The resolution is effective immediately upon its enactment by the City Council.  

 

7 - 3



 
 
 
This Resolution is adopted by the Gladstone City Council and approved by the Mayor this 
________ day of __________, 2023. 
 
   
       ATTEST: 

 
 

_______________________________          ______________________________ 
Michael Milch, Mayor    Hayley Kratz, Acting City Recorder 
 

7 - 4



8



8 - 1



 

 
CLACKAMAS 

FIRE DISTRICT  
REPORT 



9



                
    Here for you 
 

 

FIRE CHIEF’S REPORT 
September 2023

      

Sept. 9: E301 and E302 training on hoseline 
deployment in Milwaukie.   

Sept. 16: Inspector/Inves gator Denny 
Dahlgren quizzed many a endees on fire 
and life safety at the Hilltop Safety Fair. 

 Fire Preven on Week is October 8 – 14 with the 
theme: Cooking safety starts with YOU. 
 

 In the early morning of September 16th, Clackamas  
Fire responded to a structure fire at a former 
fiberglass manufacturing plant. This fire was in 
buildings slated for demoli on and caused 
sheltering in place and evacua ons of nearby 
residences. Thirty-one units, including seven from 
Portland, Gresham, and TVFR, responded to the 
incident.   
 

 On September 21st, the Camp Creek Fire was 
transferred to the local Mt. Hood Type 3 incident 
management team. Clackamas Fire Ba alion Chief 
Brent Olson is serving as the incident commander 
trainee through October 5th. The most recent 
update is the fire reached 2,055 acres and is 62% 
contained. Hazard trees, terrain, and weather have 
limited opera ons. Sept. 16: Clackamas and mutual aid 

firefighters working a 3rd alarm fire on O y 
Road at I-205.  

9 - 1



Fire Incidents in Gladstone 

 

Meldrum Bar Park Road (single unit response) 

Arrived to find a 1x1 area of smoldering barkdust and was ex nguished with the booster line. 
E322 cleared.  

E. Fairfield Street (single unit response) 

E322 was dispatched to a small barkdust fire in a front yard at a residence.  The fire was 
discovered by some landscape workers.  E322 arrived and used the homeowners adjacent hose 
to ex nguish the burning material.  There were no signs of igni on present.  E322 cleared this 
call. 

I-205 (four units dispatched, only two units used) 

10'x10' grass fire on the west side side of I205.  Fire is ex nguished and BC302 & OSP on scene.  
E322 overhauls area with copious amounts of water via booster line.  Fire area is wet and cool to 
the touch.  All units depart.   

 

9 - 2



10







Di
st

ric
t 2

 M
et

ro
 u

pd
at

e
Gl

ad
st

on
e 

Ci
ty

 C
ou

nc
il 

• 
Co

un
cil

or
 C

hr
ist

in
e 

Le
w

is 
• 

Oc
to

be
r 1

0,
 2

02
3

10 - 1



Ga
rb

ag
e 

an
d 

re
cy

cli
ng

•R
ID

 P
at

ro
l s

uc
ce

ss
•8

80
 to

ns
 o

f g
ar

ba
ge

 in
 th

e 
la

st
 y

ea
r

•R
es

po
ns

e 
tim

e 
do

w
n 

to
 1

 
da

y
•r

id
pa

tro
l.o

re
go

nm
et

ro
.g

ov

10 - 2



En
su

rin
g 

en
ou

gh
 

la
nd

 fo
r 2

0 
ye

ar
s 

of
 g

ro
w

th
, a

nd
 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
ec

on
om

ic 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t

Gr
ow

th
 m

an
ag

em
en

t d
ec

isi
on

10 - 3



Af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
sin

g

•O
n 

pa
ce

 to
 e

xc
ee

d 
ou

r 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
go

al
s

10 - 4



Pr
oj

ec
t M

ap

10 - 5



Su
pp

or
tiv

e 
Ho

us
in

g 
Se

rv
ice

s

Hu
nd

re
ds

 p
la

ce
d 

in
 h

ou
sin

g
14

0 
ne

w
 C

la
ck

am
as

 C
ou

nt
y 

sh
el

te
r b

ed
s

64
3 

ev
ict

io
n 

pr
ev

en
tio

ns

10 - 6



Re
gi

on
al

 tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
pl

an

A 
tra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

sy
st

em
 th

at
 cu

ts
 

co
ng

es
tio

n,
 su

pp
or

ts
 

cle
an

 a
ir 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
es

 sa
fe

ty
 

ac
ro

ss
 o

ur
 re

gi
on

.

10 - 7



Or
eg

on
 Zo

o

Th
in

ki
ng

 a
bo

ut
 w

ha
t's

 n
ex

t f
or

 
an

im
al

 w
el

fa
re

, v
isi

to
r a

cc
es

sib
ili

ty
 

an
d 

su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y

10 - 8



Ex
am

in
in

g 
th

e 
fe

as
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

Ex
po

 a
s a

 fa
cil

ity
 

to
 h

os
t s

po
rt

s 
co

m
pe

tit
io

ns

Ex
po

 C
en

te
r

10 - 9



St
ay

 in
 to

uc
h

or
eg

on
m

et
ro

.g
ov

/c
on

ne
ct

Ch
ris

tin
e 

Le
w

is
M

et
ro

 C
ou

nc
ilo

r, 
Di

st
ric

t 2
50

3-
79

7-
18

87
ch

ris
tin

e.
le

w
is@

or
eg

on
m

et
ro

.g
ov

Qu
es

tio
ns

?

10 - 10



10 - 11





11



11 - 1





Po
rtl
an

d 
Ha

rb
or
 C

le
an

up
 a

nd
 R

es
to
ra
tio

n 
 

 
 

 
O
ve

rv
ie
w

•
Th

e 
EP

A 
an

d 
O
re
go

n 
De

pa
rtm

en
t o

f E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta
l Q

ua
lit
y 
ov

er
se

e 
th
e 

cl
ea

nu
p 
ef
fo
rts
 o

f t
he
 P

or
tla

nd
 H

ar
bo

r.
•
Th

e 
Po

rtl
an

d 
Ha

rb
or
 T

ru
st
ee
 C

ou
nc

il 
ov

er
se

es
 t
he
 r
es

to
ra
tio

n 
of 

th
e 

Na
tu
ra
l R

es
ou

rc
e 
Da

m
ag

es
.

•
Th

e 
Tr
us

te
e 
Co

un
ci
l c

on
si
st
s 
of
:

–
5 
Tr
ib
es
 


Gr
an

d 
Ro

nd
e


Ne

z 
Pe

rc
e


Si
le
tz


U
m
at
ill
a


W
ar
m 

Sp
rin

gs

–
NO

AA
–

O
re
go

n 
De

pa
rtm

en
t o

f F
is
h 
an

d 
W
ild

lif
e

–
US

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f t
he
 I
nt
er
io
r

11 - 1



Po
rtl
an

d 
Ha

rb
or
 N

at
ur
al 

Re
so

ur
ce
 D

am
ag

e 
 

 
As

se
ss
m
en

t O
ve

rv
ie
w

•
Si
nc

e 
th
e 
Tr
us

te
e 
Co

un
ci
l w

as
 f
or
m
ed
 i
n 
20

02
, t
he

y 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 
ac

tiv
el
y 
st
ud

yi
ng
 a

nd
 r
es

ea
rc
hi
ng
 p

ot
en

tia
lly
 i
nj
ur
ed
 n

at
ur
al 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
wi
th
in 

th
e 
Po

rtl
an

d 
Ha

rb
or
.

•
Du

rin
g 
th
ei
r r
es

ea
rc
h, 

th
ey
 i
de

nt
ifi
ed
 t
he
 f
ol
lo
wi
ng
 l
is
t o

f p
ot
en

tia
lly
 i
nj
ur
ed
 n

at
ur
al 

re
so

ur
ce

s.

•
Fi
sh

–
Sa

lm
on

–
La

m
pr
ey

–
St
ur
ge

on

•
Bi
rd
s

–
Ba

ld
 E

ag
le

–
O
sp

re
y

•
M
am

m
al
s

–
M
in
ks

•
W
at
er

•
Se

di
m
en

ts

•
So

ils

•
In
ve

rte
br
at
es

11 - 2



Re
st
or
at
io
n 
Pl
an

ni
ng

•
Th

e 
Tr
us

te
e 
Co

un
ci
l h

as
 b

ee
n 
pl
an

ni
ng
 a

nd
 c

oo
rd
in
at
in
g 

re
st
or
at
io
n 
ef
fo
rts
 s
in
ce
 2

00
7

•
Th

ei
r g

eo
gr
ap

hi
c 
pr
io
rie

s 
ar
e:

–
1s

t  P
rio

rit
y: 

Su
pe

rfu
nd
 S

tu
dy
 A

re
a 

–
2n

d  
Pr
io
rit
y:

Br
oa

de
r F

oc
us
 A

re
a

11 - 3



Cu
rre

nt 
Ef
fo
rts
 U

nd
er
wa

y
•
Th

er
e 
ar
e 
cu

rre
nt
ly 

3 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 r
es

to
ra
tio

n 
pr
oj
ec

ts 
wi
th
in 

th
e 

Pr
io
rit
y 
O
ne
 (
Su

pe
rfu

nd
) s

ite
.

–
Al
de

r C
re
ek

–
Li
nn

to
n 
M
ill

–
P G

E 
Ha

rb
or
to
wn

 W
et
la
nd

s

•
Th

er
e 
is 

cu
rre

nt
ly 

on
e 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 r
es

to
ra
tio

n 
pr
oj
ec

t w
ith

in 
th
e 

Pr
io
rit
y 
Tw

o 
(B
ro
ad

er 
Fo

cu
s) 

ar
ea

.
–
Ri
ne

ar
so

n

11 - 4



Ri
ne

ar
so

n 
Na

tu
ra
l A

re
a 
Pr
oj
ec

t
A 
Pu

bl
ic
-P
riv

at
e 
Po

rtl
an

d 
Ha

rb
or
 N

RD
 R

es
to
ra
tio

n 
Pr
oj
ec

t
Pa

rtn
er

Ro
le

Co
lu
m
bi
a 
Re

st
or
at
io
n 
Gr
ou

p
Pr

oj
ec

t O
w

ne
r /

 D
ev

el
op

er
Th

e 
Ci
ty 

of
 G

la
ds

to
ne

La
nd

ow
ne

r
Ro

bi
nw

oo
d 
Ri
vi
er
e 
Pr
op

er
ty 

O
wn

er
s 

As
so

ci
at
io
n

La
nd

ow
ne

r

Pr
iv
at
e 
Ho

m
eo

wn
er

La
nd

ow
ne

r
W
at
er
wa

ys
 C

on
su

lti
ng

, I
nc

.
Pr
oj
ec

t D
es

ig
ne

r/
M
on

ito
rin

g 
Th

e 
W
et
la
nd

s 
Gr
ou

p
En

vir
on

m
en

ta
l C

on
su

lta
nt 

an
d 

Co
ns

tru
ct
io
n 
Co

nt
ra
ct
or

11 - 5



Pr
oj
ec

t L
oc

at
io
n

Ar
ea
 M

ap

Si
te 

M
ap

11 - 6



Ta
rg
et 

Sp
ec

ie
s

11 - 7



No
n-
Ta

rg
et 

Sp
ec

ie
s

11 - 8



Pr
e-
Co

ns
tru

ct
io
n 
Ha

bi
ta
t

11 - 9



Co
m
pl
et
ed
 R

es
to
ra
tio

n

11 - 10



Su
m
m
ar
y 
of 

Go
al
s

•
Go

al 
1 
– 
Re

st
or
e 
ty
pi
ca

l f
lo
od

pl
ai
n 
st
ru
ct
ur
e

•
Gr
ad

e 
th
e 
Pr
oj
ec

t s
ite
 t
o 
ty
pi
ca

l f
lo
od

pl
ai
n 
to
po

gr
ap

hi
c 
co

nd
iti
on

s; 
m
od

ify
 e

xis
tin

g 
da

m
; e

st
ab

lis
h 
flo

od
pl
ai
n 
be

nc
he

s; 
re
st
or
e 
Ri
ne

ar
so

n 
Cr
ee

k 
ch

an
ne

l
•

In
st
al
l a

nd
 r
et
ai
n 
wo

od
y 
st
ru
ct
ur
es

, r
oc

k 
an

d 
de

br
is 

ha
bi
ta
t p

ile
s.

•
Pr
ov

id
e 
fis

h 
pa

ss
ag

e
•

Go
al 

2 
– 
Re

st
or
e 
na

tiv
e 
ve

ge
ta
tio

n 
co

m
m
un

iti
es

•
Co

nt
ro
l i
nv

as
ive

 v
eg

et
at
io
n 
th
ro
ug

ho
ut 

th
e 
pr
oj
ec

t s
ite

•
Es

ta
bl
is
h 
na

tiv
e-
do

m
in
at
ed
 v
eg

et
at
io
n 
in 

th
e 
PE

M
, P

SS
, P

FO
 a

nd
 u

pl
an

d 
ar
ea

s
•

Go
al 

3 
– 
Re

st
or
e 
ty
pi
ca

l h
yd

ro
lo
gi
c 
co

nd
iti
on

s 
•

Re
st
or
e 
flo

od
pl
ai
n 
in
te
ra
ct
io
n 
be

tw
ee

n 
W
ill
am

et
te 

Ri
ve

r a
nd
 a

re
as
 u

ps
tre

am
 o

f t
he
 

re
m
na

nt 
da

m
•

In
cr
ea

se
 a

re
a 
in
un

da
te
d 
by
 r
eg

ul
ar
ly 

re
cu

rr
in
g 
flo

od
 e

ve
nt
s 
in 

th
e 
W
ill
am

et
te 

Ri
ve

r
•

Go
al 

4 
– 
Im

pr
ov

e 
wa

te
r q

ua
lit
y 
ov

er
 e

xis
tin

g 
co

nd
iti
on

s 
by
 i
m
pr
ov

in
g 
wa

te
r t
em

pe
ra
tu
re
, 

di
ss
ol
ve

d 
ox

yg
en

, a
nd
 c

on
du

ct
ivi
ty 

in 
aq

ua
tic
 h

ab
ita

ts
•

Go
al 

5-
 I
nc

re
as

e 
us

e 
by
 f
is
h 
an

d 
wi
ld
lif
e 
sp

ec
ie
s 
by
 i
m
pr
ov

in
g 
ac

ce
ss
 a

nd
 i
m
pr
ov

in
g 

ha
bi
ta
t q

ua
lit
y

11 - 11



Th
an

k 
yo

u 
fo
r t
hi
s 
op

po
rtu

ni
ty
! 

Ev
an
 O

ch
el
tre

e
Co

lu
m
bi
a 
Re

st
or
at
io
n 
Gr
ou

p
Ev
an

@
Co

lu
m
bi
aR

es
to
ra
tio

nG
ro
up

.c
om

 (
80

4) 
33

0-
80

92
Ga

ry 
Ho

wa
rd 

Co
lu
m
bi
a 
Re

st
or
at
io
n 
Gr
ou

p
Ga

ry
@

Co
lu
m
bi
aR

es
to
ra
tio

nG
ro
up

.c
om

(2
08

) 5
73

-4
86

6

11 - 12



Ri
ne

ar
so

n 
Pr

oj
ec

t P
ho

to
s

11 - 13



Pr
e-

Re
st

or
at

io
n 

Ph
ot

os
 –

 
A 

Re
m

in
de

r o
f W

ha
t O

nc
e 

W
as

11 - 14



Pr
e-

Re
st

or
at

io
n 

Ph
ot

os
 –

 
A 

Re
m

in
de

r o
f W

ha
t O

nc
e 

W
as

 (C
on

t’d
)

11 - 15



Po
st

 R
es

to
ra

tio
n 

– 
W

ha
t i

s 
an

d 
W

ha
t S

ha
ll 

Be
: 

Th
e 

Ch
an

ne
l 

11 - 16



Po
st

 R
es

to
ra

tio
n 

– 
W

ha
t i

s 
an

d 
W

ha
t S

ha
ll 

Be
: 

Th
e 

Po
nd

 (a
nd

 B
ea

ve
r A

ct
iv

ity
)

11 - 17



Po
st

 R
es

to
ra

tio
n 

– 
W

ha
t i

s 
an

d 
W

ha
t S

ha
ll 

Be
:

M
ov

in
g 

U
p 

Cr
ee

k

11 - 18



Po
st

 R
es

to
ra

tio
n 

– 
W

ha
t i

s 
an

d 
W

ha
t S

ha
ll 

Be
:

M
ov

in
g 

U
p 

Cr
ee

k

11 - 19



Po
st

 R
es

to
ra

tio
n 

– 
W

ha
t i

s 
an

d 
W

ha
t S

ha
ll 

Be
:

Lo
ok

in
g 

Ba
ck

 a
t t

he
 P

on
d

11 - 20



Po
st

 R
es

to
ra

tio
n 

– 
W

ha
t i

s 
an

d 
W

ha
t S

ha
ll 

Be
:

Ri
ne

ar
so

n 
Cr

ee
k 

O
ut

le
t 

11 - 21



Po
st

 R
es

to
ra

tio
n 

– 
W

ha
t i

s 
an

d 
W

ha
t S

ha
ll 

Be
:

Ri
ne

ar
so

n 
Cr

ee
k 

O
ut

le
t

11 - 22



Po
st

 R
es

to
ra

tio
n 

– 
W

ha
t i

s 
an

d 
W

ha
t S

ha
ll 

Be
:

H
ab

ita
t S

tr
uc

tu
re

s

11 - 23



W
ha

t i
t i

s 
no

w

11 - 24



12



 
 
 

GLADSTONE 
CITY 

EVENT  
ANNOUNCEMENTS 

12 - 1





13



 
City of Gladstone 

Staff Report 
 

Report Date :  October 3, 2023 
Meeting Date :   October 10, 2023 
To :  City Council    
From :  Cathy Brucker, Finance Consultant; Nancy Werner, Attorney  
 
AGENDA ITEM 
Consider approval of Ordinance 1526, an ordinance amending Gladstone Municipal Code (GMC) 
Chapter 12.24 to update and clarify the terms and conditions of utility use of the public rights-of-way in 
the City. 
 
History/Background 
GMC Chapter 12.24 "Utility Services" regulates use of the public rights-of-way in the City by utilities, 
including electric, gas, and communications companies, as well as water and sewer. GMC Chapter 12.24 
requires utilities that own facilities in the rights-of-way to obtain a license authorizing such use and 
establishes the terms and conditions for utility-related work in the rights-of-way. It also requires these 
entities to pay a license fee for such use. GMC Chapter 12.24 also applies to entities that use other 
utilities’ facilities in the rights-of-way to provide utility services to customers in the City.  
 
The City enacted GMC Chapter 12.24 in 2016 and updated it in 2018. While the City has revised its fees 
to comply with several changes in federal law since 2018, the provisions of the Chapter have not been 
reviewed or updated since that time. In response to recent changes in use of the rights-of-way and to 
inquiries regarding the application of Chapter 12.24 to various entities, staff recommend revising the 
Chapter to update and clarify the terms and conditions of the Chapter. 
 
Proposal 
Included in the packet is the ordinance in track-changes. Staff worked with attorney Nancy Werner to 
draft the updates. Language deleted is in strikethrough and language proposed is in red. A clean copy of 
the ordinance is also included in the packet.   
 
The changes include the following: 
 

1. Removing unnecessary defined terms and duplicative provisions. 
2. Clarifying that owners of utility facilities in the rights-of-way must obtain a license authorizing use 

of the rights-of-way, but utility service providers that do not own facilities need not obtain a license. 
3. Requiring utility service providers to register with the City, which enables the City to track 

providers that serve customers in the City but which do not own facilities and thus do not need to 
obtain a license. 

4. Clarifying the existing fee structure, which currently and in the updated draft imposes fees on (i) 
utilities that own facilities in the rights-of-way and (ii) utilities that use facilities in the rights-of-way 
to provide utility service to customers in the City (whether or not they own the facilities used to 
provide the service). There is a clear offset provision to ensure that utilities that both own facilities 
and provide service in the City pay only the greater of the two fees, not both fees. 

 
These changes are clarifications and updates that do not alter the operation of GMC Chapter 12.24, with 
the exception of the license and registration requirements. In the current Chapter, utility owners and utility 
service providers that do not own facilities both had to obtain licenses. Staff received questions about the 
need for providers that do not own facilities to receive licenses. The license provisions include, among 

13 - 1



10/4/23

13 - 2



ORDINANCE 1526 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING GLADSTONE MUNICIPAL CODE (GMC) 
 TITLE 12, CHAPTER 12.24 – UTILITY SERVICES 

 
 
WHEREAS, the City has the authority pursuant to its Charter and the Oregon Constitution and 

statutes to manage its rights-of-way and to receive compensation for use of the 
rights-of-way consistent with applicable state and federal law, and 

 
WHEREAS, the City adopted GMC, title 12, Chapter 12.24 in 2016 and updated the Chapter in 

2018; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has revised its fees to comply with several changes in federal laws since 

2018, however the provisions of the Chapter have not been reviewed or updated 
since that time and the City has determined that amendments are required; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City finds it is in the public interest to enact the updates to the Gladstone 

Municipal Code as set forth in this Ordinance; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the City of Gladstone ordains as follows: 
 
Section 1. Gladstone Municipal Code Chapter 12.24, Utility Services, is amended as shown on 

Exhibit “A”.  New language is underlined in red; deleted language appears as 
strikethrough text. 

 
Section 2.  All remaining provisions of Gladstone Municipal Code Chapter 12.24 are reaffirmed 

in their entirety. 
 
Section 3.  This Ordinance takes effect 30 days from its adoption. 
 
Adopted by the Gladstone City Council this ________ day of _______________________, 2023.  
 
 
       ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ ___________________________________ 
Michael Milch, Mayor     Hayley Kratz, Office Assistant 
 
 
  

13 - 3





13 - 4





ORDINANCE 1526 
EXHIBIT “A” 

12.24.010 Title.  
The ordinance codified in this chapter shall be known and may be referenced as the utility 
service ordinance. 

12.24.020  Purpose and intent. 

The purpose and intent of this chapter is to: 

(1) Permit and manage reasonable access to the rights-of-way of the city for utility purposes and 
conserve the limited physical capacity of those rights-of-way held in trust by the city consistent 
with applicable state and federal law; 

(2) Assure Ensure that the city’s current and ongoing costs of granting and regulating access to 
and the use of the rights-of-way are fully compensated by the persons seeking such access and 
causing such costs; 

(3) Secure fair and reasonable compensation to the city and its residents for permitting use of the 
rights-of-way by persons who generate revenue by placing, owning, using or operating facilities 
therein or charging residents for services delivered; 

(4) Assure Ensure that all utility companies, persons and other entities owning or operating 
utility facilities and/or providing utility services within the city comply with the ordinances, rules 
and regulations of the city; 

(5) Assure Ensure that the city can continue to fairly and responsibly protect the public health, 
safety and welfare of its residents; 

(6) Encourage the provision of advanced and competitive utility services on the widest possible 
basis to businesses and residents of the city by: 

(a) Allowing the city to enter into other agreements with utility providers and utility operators, if 
the public’s interest is served, and to amend the requirement of this chapter as new technology is 
developed; 

(b) Allowing the city to be resilient and adaptive to changes in technology; and 

(7) Comply with applicable provisions of state and federal law. 

12.24.0230 Jurisdiction and management of the public rights-of-way. 

(1) The city has jurisdiction and exercises regulatory management over all rights-of-way within 
the city under authority of the City Charter and Oregon law. 

(2) The city has jurisdiction and exercises regulatory management over each right-of-way 
whether the city has a fee, easement, or other legal interest in the right-of-way, and whether the 

13 - 5



legal interest in the right-of-way was obtained by grant, dedication, prescription, reservation, 
condemnation, annexation, foreclosure or other means. 

(3) The exercise of jurisdiction and regulatory management of a right-of-way by the city is not 
official acceptance of the right-of-way and does not obligate the city to maintain or repair any 
part of the right-of-way. 

(4) The provisions of this chapter are subject to and will be applied consistent with applicable 
state and federal laws, rules and regulations, and, to the extent possible, shall be interpreted to be 
consistent with such laws, rules and regulations. 

12.24.0340 Regulatory fees and compensation not a tax. 

(1) The fees and costs provided for in this chapter, and any compensation charged and paid for 
use of the rights-of-way provided for in this chapter, are separate from, and in addition to, any 
and all other federal, state, local, and city charges, including but not limited to: any permit fee, or 
any other generally applicable fees, tax, or charge on business, occupations, property, or income 
as may be levied, imposed, or due from a utility operator, utility provider or licensee, its 
customers or subscribers, or on account of the lease, sale, delivery, or transmission of utility 
services. 

(2) The city has determined that any fee or tax provided for by this chapter is not subject to the 
property tax limitations of Article XI, Sections 11 and 11b of the Oregon Constitution. These 
fees or taxes are not imposed on property or property owners. 

(3) The fees and costs provided for in this chapter are subject to applicable federal and state laws. 

12.24.0450 Definitions. 

For the purpose of this chapter the following terms, phrases, words and their derivations shall 
have the meaning given herein. When not inconsistent with the context, words not defined herein 
shall be given the meaning set forth in the Communications Act of 1934, as amended, the Cable 
Act, and the Telecommunications Act. If not defined in those statutes, the words shall be given 
their common and ordinary meaning. When not inconsistent with the context, words used in the 
present tense include the future, words in the plural number include the singular number and 
words in the singular number include the plural number. The words “shall” and “will” are 
mandatory and “may” is permissive. 

“Cable Act” means the Cable Communications Policy Act of 1987, 47 U.S.C. Section 521 et 
seq., as now and hereafter amended. 

“Cable service” is to be defined consistent with federal laws and means the one-way 
transmission to subscribers of: (1) video programming, or (2) other programming service; and 
subscriber interaction, if any, which is required for the selection or use of such video 
programming or other programming service. 

“Calendar year” means January 1st to December 31st, unless otherwise noted. 

13 - 6



“City” means the City of Gladstone, an Oregon municipal corporation, and individuals 
authorized to act on the city’s behalf. 

“City Council” means the elected governing body of the City of Gladstone, Oregon. 

“City facilities” means city- or publicly owned structures or equipment located within the right-
of-way or public easement used for governmental purposesthat are owned, managed, maintained 
or operated by the City and used for governmental purposes, including, but not limited to, 
sanitary sewer, storm sewer or water infrastructure such as pipes, wires, conduit, valves, vaults 
and appurtenances. 

“City property” means and includes all real property owned by the city, other than public right-
of-way and utility easement as those are defined herein, and all property held in proprietary 
capacity by the city. 

“City standards” means the Gladstone Public Works and EngineeringDesign and Construction 
Standards, and any other applicable city construction, engineering and design standards and 
policies in effect at the time of any work, is subject to this chapter. 

“Communications services” means any service provided for the purpose of transmission of 
information including, but not limited to, voice, video, or data, without regard to the transmission 
protocol employed, whether or not the transmission medium is owned by the provider itself. 
“Communications service” includes all forms of telephone services and voice, video, data or 
information transport, but does not include: (1) cable service; (2) open video system service, as 
defined in 47 C.F.R. 76; (3) private communications system services provided without using the 
public rights-of-way; (43) public communications systems; (54) over-the-air radio or television 
broadcasting to the public-at-large from facilities licensed by the Federal Communications 
Commission or any successor thereto; and (65) direct-to-home satellite service within the 
meaning of Section 602 of the Telecommunications Act of 1996, Pub. L. 104–104, 110 Stat. 56 
(1996). 

“Construction” means any activity in the public right-of-way resulting in physical change 
thereto, including excavation or placement of structures. 

“Control” means actual working control over utility facilities in whatever manner exercised. 

“Days” mean calendar days unless otherwise specified. 

“Emergency” means a circumstance in which immediate work or action is necessary to restore 
lost service or prevent immediate harm to persons or property. 

“Federal Communications Commission” or “FCC” means the federal administrative agency, or 
its lawful successor, authorized to regulate and oversee telecommunications carriers, services 
and providers on a national level. 

“Gross revenue” means any and all amounts, of any kind, nature or form, without deduction for 
expense, less net uncollectables, derived directly or indirectly from the operation of utility 

13 - 7



facilities in the city and/or the provision of utility service in the city, subject to all applicable 
limitations in federal or state law. 

“License” or “ROW license” means the authorization granted by the city to a utility operator or 
utility provider pursuant to this chapter. 

“Licensee” means any person that has a valid right-of-way licensed issued by the city pursuant to 
this chapter. 

“Person” means and includes any individual, firm, sole proprietorship, corporation, company, 
partnership, co-partnership, joint-stock company, trust, limited liability company, association, 
municipality, special district, government entity or other organization, including any natural 
person or any other legal entity. 

“Private communications system” means a system, including the construction, maintenance or 
operation of the system, for the provision of a service or any portion of a service which is owned 
or operated exclusively by a person for their use and not for sale or resale, including trade, barter 
or other exchange of value, directly or indirectly, to any person. 

“Public communications system” means any system owned or operated by a government entity 
or entities for its exclusive use for internal communications or communications with other 
government entities, and includes services provided by the State of Oregon pursuant to 
ORS 283.140. “Public communications system” does not include any system used for sale or 
resale, including trade, barter or other exchange of value, of communications services or capacity 
on the system, directly or indirectly, to any person. 

“Public utility easement” means the space in, upon, above, along, across, over or under an 
easement for the constructing, reconstructing, operating, maintaining, inspecting, and repairing 
of utilities facilities. “Public utility easement” does not include an easement (1) that has been 
privately acquired by a utility operator, (2) solely for the constructing, reconstructing, operating, 
maintaining, inspecting, and repairing of city facilities, or (3) where the proposed use by the 
utility operator is inconsistent with the terms of any easement granted to the city. 

“Public Works Director” means the Public Works Director for the City of Gladstone or any 
designee. 

“Rights-of-way,” “rights-of-way,” “public right-of-way,” or “ROW” means and includes, but is 
not limited to, the space in, upon, above, along, across, over or under the public streets, roads, 
highways, lanes, courts, ways, alleys, boulevards, bridges, trails, paths, sidewalks, bicycle lanes, 
public utility easements and all other public ways or areas, including the subsurface under and air 
space over these areas, but does not include parks, parkland, or other city property not generally 
open to the public for travel. This definition applies only to the extent of the city’s right, title, 
interest and authority to grant a license to occupy and use such areas for utility facilities. 

“Right-of-way license,” “ROW license,” or “licensee” means the authorization granted by the 
city to a utility provider or utility operator pursuant to this chapter. 

“State” means the State of Oregon. 

13 - 8



“Structure” mean any facility a utility provider or utility operator places in the ROW, including 
but not limited to poles, vaults or manholes, hand holds, or junction boxes, conduit, direct bury 
cable, wires, pedestals, aerial cables or wires and transformers. 

“Telecommunications Act” means the Communications Policy Act of 1934, as amended by 
subsequent enactments including the Telecommunications Act of 1996 (47 U.S.C. Section 151 et 
seq.) and as hereafter amended. 

“Utility facility” or “facility” means any physical component of a system, including but not 
limited to the poles, pipes, mains, conduits, ducts, cables, wires, transmitters, plant, equipment 
and other facilities, located within, under or above the rights-of-way, any portion of which is 
used or designed to be used to deliver, transmit or otherwise provide utility service. 

“Utility operator” or “operator” means any person who owns, places, controls, operates or 
maintains a utility facility within the city. 

“Utility provider” or “provider” means any person who provides utility service to customers 
within the city limits, whether or not any facilities in the ROW are owned by such provider. 

“Utility service” means the provision, by means of utility facilities permanently located within, 
under or above the rights-of-way, whether or not such facilities are owned by the service 
provider, of electricity, natural gas, communications services, cable services, water, sewer, 
and/or storm sewer to or from customers within the city limits, or the transmission or provision 
of any of these services through the city whether or not customers within the city are served by 
receive those transmissions or services. 

“Work” means the construction, demolition, installation, replacement, repair, maintenance or 
relocation of any utility facility, including but not limited to any excavation and restoration 
required in association with such construction, demolition, installation, replacement, repair, 
maintenance or relocation. 

12.24.0560 Business licenseUtility provider registration. 

(1) Business LicenseRegistration Required. Every person that desires to provide utility services 
to customers within the city shall register with the city prior to providing any utility services to 
any customer in the city, in compliance with GMC Chapter 5.04. Every person providing utility 
services to customers within the city as of the effective date of this chapter shall obtain a 
business licenseregister within 30 days of the effective date of this chapter. Every person subject 
to this chapter shall renew and maintain a business license as required in GMC Chapter 
5.04Gladstone’s Municipal Code, heretofore or hereafter amended, at all times that the person 
provides utility services and/or operates a utility services, to customers within the city, or owns 
or controls a utility facility. 

(2) Annual Registration. After registering with the City pursuant to subsection (1) of this section, 
the registrant shall, by December 31st of each year, file with the City a new registration form if it 
intends to provide utility service at any time in the following calendar year. Registrants that file 

13 - 9



an initial registration pursuant to subsection (1) of this section on or after September 30th shall 
not be required to file an annual registration until December 31st of the following year. 

(3) Registration Application. The registration shall be on a form provided by the City, and shall 
be accompanied by any additional documents required by the City to identify the registrant and 
its legal status, describe the type of utility services provided or to be provided by the registrant 
and list the facilities over which the utility services will be provided. 

(4) Registration Fee. Each application for registration shall be accompanied by a nonrefundable 
registration fee in an amount to be determined by resolution of the city council sufficient to fully 
recover all of the City’s costs of administering the registration program. 

12.24.0670 Right-of-way license. 

(1) License Required. 

(a) Except those utility operators and utility providers with a valid franchise or other valid 
agreement from the city, every person that wishes to be a utility operator shall obtain a ROW 
license from the city prior to conducting any work in or use of the ROW. 

(b) Every person that owns or controls or uses utility facilities in the rights-of-way as of the 
effective date of this chapter shall apply for a ROW license from the city within 30 days of the 
later of: (A) the effective date of this chapter, or (B) the expiration of a valid franchise agreement 
granted by the city, unless a new franchise agreement is granted by the city pursuant to 
subsection (65) of this section, or (C) for a person that is not a utility operator, providing utility 
services within the city. 

(c) The provisions of this section do not apply to any person subject to and in compliance with 
the cable television franchise requirement of GMC Chapter 5.16, except that subsection (112) of 
this section shall apply to the extent such person provides multiple services. 

(2) License Application. The license application shall be on a form provided by the city, and 
shall be accompanied by any additional documents required by the application or the city, in the 
city’s sole discretion, to identify the applicant, its legal status, including its authorization to do 
business in Oregon, a description of the utility facilities in the rights-of-way or to be installed in 
the rights-of-way, a description of type of utility service provided or to be provided by the 
applicant, if any, a description of the facilities over which the utility service will be provided, 
and other information reasonably necessary to determine the applicant’s ability to comply with 
the terms of this chapter. 

(3) License Application Fee. The application shall be accompanied by a nonrefundable 
application fee or deposit set by resolution of the City Council. 

(4) Determination by City. The city shall issue, within a reasonable period of time, a written 
determination granting or denying the license in whole or in part. If the license is denied, the 
written determination shall include the reasons for denial. The license shall be evaluated based 
upon the provisions of this chapter, the continuing capacity of the rights-of-way to accommodate 

13 - 10



the applicant’s proposed utility facilities and the applicable federal, state and local laws, rules, 
regulations and policies. 

(5) ROW Licensing Fee. If the city determines a license shall be issued, the applicant shall, 
within 30 days of notification, submit the license fee set by resolution of the City Council. Such 
ROW license fee shall only apply to those licenses issued, by the city, after January 12, 2019. 

(65) Changes to Information Contained on the License Application. Within 30 days of a change 
to the information contained in the application, the licensee shall notify the city in writing of 
such change(s). 

(76) Franchise Agreements. If the public interest warrants, as determined by the city in its sole 
discretion, the city and utility operator or utility provider may enter into a written franchise 
agreement that includes terms that clarify, enhance, expand, waive or vary the provisions of this 
chapter, consistent with applicable state and federal law. The franchise may conflict with the 
terms of this chapter with the review and approval of City Council. The franchisee shall be 
subject to the provisions of this chapter to the extent such provisions are not in conflict with the 
express provisions of any such franchise. In the event of a conflict between the express 
provisions of a franchise and this chapter, the franchise shall control. 

(87) Rights Granted. 

(a) The license granted hereunder shall authorize and permit the licensee, subject to the 
provisions of the city codes and other applicable provisions of state or federal law, in effect and 
as may be subsequently amended, to construct, place, maintain, upgrade, repair and operate 
utility facilities in the rights-of-way for the term of the license for the provision of utility 
service(s) authorized in the license. In the event the licensee offers different service(s) than those 
authorized in the license, the licensee shall inform the city of such changes no later than 30 days 
after the change. 

(b) Any license granted pursuant to this chapter shall not convey equitable or legal title in the 
rights-of-way and may not be assigned or transferred except as permitted in subsection (123) of 
this section. 

Neither the issuance of the license nor any provisions contained therein shall constitute a waiver 
or bar to the exercise of any governmental right or power, including, without limitation, the 
police power or regulatory power of the city, in existence at the time the license is issued or 
thereafter obtained. 

(98) Term. Subject to the termination provisions in subsection (145) of this section, the license 
granted pursuant to this chapter will be effective as of the date it is issued by the city  or the date 
services began, whichever comes first, and will have a term of ending five calendar years 
frombeginning: (a) January 1st of the year in which the license took effect for licenses that took 
effect between January 1st and June 30th; or (b) January 1st of the year after the license took 
effect for licenses that become effective between July 1st and December 31st. 

13 - 11



(109) License Nonexclusive. No license granted pursuant to this section shall confer any 
exclusive right, privilege, license or franchise to occupy or use the rights-of-way for utility 
facilities, delivery of utility services or any other purpose. The city expressly reserves the right to 
grant licenses, franchises or other rights to other persons, as well as the city’s right to use the 
rights-of-way, for similar or different purposes. The license is subject to all recorded deeds, 
easements, dedications, conditions, covenants, restrictions, encumbrances, and claims of title of 
record that may affect the rights-of-way. Nothing in the license shall be deemed to grant, convey, 
create, or vest in licensee a real property interest in land, including any fee, leasehold interest or 
easement. 

(110) Reservation of City Rights. Nothing in the license shall be construed to prevent the city 
from grading, paving, repairing and/or altering any rights-of-way, constructing, laying down, 
repairing, relocating or removing city facilities or establishing any other public work, utility or 
improvement of any kind, including repairs, replacement or removal of any city facilities. If any 
of licensee’s utility facilities interfere with the construction, repair, replacement, alteration or 
removal of any rights-of-way, public work, city utility, city improvement or city facility, except 
those providing utility services in competition with a licensee, licensee’s facilities shall be 
removed or relocated as provided in GMC Sections 12.24.090(3), (4) and (5), in a manner 
acceptable to the city and consistent with city standards, industry standard engineering and safety 
codes. 

(112) Multiple Services. 

(a) A utility operator that provides or transmits or allows the provision or transmission of utility 
services and other services over its facilities is subject to the license and ROW use fee 
requirements of this chapter for the portion of the facilities and extent of utility services 
delivered over those facilities. Nothing in this subsection (112)(a) requires a utility operator to 
pay the ROW use fee, if any, owed to the city by another person using the utility operator’s 
facilities. 

(b) A utility operator that provides or transmits more than one utility service to customers in the 
city may is not be required to obtain a separate license or franchise for each utility service, but is 
required to file separate remittance forms and submit any ROW usage fees due for each utility 
service provided. 

(123) Transfer or Assignment. To the extent permitted by applicable state and federal laws, the 
licensee shall obtain the written consent of the city prior to the transfer or assignment of the 
license. The license shall not be transferred or assigned unless: 

(a) The proposed transferee or assignee is authorized under all applicable laws to own or operate 
the utility facilities and/or provide the utility service authorized under the license; and 

(b) The transfer or assignment is approved by all agencies or organizations required or 
authorized under federal and state laws to approve such transfer or assignment. 

The provider licensee requesting the transfer or assignment must cooperate with the city and 
provide requested documentation, as the city deems necessary, in the city’s sole discretion and, 

13 - 12



at no cost to the city, to sufficiently understand evaluate the transferee’s ability to perform 
undercomply with the provisions of the license. 

If the city approves such transfer or assignment, the transferee or assignee shall become 
responsible for fulfilling all obligations under the license. A transfer or assignment of a license 
does not extend the term of the license. 

(134) Renewal. At least 30 days, but no more than 1280 days, prior to the expiration of a license 
granted pursuant to this section, a licensee seeking renewal of its license shall submit a license 
application to the city, including all information required in subsection (2) of this section and the 
application fee required in subsection (3) of this section. The city shall review the application as 
required by subsection (4) of this section and grant or deny the license within 90 days of 
submission of the application. If the city determines that the licensee is in violation of the terms 
of this chapter at the time it submits its application, the city may require that the licensee cure the 
violation or submit a detailed plan to cure the violation within a reasonable period of time, as 
determined by the city, before the city will consider the application and/or grant the license. If 
the city requires the licensee to cure or submit a plan to cure a violation, the city will grant or 
deny the license application within 90 days of confirming that the violation has been cured or of 
accepting the licensee’s plan to cure the violation. 

(145) Termination. 

(a) Revocation or Termination of a License. The City Council may terminate or revoke the 
license granted pursuant to this chapter for any of the following reasons: 

(A) Violation of any of the provisions of this chapter; 

(B) Violation of any provision of the license; 

(C) Misrepresentation in a license application; 

(D) Failure to pay taxes, compensation, fees or costs due the city after final determination by the 
city, of the taxes, compensation, fees or costs; 

(E) Failure to restore the rights-of-way after construction work as required by this chapter or 
other applicable state and local laws, ordinances, rules and regulations; 

(F) Failure to comply with technical, safety and engineering standards related to work in the 
rights-of-way; or 

(G) Failure to obtain or maintain any and all licenses, permits, certifications and other 
authorizations required by state or federal law for the placement, maintenance and/or operation 
of the utility facilities. 

(b) Standards for Revocation or Termination. In determining whether termination, revocation or 
some other sanction is appropriate, the following factors shall be considered: 

(A) The egregiousness of the misconduct; 

(B) The harm that resulted; 

13 - 13



(C) Whether the violation was intentional; 

(D) The ROW licensee’s history of compliance; and/or 

(E) The ROW licensee’s cooperation in discovering, admitting and/or curing the violation. 

(c) Notice and Cure. The city shall give the ROW licensee written notice of any apparent 
violations before terminating a ROW license. The notice shall include a short and concise 
statement of the nature and general facts of the violation or noncompliance and provide a 
reasonable time (no less than 20 and no more than 40 days) for the licensee to demonstrate that 
the licensee has remained in compliance, that the licensee has cured or is in the process of curing 
any violation or noncompliance, or that it would be in the public interest to impose a penalty or 
sanction less than termination or revocation. If the licensee is in the process of curing a violation 
or noncompliance, the licensee must demonstrate that it acted promptly and continues to actively 
work on compliance. If the licensee does not respond or if the City Administrator or designee 
determines that the licensee’s response is inadequate, the City Administrator or designee shall 
refer the matter to the City Council, which shall provide a duly noticed public hearing to 
determine whether the license shall be terminated or revoked and if any penalties or sanctions 
will be imposed. 

(d) Termination by Licensee. If a licensee ceases to use the ROW, be required to have a licenseas 
defined under this chapter, the licensee may terminate its license by giving the city, with a 30- 
days prior written notice to the city. Licensee may reapply for a ROW license at any time. No 
refunds or credits will be given for licenses terminated by the licensee or the city.  

(A) Within 45 days of surrendering a ROW license, the licensee shall file a final remittance form 
with the city stating “final remittance” and shall pay all usage fees due under this chapter through 
the date of termination. The licensee shall also remove its utility facilities from the rights-of-way 
as required by GMC Section 12.24.090(4).  

12.24.0780 Construction and restoration. 

(1) Construction Codes. Utility facilities shall be constructed, installed, operated, repaired and 
maintained in accordance with all applicable federal, state and local codes, rules and regulations, 
including but not limited to the National Electrical Code and the National Electrical Safety Code 
and the Gladstone Ccity Standardsstandards, in effect at the time of the work. When a utility 
operator, utility provider or licensee, or any person acting on its behalf, does any work in or 
affecting the rights-of-way, the utility operator shall, at its own expense, promptly restore the 
rights-of-way as directed by the city consistent with applicable city codes, rules and regulations, 
in effect at the time of the work. A utility operator, utility provider, licensee or other person 
acting on its behalf, shall use suitable barricades, flags, flagging attendants, lights, flares and 
other measures as required for the safety of all members of the general public and to prevent 
injury or damage to any person(s), vehicle or property by reason of such work in or affecting the 
rights of way or property. 

(2) Construction Permits. 

13 - 14



(a) No person shall perform any work on utility facilities within the rights-of-way without first 
obtaining all required permits, including but not limited to any wireless siting permits required in 
GMC Chapter 17.61. The city shall not issue a permit for the construction, installation, 
maintenance or repair of utility facilitieswork unless the utility operator of the facilities has 
applied for and received a valid license, franchise agreement or other valid agreement (if 
applicable), as required by this chapter or a valid franchise agreement, and all applicable fees 
have been paid. No permit is required for routine maintenance or repairs to customer service 
drops where such repairs or maintenance do not require cutting, digging, or breaking of, or 
damage to, the right-of-way and do not result in closing or blocking any portion of the travel lane 
for vehicular traffic, bicycle lanes or sidewalks. 

(b) In the event of an emergency, a utility operator with a license pursuant to this chapter or a 
valid franchise agreement, or its the utility operator’s contractor, may perform work on its utility 
facilities without first obtaining a permit from the city; provided, that, to the extent reasonably 
feasible, it attempts to notify the city prior to commencing the emergency work and in any event 
applies for a permit from the city as soon as reasonably practicable, but not more than 48 hours 
5:00 p.m. PST of the next business day after commencing the emergency work.  For purposes of 
this subsection (2), “emergency” means a circumstance in which immediate work or action is 
necessary to restore lost service or prevent immediate harm to persons or property. 

(c) Applications for permits to perform work on utility facilities within the ROW rights-of-way 
shall be submitted upon forms to be provided by the city and shall be accompanied by drawings, 
plans and specifications in sufficient detail to demonstrate: 

(A) That the utility facilities will be constructed in accordance with all applicable codes, rules 
and regulations, including city standards. 

(B) The location and route of all utility facilities to be installed aboveground or on existing utility 
poles. 

(C) The location and route of all utility facilities on or in the rights-of-way to be located under 
the surface of the ground, including the line and grade proposed for the burial at all points along 
the route that are within the rights-of-way. Applicant’s existing utility facilities shall be 
differentiated on the plans from new construction. The city may require additional information 
necessary to demonstrate that the proposed location can accommodate the utility facilities, as 
determined by the city. A cross-section shall be provided showing the applicant’s new and 
existing utility facilities in relation to the street, curb, sidewalk, or ROWrights-of-way. 

(D) The construction methods to be employed for protection of existing structures, fixtures, and 
utility facilities within or adjacent to the rights-of-way, and description of any improvements that 
applicant proposes to temporarily or permanently remove or relocate and, if deemed necessary 
by the city, methods to be employed for protection of existing structures, fixtures, and utility 
facilities within or adjacent to the ROWrights-of-way. 

(E) The applicant has an adequate traffic control plan that complies with subsection (2)(l) of this 
section. 

13 - 15



(c) All permit applications shall be accompanied by the verification of a qualified and duly 
authorized representative of the applicant that the drawings, plans and specifications submitted 
with the application comply with applicable technical codes, rules and regulations. The city may, 
in its sole discretion, require the verification of a registered professional engineer or other 
licensed profession, at no cost to the city. 

(d) All permit applications shall be accompanied by a written construction work schedule, which 
shall include an estimated start date and a deadline for completion of constructionwork. The 
construction work schedule is subject to approval by the city. 

(e) In addition to the requirements of this chapter, the applicant shall, at all times, comply with 
all other applicable city requirements. 

(f) If satisfied that the applications, plans and documents submitted comply with all requirements 
of this chapter, the city shall issue a permit authorizing the work in the rights-of-wayconstruction 
of the utility facilities, subject to such further conditions, restrictions or regulations affecting the 
time, place and manner of performing the work as the city may deem necessary or appropriate. 

(g) Except in the case of an emergency, the permittee shall notify the city not less than two 
working days in advance of any excavation or constructionwork in the rights-of-way. 

(h) All construction practices and activities shall be in accordance with the permit and approved 
final plans and specifications for the utility facilities that have been “Approved for Construction” 
by the city. The city and its representatives shall be provided access to the work site and such 
further information as they may require to ensure compliance with such requirements. 

(i) All work which does not comply with the permit, the approved or corrected plans and 
specifications for the work, or the requirements of this chapter shall be removed or corrected at 
the sole cost and expense of the permittee. The city is authorized to stop work in order to ensure 
compliance with the provisions of this chapter. If the permittee fails to remove or correct work as 
required in this subsection, the city may remove or correct the work at the cost and expense of 
the permittee, after notice and opportunity to cure, using qualified personnel or contractors 
consistent with applicable state and federal safety laws and regulations. 

(j) The permittee shall be responsible for providing correct and complete information on the 
permit application and in any related information provided to the city. If the city believes the 
permittee misrepresented, misstated, or omitted any material fact(s) in or related to its permit 
application, the city may deny or revoke the permit. The city may at any time require the permit 
holder to take additional measures to protect the health, safety, and welfare of the public. The 
permit holder shall be responsible for and pay all costs and expenses for such measures. 

(k) The permittee shall promptly complete all construction work activities so as to minimize 
disruption of the rights-of-way and other public and private property. All construction work 
within the rights-of-way, including restoration, must be completed within 60 days of the date of 
issuance of the construction permit unless an extension or an alternate schedule has been 
approved by the city. 

13 - 16



(l) Traffic Control Plan. The permittee shall protect the work area with sufficient traffic controls 
reviewed and accepted by the city before work begins. The permittee shall at all times ensure the 
presence of such workers, tools and materials, flaggers, barricades, and other safety devices as 
may be necessary to properly protect bicyclists, pedestrians, construction personnel, and 
vehicular traffic upon the roadway, and to warn and safeguard the public against injury or 
damage resulting from the work. 

(m) Any supervision or control exercised by the city shall not relieve the permittee or utility 
operator of any duty to the general public nor shall such supervision or control relieve the 
permittee or utility operator from any liability for loss, damage, or injury to persons or property. 

(3) Performance Surety. 

(a) The city may require a utility operator or permittee to provide a performance bond or other 
form of surety acceptable to the city equal to at least 125 percent of the estimated cost of the 
work within the rights-of-way of the city, which bond shall be provided before construction work 
is commenced. 

(b) If required, the performance bond or other form of surety acceptable to the city shall remain 
in force until 60 days after substantial completion of the work, as determined in writing by the 
city, including restoration of rights-of-way and other property affected by the constructionwork. 

(c) If required, the performance bond or other form of surety acceptable to the city shall 
guarantee, to the satisfaction of the city: 

(A) Timely completion of the work; 

(B) That the work is performed in compliance with applicable plans, permits, technical 
codes and standards; 

(C) Proper location of the utility facilities as specified by the city; 

(D) Restoration of the rights-of-way and other property affected by the work; and 

(E) Timely payment and satisfaction of all claims, demands or liens for labor, material, or 
services provided in connection with the work. 

(d) The release of the performance bond or other surety pursuant to subsection (3)(a) of this 
section does not relieve the utility operator from its obligation to restore rights-of-way or other 
property as required in subsection (5) of this section regardless of when the failure to restore 
rights-of-way or other property as required by this chapter occurs or is discovered. 

(4) Injury to Persons or Property. A utility operator, or any person acting on its behalf, shall 
preserve and protect from injury or damage other utility operators’ facilities in the rights-of-way, 
the public using the rights-of-way and any adjoining property, and take other necessary measures 
to protect life and property, including but not limited to buildings, walls, fences, trees or facilities 
that may be subject to damage from the permitted work. A utility operator shall be responsible 
for all injury to persons or damage to public or private property resulting from its failure to 
properly protect people and property and to carry out the work. 

13 - 17



(5) Restoration. 

(a) When a utility operator, or any person acting on its behalf, does any work in or affecting any 
rights-of-way, it shall, at its own expense, promptly restore such rights-of-way to the same or 
better condition as existed before the work was undertaken, in accordance with applicable 
federal, state and local laws, codes, ordinances, rules and regulations, in effect at the time of the 
work unless otherwise directed by the city. 

(b) If weather or other conditions beyond the utility operator’s control do not permit the 
complete restoration required by the city, the utility operator shall temporarily restore the 
affected area. Such temporary restoration shall be at the utility operator’s sole cost and expense 
and the utility operator shall promptly undertake and complete the required permanent 
restoration when the weather or other conditions no longer prevent such permanent restoration. 
Any corresponding modification to the construction work schedule may be subject to approval 
by the city. 

(c) If the utility operator fails to restore rights-of-way as required in this chapter, the city shall 
give the utility operator written notice and provide the utility operator a reasonable period of 
time which shall be not less than 10 days, unless an emergency or threat to public safety is 
deemed to exist, and shall not exceeding 30 days unless , or such additional time agreed to in 
writing by the city, to restore the rights-of-way. If, after said notice, the utility operator fails to 
restore the rights-of-way as required in this chapter, the city shall cause such restoration to be 
made at the cost and expense of the utility operator. If the city determines a threat to public 
safety exists, the city shall provide necessary temporary safeguards, at the utility operators’ sole 
cost and expense, and. If such threat exists, the utility operator shall have 24 hours to commence 
restoration. If the utility operator does not commence work is not commenced in 24 hours, the 
city, at its sole option, may commence restoration at the utility operator’s sole cost and expense. 

(6) Inspection. Every utility operator’s utility facilities shall be subject to the right of periodic 
inspection by the city to determine compliance with the provisions of this chapter and all other 
applicable state and city codes, ordinances, rules and regulations. Every utility operator shall 
cooperate with the city in permitting the inspection of utility facilities upon request of the city. 
The utility operator shall perform all testing, or permit the city to perform any testing at the 
utility operator’s costexpense, required by the city to determine that the installation of the utility 
operator’s facilities and the restoration of the ROW rights-of-way comply with the terms of this 
chapter and applicable state and city codes, ordinances, rules and regulations. 

(7) Coordination of Construction. All utility operators are required to make a good faith effort to 
both cooperate with and coordinate their construction work schedules with those of the city and 
other users of the rights-of-way. 

(a) Prior to January 1st of each year, utility operators shall provide the city with a written 
schedule of known proposed construction work activities for that year in, around or that may 
affect the rights-of-way. 

13 - 18



(b) Utility operators may shall meet with the city annually, or as determined by the city, in its 
sole discretion, to schedule and coordinate construction work in the rights-of-way. 

(c) All construction work locations, activities and schedules within the rights-of-way shall be 
coordinated as may be ordered by the city, to minimize public inconvenience, disruption, or 
damages. 

(8) Contractors. A utility operator may authorize a qualified contractor to perform any of the 
work authorized or required in this chapter on the utility operator’s behalf. Any contractor 
performing work on behalf of a utility operator shall be subject to applicable provisions of this 
chapter, except that a contractor that is not a utility operator shall not be required to obtain a 
license. In the event a utility operator authorizes a contractor to perform work on its behalf, the 
utility operator shall remain responsible and liable for compliance with the provisions of this 
chapter. 

12.24.0890 Location of facilities. 

(1) Location of Facilities. Unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the city: 

(a)  Utility facilities shall be installed underground in all areas of the city where there are no 
existing poles in the ROW, there is no space on existing poles in the ROW, or where the only 
poles in the ROW are used only for high voltage lines (as defined below). This requirement shall 
not apply to facilities used for transmission of electric energy at nominal voltages in excess of 
35,000 volts or to antennas, pedestals, cabinets or other above-ground equipment of any utility 
operator for which the utility operator has written authorization to place above-ground. 

(b) Whenever any existing electric utilities, cable facilities or communications facilities are 
located underground within the ROW rights-of-way of the city, the utility operator with 
permission to occupy the same ROW rights-of-way shall install all new facilities underground at 
no cost to the city. This requirement shall not apply to facilities used for transmission of electric 
energy at nominal voltages in excess of 35,000 volts (“high voltage lines”) unless otherwise 
directed by the city, or to antennas, pedestals, cabinets or other above-ground equipment of any 
utility operator, subject to applicable City requirements, including but not limited GMC Chapter 
17.61, and the City’s written approval. The city reserves the right to require written approval of 
the location of any such above-ground equipment in the ROWrights-of-way. 

(2) Interference with the Rights-of-Way. No utility operator or other person may locate or 
maintain its any utility facilities so as to unreasonably interfere with the use of the rights-of-way 
by the city, by the general public or by other persons authorized to use or be present in or upon 
the rights-of-way. Utility facilities shall not be located in area a manner thatof restrictsed the line 
of sight distance for vehicles or pedestrians nor interferes with the proper function of traffic 
control signs, signals, lighting, or other devices that affect traffic operation. All use of the rights-
of-way shall at all times be consistent with city codes, ordinances, rules and regulations in effect 
and as may be subsequently amended. 

(3) Relocation of Utility Facilities. 

13 - 19



(a) A utility operator shall, at no cost or expense to the city, temporarily or permanently remove, 
relocate, change or alter the position of any utility facility within the ROWrights-of-way, 
including relocation of aerial facilities underground, when requested to do so in writing by the 
city. The requirement to relocate aerial facilities underground shall not apply to high voltage 
lines unless otherwise directed by the city. 

(A) If relocation is required by the city, the city shall bear no responsibility or incur any costs, to 
provide or in any way secure alternate locations. 

(b) Nothing herein shall be deemed to preclude the utility operator from requesting 
reimbursement or compensation from a third party, pursuant to applicable laws, regulations, 
tariffs or agreements; provided, that the utility operator shall timely comply with the 
requirements of this section regardless of whether or not it has requested or received such 
reimbursement or compensation. 

(c) The city shall provide written notice of the time by which the utility operator must remove, 
relocate, change, alter or underground its facilities. If a utility operator fails to remove, relocate, 
change, alter or underground any utility facility as requested by the city and by the date 
reasonably established by the city, the utility operator shall pay all costs incurred by the city due 
to such failure, including but not limited to costs related to project delays, and the city may 
cause, using qualified personnel or contractors consistent with applicable state and federal safety 
laws and regulations, the utility facility to be removed, relocated, changed, altered or 
undergrounded at the utility operator’s sole cost and expense. Upon Within 30 days of receipt of 
a detailed invoice from the city, the utility operator shall reimburse the city the full invoiced 
amount for the costs the city incurred within 30 days. 

(d) The city shall coordinate the schedule for relocation of utility facilities and based on such 
effort shall provide written notice of the time by which the utility operator must remove, 
relocate, change, alter or underground its facilities. If a utility operator fails to remove, relocate, 
change, alter or underground any utility facility as requested by the city by the date reasonably 
established by the city, the utility operator shall pay all costs incurred by the city due to such 
failure, including but not limited to costs related to project delays, and the city may cause, using 
qualified personnel or contractors consistent with applicable state and federal safety laws and 
regulations, the utility facility to be removed, relocated, altered, or undergrounded at the utility 
operator’s sole expense. Upon receipt of a detailed invoice from the city, the utility operator shall 
reimburse the city for the costs the city incurred within 30 days. 

(de) The city will cooperate with the utility operator in securing identifying alternate locations 
within the ROWrights-of-way for its utility facilities. The city shall not bear no any 
responsibility to obtain, incur any costs or otherwise compensate, or otherwise assist the utility 
operator in relocation of its facilities, including instances in which the utility operator must 
relocate outside the rights-of-way to a location not in the control of the city. 

(4) Removal of Unauthorized Facilities. 

13 - 20



(a) Unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the city, within 30 days following written notice 
from the city, or such other time agreed to in writing by the city, a utility operator and any other 
person that owns, controls, or maintains any abandoned or unauthorized utility facility within the 
rights-of-way shall, at its own cost and expense, remove the facility and restore the rights-of-way 
as provided in GMC Section 12.24.080. 

(b) A utility system or facility is unauthorized under any of the following circumstances: 

(A) The utility facility, or any portion of the facility, is outside the scope of authority 
granted by the city under the license or, franchise or other written agreement. This 
includes utility facilities that were never licensed or franchised and utility facilities that 
were once licensed or franchised but for which the license or franchise has expired or 
been terminated. This does not include any utility facility for which the city has provided 
written authorization for abandonment in place. 

(B) The utility facility has been abandoned and the city has not provided written 
authorization for abandonment in place. A utility facility is abandoned if it is not in use 
and is not planned for further use. A utility facility will be presumed abandoned if it is 
not used for a period of 12 consecutive months. A utility operator may overcome this 
presumption by presenting plans for future use of the utility facility. 

(C) The utility facility is improperly constructed or installed or is in a location not 
permitted by the construction permit, license, franchise or this chapter. 

(D) The utility operator is in violation of a material provision of this chapter and fails to 
cure such violation within 30 days of the city sending written notice of such violation, 
unless the city extends such time period in writing. 

(5) Removal by City. 

(a) The city retains the right and privilege to cut or move any utility facilities located within the 
rights-of-way, without notice, as the city may determine to be necessary, appropriate or useful in 
response to a public health or safety emergency. The city will use qualified personnel or 
contractors consistent with applicable state and federal safety laws and regulations to the extent 
reasonably practicable without impeding the city’s response to the emergency. The city will use 
best efforts to provide the utility operator with notice prior to cutting or moving utility facilities. 
If prior notice is not possible, the city will provide such notice as soon as reasonably practicable 
after resolution of the emergency. 

(b) If the utility operator fails to remove any utility facility when required to do so under this 
chapter, the city may remove the utility facility using qualified personnel or contractors 
consistent with applicable state and federal safety laws and regulations, and the utility operator 
shall be responsible for paying the full cost of the removal and any administrative costs incurred 
by the city in removing the utility facility and obtaining reimbursement. Within 30 days of Upon 
receipt of a detailed invoice from the city, the utility operator shall reimburse the city for the 
costs and expenses the city incurred within 30 days. The obligation to remove and to reimburse 

13 - 21



the city for any failure to remove utility facilities shall survive the termination of the license or 
franchise. 

(c)(c) The city shall not be liable to any utility operator for any damage to utility facilities, or for 
any incidental or consequential losses resulting directly or indirectly therefrom, by the city or its 
contractor in removing, relocating, changing or altering the facilities pursuant to subsection (2), 
(3) or (4) of this section or undergrounding its facilities as required by subsection (1) of this 
section, or resulting from the utility operator’s failure to remove, relocate, change, alter or 
underground its facilities as required by those subsections, unless such damage arises directly 
from the city’s negligence or willful misconduct. 

(6) Engineering Record Drawings. The utility operator shall provide the city with two complete 
sets of record drawings in a form acceptable to the city showing the location of all its utility 
facilities in the ROW rights-of-way after initial construction if such plan changed during 
construction. The utility operator shall, at no cost to the city, provide updated complete sets of as 
built plans upon request of the city, but not more than once per year.  

(7) Within 30 days of a written request from the city, or as otherwise agreed to in writing by the 
city, every utility operator shall make available for inspection by the city at reasonable times and 
intervals all maps, records, books, diagrams, plans and other documents, maintained by the 
utility operator with respect to its facilities within the rights-of-way. Access shall be provided 
within the city unless prior arrangement for access elsewhere has been made with the city.Utility 
operator, utility provider and ROW licensee shall provide, at no cost to the city, a comprehensive 
map showing the location of any facility in the city. Such map shall be provided in a format 
acceptable to the city, with accompanying data sufficient enough for the city to determine the 
exact location of facilities, currently in Shapefile or Geodatabase format. The city may not 
request such information more than once per year. 

12.24.1090 Leased capacity. 

A utility operator may rent, sell, lease or otherwise provide capacity or space on or in its utility 
facilities to others; provided, that, upon request, the utility operator provides the city with the 
name and business address of any lesseesuch person. A utility operator is not required to provide 
such information if disclosure is expressly prohibited by applicable law; provided, that the utility 
operator takes reasonable steps to ensure that its lesseessuch persons are in compliance with this 
chapter. A utility operator shall require that all leases have obtained proper authority, in the form 
of a permit, license or franchise from the city before leasing capacity on or in its facilities. 

12.24.1010 Maintenance. 

(1) Every utility operator shall install and maintain all utility facilities in a manner that complies 
with applicable federal, state and local laws, rules, regulations and policies. The utility operator 
shall, at its own cost and expense, repair and maintain utility facilities from time to time as may 
be necessary to accomplish this purpose. 

(2) If, after written notice from the city of the need for repair or maintenance as required in 
subsection (1) of this section, a utility operator fails to repair and maintain utility facilities as 

13 - 22



requested by the city and by the date reasonably established by the city, the city may perform 
such repair or maintenance using qualified personnel or contractors consistent with applicable 
state and federal safety laws and regulations at the utility operator’s sole cost and expense. Upon 
Within 30 days of receipt of a detailed invoice from the city, the utility operator shall reimburse 
the city the full invoiced amount for the costs the city incurred within 30 days. 

12.24.1120 Vacation. 

If the city vacates any ROWrights-of-way, or portion thereof, that a utility operator uses, the 
utility operator shall, at its own expense, remove its utility facilities from the ROW vacated 
rights-of-way unless (i) the city reserves a public utility easement, which the city shall make a 
reasonable effort to do; provided, that there is no expense to the city, or (ii) the utility operator 
obtains an easement for its utility facilities. If the utility operator fails to remove its utility 
facilities within 30 days after a ROW right-of-way is vacated, or as otherwise directed or agreed 
to in writing by the city, the city may remove the utility facilities using qualified personnel or 
contractors consistent with applicable state and federal safety laws and regulations at the utility 
operator’s sole cost and expense. Upon Within 30 days of receipt of an invoice from the city, the 
utility operator shall reimburse the city the full invoiced amount for the costs the city incurred 
within 30 days. 

12.24.1230 Right-of-way use fee. 

(1) Except as set forth in subsection (2) of this section, every person that owns utility facilities in 
the city and every person that uses utility facilities in the city to provide utility service, whether 
or not the person owns the utility facilities used to provide the utility services, shall pay the 
applicable ROW use fee(s) for every utility service provided using the rights-of-way in the 
amount determined by resolution of the City Council. A utility provider shall pay the applicable 
ROW use fee for every utility service provided in the city. 

(2) A person that is a utility operator and a utility provider shall be subject to the ROW use fee(s) 
applicable to utility operators and, in addition, to the ROW use fee(s) applicable to utility 
providers; provided, however, that the person must pay only the greater of the two fees, or, if the 
two fees are the same, the utility operator ROW use fee. A utility operator whose only facilities 
in the ROW are facilities mounted on above-ground structures within the ROW, which structures 
are owned by another person, and with no facilities strung between such structures or otherwise 
within, under or above the ROW (other than equipment necessary to operate the mounted 
facilities that has been expressly approved by the city to be placed in the ROW), shall pay the 
attachment fee set by City Council resolution for each attachment, or such other fee set forth in 
the license granted by the city. Unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the city, the fee shall be 
paid quarterly, in arrears, within 45 days after the end of each calendar quarter and shall be 
accompanied by information sufficient to illustrate the calculation of the amount payable. 

(3) No acceptance of any payment shall be construed as accord that the amount paid is in fact the 
correct amount, nor shall such acceptance of payment be construed as a release of any claim the 
city may have for further or additional sums payable. 

13 - 23



(4) Right-of-way use fee payments required by this section shall be reduced by any franchise fee 
payments received by the city, but in no case will be less than $0.00. 

(5) Unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the city, the ROW use fee set forth in subsection (1) 
of this section shall be paid quarterly, in arrears, within 45 days after the end of each calendar 
quarter. Each payment shall be accompanied by an accounting of gross revenues, if applicable, 
and a calculation of the amount payable on (a remittance form may be provided by the city). The 
A utility operator or utility provide shall provide,city may request, and will be provided at no 
cost to the city, any additional reports or information it the city deems necessary, in its sole 
discretion, to ensure compliance by the utility provider, utility operator or licenseewith this 
section. Such information may include, but is not limited to: chart of accounts, total revenues by 
categories and dates, list of products and services, narrative documenting calculation, details on 
number of customers within the city limits, or any other information needed for the city to easily 
readily verify compliance. 

(6) The calculation of the ROW use fee required by this section shall be subject to all applicable 
limitations imposed by federal or state law in effect and as may be subsequently amended. 

(7) The city reserves the right to enact other fees and taxes applicable to the utility providers and, 
utility operators and licensee subject to this chapter. Unless expressly permitted by the city in 
enacting such fee or tax, or required by applicable state or federal law, no utility operator or 
utility provider may deduct, offset or otherwise reduce or avoid the obligation to pay any 
lawfully enacted fees or taxes based on the payment of the ROW use fee or any other fees 
required by this chapter. 

12.24.1305 Penalties and interest on right-of-way usage fee. 

(1) Prior to February 1, 2019, ROW usage fees not received by the city on or before the due date 
are subject to interest of nine percent per year. 

(2) After February 1, 2019, the following penalties: will be imposed. 

Penalties and interest imposed by this section are in addition to any penalties that may be 
assessed under other sections or chapters of the Gladstone Municipal Code. 

(a) Any person who has not submitted the required remittance forms or remitted the correct fees 
when due as provided in GMC Section 12.24.130 shall pay a penalty listed below in addition to 
the amount due: 

(A) First occurrence during any one calendar year: 10 percent of the amount owed, or 
$25.00, whichever is greater. 

(B) Second occurrence during any one calendar year: 15 percent of the amount owed, or 
$50.00, whichever is greater. 

(C) Third occurrence during any one calendar year: 20 percent of the amount owed, or 
$75.00, whichever is greater. 

13 - 24



(D) Fourth occurrence during any one calendar year: 25 percent of the amount owed, or 
$100.00, whichever is greater. 

(b) If the city determines that the nonpayment of any remittance due under this section is due to 
fraud or intent to evade the provisions hereof, an additional penalty of 25 percent of the amount 
owed, or $500.00, whichever is greater, shall be added thereto in addition to other penalties 
stated in this section. 

(c) In addition to the penalties imposed, any person who fails to remit any fee when due as 
provided in GMC Section 12.24.130 shall pay interest at the rate of 1.5 percent per month or 
fractions thereof, without proration for portions of a month, on the total amount due (including 
penalties), from the date on which the remittance first became delinquent, until received by the 
city. 

(d) Every penalty imposed, and such interest as accrues under the provision of this section, shall 
be merged with, and become part of, the fee required to be paid. 

(2) The City Administrator or designee, in their sole discretion, shall have the authority to reduce 
or waive the penalties and interest due under this section. 

(3) Penalties and interest imposed pursuant to this section are in addition to any penalties that 
may be assessed under other sections or chapters of the Gladstone Municipal Code. 

12.24.140 Audits. 

(1) Within 30 days of a written request from the city, or as otherwise agreed to in writing by the 
city,: 

(a)  Eevery licensee, utility operator and utility provider shall furnish the city, at no cost to the 
city, with information sufficient to demonstrate compliance with all the applicable requirements 
of this chapter and its franchise agreement, if any, including but not limited to payment of any 
applicable business license fee, ROW licensing fee, ROW use fee, attachment fee or franchise 
fees. 

(b) Every utility operator, provider and licensee shall make available for inspection by the city at 
reasonable times and intervals all maps, records, books, diagrams, plans and other documents, 
maintained by the utility operator with respect to its facilities within the rights-of-way. Access 
shall be provided within the city unless prior arrangement for access elsewhere has been made 
with the city. 

(2) If the city’s audit of the books, records and other documents or information of the licensee 
utility operator or utility provider demonstrates that the licensee, utility operator or utility 
provider has underpaid the ROW use fee, licensing fee, attachment fee or franchise fee or any 
other fee or payment by three percent or more in any one year, the licensee, utility operator, or 
utility provider shall reimburse the city for the cost of the audit, in addition to any interest and 
penalties owed pursuant to GMC Section 12.24.130 or as specified in other agreements or 
franchises with the city. 

13 - 25



(3) Any underpayment, including any interest, penalties or audit cost reimbursement, shall be 
paid within 30 days of the city’s notice to the utility operator or utility service provider of such 
underpayment. 

(4) The licensee, utility provider or utility operator is not required toshall maintain records 
subject to this subsection for more not less than six years. The city is not required to maintain 
records beyond the state retention schedules. 

12.24.150 Insurance and indemnification. 

(1) Insurance. 

(a) All utility operators shall maintain in full force and effect the following liability insurance 
policies that protect the utility operator and the city, as well as the city’s officers, agents, and 
employees: 

(A) Comprehensive general liability insurance with limits not less than: 

(i) Three million dollars for bodily injury or death to each person; 

(ii) Three million dollars for property damage resulting from any one accident; and 

(iii) Three million dollars for all other types of liability. 

(B) Commercial automobile liability insurance for owned, non-owned and hired vehicles with a 
limit of $1,000,000 for each person and $3,000,000 for each accident. 

(C) Worker’s compensation within statutory limits and employer’s liability with limits of not less 
than $1,000,000. 

(D) If not otherwise included in the policies required by subsection (1)(a)(A) of this section, 
maintain comprehensive form premises-operations, explosions and collapse hazard, underground 
hazard and products completed hazard with limits of not less than $3,000,000. 

(E) Utility operator may utilize primary and umbrella liability insurance policies to satisfy the 
preceding insurance policy limit requirements. 

(b) The limits of the insurance shall be subject to statutory changes as to maximum limits of 
liability imposed on municipalities of the State of Oregon. The insurance shall be without 
prejudice to coverage otherwise existing and shall name, or the certificate of insurance shall 
name, with the exception of worker’s compensation, as additional insureds the city and its 
officers, agents, and employees. The coverage must apply as to claims between insureds on the 
policy. The insurance shall not be canceled or materially altered without 30 days prior written 
notice first being given to the city, and the certificate of insurance shall include such an 
endorsement. If the insurance is canceled or materially altered, the utility operator shall obtain a 
replacement policy that complies with the terms of this section and provide the city with a 
replacement certificate of insurance. The utility operator shall maintain continuous uninterrupted 
coverage, in the terms and amounts required. The utility operator may self-insure, or keep in 
force a self-insured retention plus insurance, for any or all of the above coverage. 

13 - 26



(c) The utility operator shall maintain on file with the city a certificate of insurance, or proof of 
self-insurance acceptable to the city, certifying the coverage required above. 

(2) Financial Assurance. Unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the city, before a franchise 
granted or license issued pursuant to this chapter is effective, and as necessary thereafter, the 
utility operator shall provide a performance bond or other financial security or assurance, in a 
form acceptable to the city, as security for the full and complete performance of the franchise or 
license, if applicable, and compliance with the terms of this chapter, including any costs, 
expenses, damages or loss the city pays or incurs because of any failure attributable to the utility 
operator to comply with the codes, ordinances, rules, regulations or permits of the city. This 
obligation is in addition to the performance surety required by GMC Section 12.24.080(3). 

(3) Indemnification. 

(a) Each utility operator shall defend, indemnify and hold the city and its officers, employees, 
agents and representatives harmless from and against any and all liability, causes of action, 
claims, damages, losses, judgments and other costs and expenses, including attorney fees and 
costs of suit or defense (at both the trial and appeal level, whether or not a trial or appeal ever 
takes place) that may be asserted by any person in any way arising out of, resulting from, during 
or in connection with, or alleged to arise out of or result from the negligencet, carelessness, or 
wrongful acts, omissions, failure to act, or other misconduct of the utility operator or its 
affiliates, officers, employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors, or lessees in the work, 
construction, operation, maintenance, repair, or removal of its facilities, and in providing or 
offering utility services over the facilities, whether such acts or omissions are authorized, 
allowed, or prohibited by this chapter or by a franchise agreement. The acceptance of a license 
under GMC Section 12.24.070, or of a franchise granted by the city, shall constitute such an 
agreement by the applicant whether the same is expressed or not, unless expressly stated 
otherwise in the license or franchise. Upon notification of any such claim the city shall notify the 
utility operator and provide the utility operator with an opportunity to provide defense regarding 
any such claim. 

(b) Every utility operator shall also indemnify the city for any damages, claims, additional costs 
or expenses assessed against or payable by the city arising out of or resulting, directly or 
indirectly, from the utility operator’s failure to remove or relocate any of its facilities in the 
rights-of-way in a timely manner, unless the utility operator’s failure arises directly from the 
city’s negligence or willful misconduct. 

12.24.160 Compliance. 

Every licensee, utility operator and utility provider shall comply with all applicable federal and 
state laws and regulations, including regulations of any administrative agency thereof, as well as 
all applicable ordinances, resolutions, rules and regulations of the city, heretofore or hereafter 
adopted or established during the entire term of any license granted under this chapter. 

12.24.170 Confidential/proprietary information. 

13 - 27



If any person is required by this chapter to provide books, records, maps or information to the 
city that the person reasonably believes to be confidential or proprietary, and such books, 
records, maps or information are clearly marked as confidential at the time of disclosure to the 
city (“confidential information”), the city shall take reasonable steps to protect the confidential 
information to the extent permitted by Oregon Public Records Laws. In the event the city 
receives a public records request to inspect any confidential information and the city determines 
that it will be necessary to reveal the confidential information, to the extent reasonably possible 
the city will notify the person that submitted the confidential information of the records request 
prior to releasing the confidential information. The city shall not be required to incur any costs to 
protect any confidential information, other than the city’s routine internal procedures for 
complying with the Oregon Public Records Law. 

12.24.180 Penalties. 

(1) Any person found in violation of any of the provision of this chapter or the ROW license 
shall be subject to a penalty of not less than $150.00, nor more than $2,500 for each offense. A 
violation shall be deemed to exist separately for each and every day during which a violation 
exists. 

(2) Nothing in this chapter shall be construed as limiting any judicial or other remedies the city 
may have at law or in equity, for enforcement of this chapter. 

12.24.190 Severability and preemption. 

(1) The provisions of this chapter shall be interpreted to be consistent with applicable federal and 
state law, and shall be interpreted, to the extent possible, to cover only matters not preempted by 
federal or state law. 

(2) If any article, section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, term, provision, condition or 
portion of this chapter is for any reason declared or held to be invalid or unenforceable by any 
court of competent jurisdiction or superseded by state or federal legislation, rules, regulations or 
decision, the remainder of this chapter shall not be affected thereby but shall be deemed as a 
separate, distinct and independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining portions hereof, and each remaining article, section, subsection, sentence, clause, 
phrase, term, provision, condition, covenant and portion of this chapter shall be valid and 
enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law. In the event any provision is preempted by 
federal or state laws, rules or regulations, the provision shall be preempted only to the extent 
required by law and any portion not preempted shall survive. If any federal or state law resulting 
in preemption is later repealed, rescinded, amended or otherwise changed to end the preemption, 
such provision shall thereupon return to full force and effect and shall thereafter be binding 
without further action by the city. 

12.24.200 Application to existing agreements. 

To the extent that this chapter is not in conflict with and can be implemented consistent with 
existing franchise agreements, this chapter shall apply to all existing franchise agreements 
granted to utility operators by the city. 

13 - 28



13 - 29





ORDINANCE 1526 
EXHIBIT “A” 

12.24.010  Purpose and intent. 

The purpose and intent of this chapter is to: 

(1) Permit and manage reasonable access to the rights-of-way of the city for utility purposes and 
conserve the limited physical capacity of those rights-of-way held in trust by the city consistent 
with applicable state and federal law; 

(2) Ensure that the city’s current and ongoing costs of granting and regulating access to and the 
use of the rights-of-way are fully compensated by the persons seeking such access and causing 
such costs; 

(3) Secure fair and reasonable compensation to the city and its residents for permitting use of the 
rights-of-way by persons who generate revenue by placing, owning, using or operating facilities 
therein or charging residents for services delivered; 

(4) Ensure that all utility companies, persons and other entities owning or operating utility 
facilities and/or providing utility services within the city comply with the ordinances, rules and 
regulations of the city; 

(5) Ensure that the city can continue to fairly and responsibly protect the public health, safety 
and welfare of its residents; 

(6) Encourage the provision of advanced and competitive utility services on the widest possible 
basis to businesses and residents of the city; and 

(7) Comply with applicable provisions of state and federal law. 

12.24.020 Jurisdiction and management of the public rights-of-way. 

(1) The city has jurisdiction and exercises regulatory management over all rights-of-way within 
the city under authority of the City Charter and Oregon law. 

(2) The city has jurisdiction and exercises regulatory management over each right-of-way 
whether the city has a fee, easement, or other legal interest in the right-of-way, and whether the 
legal interest in the right-of-way was obtained by grant, dedication, prescription, reservation, 
condemnation, annexation, foreclosure or other means. 

(3) The exercise of jurisdiction and regulatory management of a right-of-way by the city is not 
official acceptance of the right-of-way and does not obligate the city to maintain or repair any 
part of the right-of-way. 

(4) The provisions of this chapter are subject to and will be applied consistent with applicable 
state and federal laws, rules and regulations, and, to the extent possible, shall be interpreted to be 
consistent with such laws, rules and regulations. 

13 - 30



12.24.030 Regulatory fees and compensation not a tax. 

(1) The fees and costs provided for in this chapter, and any compensation charged and paid for 
use of the rights-of-way provided for in this chapter, are separate from, and in addition to, any 
and all other federal, state, local, and city charges, including but not limited to: any permit fee, or 
any other generally applicable fee, tax, or charge on business, occupations, property, or income 
as may be levied, imposed, or due from a utility operator, utility provider or licensee, its 
customers or subscribers, or on account of the lease, sale, delivery, or transmission of utility 
services. 

(2) The city has determined that any fee or tax provided for by this chapter is not subject to the 
property tax limitations of Article XI, Sections 11 and 11b of the Oregon Constitution. These 
fees or taxes are not imposed on property or property owners. 

(3) The fees and costs provided for in this chapter are subject to applicable federal and state laws. 

12.24.040 Definitions. 

For the purpose of this chapter the following terms, phrases, words and their derivations shall 
have the meaning given herein. When not inconsistent with the context, words used in the 
present tense include the future, words in the plural number include the singular number and 
words in the singular number include the plural number. The words “shall” and “will” are 
mandatory and “may” is permissive. 

“Cable service” is to be defined consistent with federal law and means the one-way transmission 
to subscribers of: (1) video programming, or (2) other programming service; and subscriber 
interaction, if any, which is required for the selection or use of such video programming or other 
programming service. 

“City” means the City of Gladstone, an Oregon municipal corporation, and individuals 
authorized to act on the city’s behalf. 

“City Council” means the elected governing body of the City of Gladstone, Oregon. 

“City facilities” means structures or equipment located within the right-of-way or public 
easement that are owned, managed, maintained or operated by the City and used for 
governmental purposes, including, but not limited to, sanitary sewer, storm sewer or water 
infrastructure such as pipes, wires, conduit, valves, vaults and appurtenances. 

“City standards” means the Gladstone Design and Construction Standards and any other 
applicable city construction, engineering and design standards and policies in effect at the time 
of any work. 

“Communications services” means any service provided for the purpose of transmission of 
information including, but not limited to, voice, video, or data, without regard to the transmission 
protocol employed, whether or not the transmission medium is owned by the provider itself. 
“Communications service” includes all forms of telephone services and voice, video, data or 
information transport, but does not include: (1) cable service; (2) open video system service, as 

13 - 31



defined in 47 C.F.R. 76; (3) public communications systems; (4) over-the-air radio or television 
broadcasting to the public-at-large from facilities licensed by the Federal Communications 
Commission or any successor thereto; and (5) direct-to-home satellite service within the meaning 
of Section 602 of the Telecommunications Act of 1996, Pub. L. 104–104, 110 Stat. 56 (1996). 

“Days” mean calendar days unless otherwise specified. 

. 

“Gross revenue” means any and all amounts, of any kind, nature or form, without deduction for 
expense, less net uncollectables, derived directly or indirectly from the operation of utility 
facilities in the city and/or the provision of utility service in the city, subject to all applicable 
limitations in federal or state law. 

“License” means the authorization granted by the city to a utility operator pursuant to this 
chapter. 

“Licensee” means any person that has a valid license issued by the city pursuant to this chapter. 

“Person” means and includes any individual, firm, sole proprietorship, corporation, company, 
partnership, co-partnership, joint-stock company, trust, limited liability company, association, 
municipality, special district, government entity or other organization, including any natural 
person or any other legal entity. 

“Public communications system” means any system owned or operated by a government entity 
or entities for its exclusive use for internal communications or communications with other 
government entities, and includes services provided by the State of Oregon pursuant to 
ORS 283.140. “Public communications system” does not include any system used for sale or 
resale, including trade, barter or other exchange of value, of communications services or capacity 
on the system, directly or indirectly, to any person. 

“Public utility easement” means the space in, upon, above, along, across, over or under an 
easement for the constructing, reconstructing, operating, maintaining, inspecting, and repairing 
of utilities facilities. “Public utility easement” does not include an easement (1) that has been 
privately acquired by a utility operator, (2) solely for the constructing, reconstructing, operating, 
maintaining, inspecting, and repairing of city facilities, or (3) where the proposed use by the 
utility operator is inconsistent with the terms of any easement granted to the city. 

“Rights-of-way” means the space in, upon, above, along, across, over or under the public streets, 
roads, highways, lanes, courts, ways, alleys, boulevards, bridges, trails, paths, sidewalks, bicycle 
lanes, public utility easements and all other public ways or areas, including the subsurface under 
and air space over these areas, but does not include parks, parkland, or other city property not 
generally open to the public for travel. This definition applies only to the extent of the city’s 
right, title, interest and authority to grant a license to occupy and use such areas for utility 
facilities. 

“Utility facility” or “facility” means any physical component of a system, including but not 
limited to the poles, pipes, mains, conduits, ducts, cables, wires, transmitters, plant, equipment 

13 - 32



and other facilities, located within, under or above the rights-of-way, any portion of which is 
used or designed to be used to deliver, transmit or otherwise provide utility service. 

“Utility operator” means any person who owns, places, controls, operates or maintains a utility 
facility within the city. 

“Utility provider” means any person who provides utility service to customers within the city 
limits, whether or not any facilities in the ROW are owned by such provider. 

“Utility service” means the provision, by means of utility facilities permanently located within, 
under or above the rights-of-way, whether or not such facilities are owned by the service 
provider, of electricity, natural gas, communications services, cable services, water, sewer, 
and/or storm sewer to or from customers within the city limits, or the transmission or provision 
of any of these services through the city whether or not customers within the city  receive those 
transmissions or services. 

“Work” means the construction, demolition, installation, replacement, repair, maintenance or 
relocation of any utility facility, including but not limited to any excavation and restoration 
required in association with such construction, demolition, installation, replacement, repair, 
maintenance or relocation. 

12.24.050 Utility provider registration. 

(1) Registration Required. Every person that desires to provide utility services to customers 
within the city shall register with the city prior to providing any utility services to any customer 
in the city. Every person providing utility services to customers within the city as of the effective 
date of this chapter shall register within 30 days of the effective date of this chapter.  

(2) Annual Registration. After registering with the City pursuant to subsection (1) of this section, 
the registrant shall, by December 31st of each year, file with the City a new registration form if it 
intends to provide utility service at any time in the following calendar year. Registrants that file 
an initial registration pursuant to subsection (1) of this section on or after September 30th shall 
not be required to file an annual registration until December 31st of the following year. 

(3) Registration Application. The registration shall be on a form provided by the City, and shall 
be accompanied by any additional documents required by the City to identify the registrant and 
its legal status, describe the type of utility services provided or to be provided by the registrant 
and list the facilities over which the utility services will be provided. 

(4) Registration Fee. Each application for registration shall be accompanied by a nonrefundable 
registration fee in an amount to be determined by resolution of the city council sufficient to fully 
recover all of the City’s costs of administering the registration program. 

12.24.060 Right-of-way license. 

(1) License Required. 

13 - 33



(a) Except those utility operators with a valid franchise from the city, every person that wishes to 
be a utility operator shall obtain a license from the city prior to conducting any work in the 
ROW. 

(b) Every person that owns or controls utility facilities in the rights-of-way as of the effective 
date of this chapter shall apply for a license from the city within 30 days of the later of: (A) the 
effective date of this chapter, or (B) the expiration of a valid franchise agreement granted by the 
city, unless a new franchise agreement is granted by the city pursuant to subsection (6) of this 
section. 

(c) The provisions of this section do not apply to any person subject to and in compliance with 
the cable television franchise requirement of GMC Chapter 5.16, except that subsection (11) of 
this section shall apply to the extent such person provides multiple services. 

(2) License Application. The license application shall be on a form provided by the city, and 
shall be accompanied by any additional documents required by the application or the city, in the 
city’s sole discretion, to identify the applicant, its legal status, including its authorization to do 
business in Oregon, a description of the utility facilities in the rights-of-way or to be installed in 
the rights-of-way, a description of type of utility service provided or to be provided by the 
applicant, if any, and other information reasonably necessary to determine the applicant’s ability 
to comply with the terms of this chapter. 

(3) License Application Fee. The application shall be accompanied by a nonrefundable 
application fee or deposit set by resolution of the City Council. 

(4) Determination by City. The city shall issue, within a reasonable period of time, a written 
determination granting or denying the license in whole or in part. If the license is denied, the 
written determination shall include the reasons for denial. The license shall be evaluated based 
upon the provisions of this chapter, the continuing capacity of the rights-of-way to accommodate 
the applicant’s proposed utility facilities and the applicable federal, state and local laws, rules, 
regulations and policies. 

 

(5) Changes to Information Contained on the License Application. Within 30 days of a change to 
the information contained in the application, the licensee shall notify the city in writing of such 
change(s). 

(6) Franchise Agreements. If the public interest warrants, as determined by the city in its sole 
discretion, the city and utility operator may enter into a written franchise agreement that includes 
terms that clarify, enhance, expand, waive or vary the provisions of this chapter, consistent with 
applicable state and federal law. The franchise may conflict with the terms of this chapter with 
the review and approval of City Council. The franchisee shall be subject to the provisions of this 
chapter to the extent such provisions are not in conflict with the express provisions of any such 
franchise. In the event of a conflict between the express provisions of a franchise and this 
chapter, the franchise shall control. 

13 - 34



(7) Rights Granted. 

(a) The license granted hereunder shall authorize and permit the licensee, subject to the 
provisions of the city codes and other applicable provisions of state or federal law, in effect and 
as may be subsequently amended, to construct, place, maintain, upgrade, repair and operate 
utility facilities in the rights-of-way for the term of the license for the provision of utility 
service(s) authorized in the license. In the event the licensee offers different service(s) than those 
authorized in the license, the licensee shall inform the city of such changes no later than 30 days 
after the change. 

(b) Any license granted pursuant to this chapter shall not convey equitable or legal title in the 
rights-of-way and may not be assigned or transferred except as permitted in subsection (12) of 
this section. 

Neither the issuance of the license nor any provisions contained therein shall constitute a waiver 
or bar to the exercise of any governmental right or power, including, without limitation, the 
police power or regulatory power of the city. 

(8) Term. Subject to the termination provisions in subsection (14) of this section, the license 
granted pursuant to this chapter will be effective as of the date it is issued by the city will have a 
term ending five calendar years from: (a) January 1st of the year in which the license took effect 
for licenses that took effect between January 1st and June 30th; or (b) January 1st of the year 
after the license took effect for licenses that become effective between July 1st and December 
31st. 

(9) License Nonexclusive. No license granted pursuant to this section shall confer any exclusive 
right, privilege, license or franchise to occupy or use the rights-of-way for utility facilities, 
delivery of utility services or any other purpose. The city expressly reserves the right to grant 
licenses, franchises or other rights to other persons, as well as the city’s right to use the rights-of-
way, for similar or different purposes. The license is subject to all recorded deeds, easements, 
dedications, conditions, covenants, restrictions, encumbrances, and claims of title of record that 
may affect the rights-of-way. Nothing in the license shall be deemed to grant, convey, create, or 
vest in licensee a real property interest in land, including any fee, leasehold interest or easement. 

(10) Reservation of City Rights. Nothing in the license shall be construed to prevent the city 
from grading, paving, repairing and/or altering any rights-of-way, constructing, laying down, 
repairing, relocating or removing city facilities or establishing any other public work, utility or 
improvement of any kind, including repairs, replacement or removal of any city facilities. If any 
of licensee’s utility facilities interfere with the construction, repair, replacement, alteration or 
removal of any rights-of-way, public work, city utility, city improvement or city facility, except 
those providing utility services in competition with a licensee, licensee’s facilities shall be 
removed or relocated as provided in GMC Sections 12.24.090(3), (4) and (5), in a manner 
acceptable to the city and consistent with city standards, industry standard engineering and safety 
codes. 

(11) Multiple Services. 

13 - 35



(a) A utility operator that provides or transmits or allows the provision or transmission of utility 
services and other services over its facilities is subject to the license and ROW use fee 
requirements of this chapter for the portion of the facilities and extent of utility services 
delivered over those facilities. Nothing in this subsection (11)(a) requires a utility operator to pay 
the ROW use fee, if any, owed to the city by another person using the utility operator’s facilities. 

(b) A utility operator that provides or transmits more than one utility service to customers in the 
city is not required to obtain a separate license or franchise for each utility service, but is 
required to file separate remittance forms and submit any ROW use fees due for each utility 
service provided. 

(12) Transfer or Assignment. To the extent permitted by applicable state and federal laws, the 
licensee shall obtain the written consent of the city prior to the transfer or assignment of the 
license. The license shall not be transferred or assigned unless: 

(a) The proposed transferee or assignee is authorized under all applicable laws to own or operate 
the utility facilities; and 

(b) The transfer or assignment is approved by all agencies or organizations required or 
authorized under federal and state laws to approve such transfer or assignment. 

The licensee requesting the transfer or assignment must provide documentation, as the city 
deems necessary, in the city’s sole discretion and at no cost to the city, to evaluate the 
transferee’s ability to comply with the provisions of the license. 

If the city approves such transfer or assignment, the transferee or assignee shall become 
responsible for fulfilling all obligations under the license. A transfer or assignment of a license 
does not extend the term of the license. 

(13) Renewal. At least 30 days, but no more than 180 days, prior to the expiration of a license 
granted pursuant to this section, a licensee seeking renewal of its license shall submit a license 
application to the city, including all information required in subsection (2) of this section and the 
application fee required in subsection (3) of this section. The city shall review the application as 
required by subsection (4) of this section and grant or deny the license within 90 days of 
submission of the application. If the city determines that the licensee is in violation of the terms 
of this chapter at the time it submits its application, the city may require that the licensee cure the 
violation or submit a detailed plan to cure the violation within a reasonable period of time, as 
determined by the city, before the city will consider the application and/or grant the license. If 
the city requires the licensee to cure or submit a plan to cure a violation, the city will grant or 
deny the license application within 90 days of confirming that the violation has been cured or of 
accepting the licensee’s plan to cure the violation. 

(14) Termination. 

(a) Revocation or Termination of a License. The City Council may terminate or revoke the 
license granted pursuant to this chapter for any of the following reasons: 

(A) Violation of any of the provisions of this chapter; 

13 - 36



(B) Violation of any provision of the license; 

(C) Misrepresentation in a license application; 

(D) Failure to pay taxes, compensation, fees or costs due the city after final determination by the 
city, of the taxes, compensation, fees or costs; 

(E) Failure to restore the rights-of-way after work as required by this chapter or other applicable 
state and local laws, ordinances, rules and regulations; 

(F) Failure to comply with technical, safety and engineering standards related to work in the 
rights-of-way; or 

(G) Failure to obtain or maintain any and all licenses, permits, certifications and other 
authorizations required by state or federal law for the placement, maintenance and/or operation 
of the utility facilities. 

(b) Standards for Revocation or Termination. In determining whether termination, revocation or 
some other sanction is appropriate, the following factors shall be considered: 

(A) The egregiousness of the misconduct; 

(B) The harm that resulted; 

(C) Whether the violation was intentional; 

(D) The licensee’s history of compliance; and/or 

(E) The licensee’s cooperation in discovering, admitting and/or curing the violation. 

(c) Notice and Cure. The city shall give the licensee written notice of any apparent violations 
before terminating a license. The notice shall include a short and concise statement of the nature 
and general facts of the violation or noncompliance and provide a reasonable time (no less than 
20 and no more than 40 days) for the licensee to demonstrate that the licensee has remained in 
compliance, that the licensee has cured or is in the process of curing any violation or 
noncompliance, or that it would be in the public interest to impose a penalty or sanction less than 
termination or revocation. If the licensee is in the process of curing a violation or 
noncompliance, the licensee must demonstrate that it acted promptly and continues to actively 
work on compliance. If the licensee does not respond or if the City Administrator or designee 
determines that the licensee’s response is inadequate, the City Administrator or designee shall 
refer the matter to the City Council, which shall provide a duly noticed public hearing to 
determine whether the license shall be terminated or revoked and if any penalties or sanctions 
will be imposed. 

(d) Termination by Licensee. If a licensee ceases to be required to have a license under this 
chapter, the licensee may terminate its license by giving the city 30 days prior written notice. 
Licensee may reapply for a license at any time. No refunds or credits will be given for licenses 
terminated by the licensee or the city. Within 45 days of surrendering a license, the licensee shall 
file a final remittance form with the city stating “final remittance” and shall pay all fees due 

13 - 37



under this chapter through the date of termination. The licensee shall also remove its utility 
facilities from the rights-of-way as required by GMC Section 12.24.090(4).  

12.24.070 Construction and restoration. 

(1) Construction Codes. Utility facilities shall be constructed, installed, operated, repaired and 
maintained in accordance with all applicable federal, state and local codes, rules and regulations, 
including but not limited to the National Electrical Code and the National Electrical Safety Code 
and the city standards, in effect at the time of the work. When a utility operator, or any person 
acting on its behalf, does any work in or affecting the rights-of-way, the utility operator shall, at 
its own expense, promptly restore the rights-of-way as directed by the city consistent with 
applicable city codes, rules and regulations in effect at the time of the work. A utility operator, or 
other person acting on its behalf, shall use suitable barricades, flags, flagging attendants, lights, 
flares and other measures as required for the safety of all members of the general public and to 
prevent injury or damage to any person(s), vehicle or property by reason of such work in or 
affecting the rights of way or property. 

(2) Construction Permits. 

(a) No person shall perform any work within the rights-of-way without first obtaining all 
required permits, including but not limited to any wireless siting permits required in GMC 
Chapter 17.61. The city shall not issue a permit for work unless the utility operator of the 
facilities has applied for and received a valid license as required by this chapter or a valid 
franchise agreement, and all applicable fees have been paid. No permit is required for routine 
maintenance or repairs to customer service drops where such repairs or maintenance do not 
require cutting, digging, or breaking of, or damage to, the right-of-way and do not result in 
closing or blocking any portion of the travel lane for vehicular traffic, bicycle lanes or sidewalks. 

(b) In the event of an emergency, a utility operator with a license pursuant to this chapter or a 
valid franchise agreement, or the utility operator’s contractor, may perform work on its utility 
facilities without first obtaining a permit from the city; provided, that, to the extent reasonably 
feasible, it attempts to notify the city prior to commencing the emergency work and in any event 
applies for a permit from the city as soon as reasonably practicable, but not more than 48 hours 
after commencing the emergency work.  For purposes of this subsection (2), “emergency” means 
a circumstance in which immediate work or action is necessary to restore lost service or prevent 
immediate harm to persons or property. 

(c) Applications for permits to perform work within the rights-of-way shall be submitted upon 
forms to be provided by the city and shall be accompanied by drawings, plans and specifications 
in sufficient detail to demonstrate: 

(A) That the utility facilities will be constructed in accordance with all applicable codes, rules 
and regulations, including city standards. 

(B) The location and route of all utility facilities to be installed aboveground or on existing utility 
poles. 

13 - 38



(C) The location and route of all utility facilities on or in the rights-of-way to be located under 
the surface of the ground, including the line and grade proposed for the burial at all points along 
the route that are within the rights-of-way. Applicant’s existing utility facilities shall be 
differentiated on the plans from new construction. The city may require additional information 
necessary to demonstrate that the proposed location can accommodate the utility facilities, as 
determined by the city. A cross-section shall be provided showing the applicant’s new and 
existing utility facilities in relation to the street, curb, sidewalk, or rights-of-way. 

(D) The construction methods to be employed for protection of existing structures, fixtures, and 
utility facilities within or adjacent to the rights-of-way, and description of any improvements that 
applicant proposes to temporarily or permanently remove or relocate and, if deemed necessary 
by the city, methods to be employed for protection of existing structures, fixtures, and utility 
facilities within or adjacent to the rights-of-way. 

(E) The applicant has an adequate traffic control plan that complies with subsection (2)(l) of this 
section. 

(c) All permit applications shall be accompanied by the verification of a qualified and duly 
authorized representative of the applicant that the drawings, plans and specifications submitted 
with the application comply with applicable technical codes, rules and regulations. The city may, 
in its sole discretion, require the verification of a registered professional engineer at no cost to 
the city. 

(d) All permit applications shall be accompanied by a written work schedule, which shall include 
an estimated start date and a deadline for completion of work. The work schedule is subject to 
approval by the city. 

(e) In addition to the requirements of this chapter, the applicant shall, at all times, comply with 
all other applicable city requirements. 

(f) If satisfied that the applications, plans and documents submitted comply with all requirements 
of this chapter, the city shall issue a permit authorizing the work in the rights-of-way, subject to 
such further conditions, restrictions or regulations affecting the time, place and manner of 
performing the work as the city may deem necessary or appropriate. 

(g) Except in the case of an emergency, the permittee shall notify the city not less than two 
working days in advance of any work in the rights-of-way. 

(h) All construction practices and activities shall be in accordance with the permit and approved 
final plans and specifications for the utility facilities. The city and its representatives shall be 
provided access to the work site and such further information as they may require to ensure 
compliance with such requirements. 

(i) All work which does not comply with the permit, the approved or corrected plans and 
specifications for the work, or the requirements of this chapter shall be removed or corrected at 
the sole cost and expense of the permittee. The city is authorized to stop work in order to ensure 
compliance with the provisions of this chapter. If the permittee fails to remove or correct work as 

13 - 39



required in this subsection, the city may remove or correct the work at the cost and expense of 
the permittee, after notice and opportunity to cure, using qualified personnel or contractors 
consistent with applicable state and federal safety laws and regulations. 

(j) The permittee shall be responsible for providing correct and complete information on the 
permit application and in any related information provided to the city. If the city believes the 
permittee misrepresented, misstated, or omitted any material fact(s) in or related to its permit 
application, the city may deny or revoke the permit. The city may at any time require the permit 
holder to take additional measures to protect the health, safety, and welfare of the public. The 
permit holder shall be responsible for and pay all costs and expenses for such measures. 

(k) The permittee shall promptly complete all work so as to minimize disruption of the rights-of-
way and other public and private property. All work within the rights-of-way, including 
restoration, must be completed within 60 days of the date of issuance of the construction permit 
unless an extension or an alternate schedule has been approved by the city. 

(l) The permittee shall protect the work area with sufficient traffic controls reviewed and 
accepted by the city before work begins. The permittee shall at all times ensure the presence of 
such workers, tools and materials, flaggers, barricades, and other safety devices as may be 
necessary to properly protect bicyclists, pedestrians, construction personnel, and vehicular traffic 
upon the roadway, and to warn and safeguard the public against injury or damage resulting from 
the work. 

(m) Any supervision or control exercised by the city shall not relieve the permittee or utility 
operator of any duty to the general public nor shall such supervision or control relieve the 
permittee or utility operator from any liability for loss, damage or injury to persons or property. 

(3) Performance Surety. 

(a) The city may require a utility operator or permittee to provide a performance bond or other 
form of surety acceptable to the city equal to at least 125 percent of the estimated cost of the 
work within the rights-of-way, which bond shall be provided before work is commenced. 

(b) If required, the performance bond or other form of surety acceptable to the city shall remain 
in force until 60 days after substantial completion of the work, as determined in writing by the 
city, including restoration of rights-of-way and other property affected by the work. 

(c) If required, the performance bond or other form of surety acceptable to the city shall 
guarantee, to the satisfaction of the city: 

(A) Timely completion of the work; 

(B) That the work is performed in compliance with applicable plans, permits, technical 
codes and standards; 

(C) Proper location of the utility facilities as specified by the city; 

(D) Restoration of the rights-of-way and other property affected by the work; and 

13 - 40



(E) Timely payment and satisfaction of all claims, demands or liens for labor, material, or 
services provided in connection with the work. 

(d) The release of the performance bond or other surety pursuant to subsection (3)(a) of this 
section does not relieve the utility operator from its obligation to restore rights-of-way or other 
property as required in subsection (5) of this section regardless of when the failure to restore 
rights-of-way or other property as required by this chapter occurs or is discovered. 

(4) Injury to Persons or Property. A utility operator, or any person acting on its behalf, shall 
preserve and protect from injury or damage other utility operators’ facilities in the rights-of-way, 
the public using the rights-of-way and any adjoining property, and take other necessary measures 
to protect life and property, including but not limited to buildings, walls, fences, trees or facilities 
that may be subject to damage from the permitted work. A utility operator shall be responsible 
for all injury to persons or damage to public or private property resulting from its failure to 
properly protect people and property and to carry out the work. 

(5) Restoration. 

(a) When a utility operator, or any person acting on its behalf, does any work in or affecting any 
rights-of-way, it shall, at its own expense, promptly restore such rights-of-way to the same or 
better condition as existed before the work was undertaken, in accordance with applicable 
federal, state and local laws, codes, ordinances, rules and regulations in effect at the time of the 
work unless otherwise directed by the city. 

(b) If weather or other conditions beyond the utility operator’s control do not permit the 
complete restoration required by the city, the utility operator shall temporarily restore the 
affected area. Such temporary restoration shall be at the utility operator’s sole cost and expense 
and the utility operator shall promptly undertake and complete the required permanent 
restoration when the weather or other conditions no longer prevent such permanent restoration. 
Any corresponding modification to the work schedule may be subject to approval by the city. 

(c) If the utility operator fails to restore rights-of-way as required in this chapter, the city shall 
give the utility operator written notice and provide the utility operator a reasonable period of 
time which shall be not less than 10 days, unless an emergency or threat to public safety is 
deemed to exist, and shall not exceed 30 days unless agreed to in writing by the city, to restore 
the rights-of-way. If, after said notice, the utility operator fails to restore the rights-of-way as 
required in this chapter, the city shall cause such restoration to be made at the cost and expense 
of the utility operator. If the city determines a threat to public safety exists, the city shall provide 
necessary temporary safeguards, at the utility operators’ sole cost and expense, and the utility 
operator shall have 24 hours to commence restoration. If the utility operator does not commence 
work in 24 hours, the city, at its sole option, may commence restoration at the utility operator’s 
sole cost and expense. 

(6) Inspection. Every utility operator’s utility facilities shall be subject to the right of periodic 
inspection by the city to determine compliance with the provisions of this chapter and all other 
applicable state and city codes, ordinances, rules and regulations. Every utility operator shall 

13 - 41



cooperate with the city in permitting the inspection of utility facilities upon request of the city. 
The utility operator shall perform all testing, or permit the city to perform any testing at the 
utility operator’s cost, required by the city to determine that the installation of the utility 
operator’s facilities and the restoration of the rights-of-way comply with the terms of this chapter 
and applicable state and city codes, ordinances, rules and regulations. 

(7) Coordination of Construction. All utility operators are required to make a good faith effort to 
both cooperate with and coordinate their work schedules with those of the city and other users of 
the rights-of-way. 

(a) Prior to January 1st of each year, utility operators shall provide the city with a written 
schedule of known proposed work activities for that year in, around or that may affect the rights-
of-way. 

(b) Utility operators shall meet with the city annually, or as determined by the city, in its sole 
discretion, to schedule and coordinate work in the rights-of-way. 

(c) All work locations, activities and schedules within the rights-of-way shall be coordinated as 
may be ordered by the city, to minimize public inconvenience, disruption, or damages. 

(8) Contractors. A utility operator may authorize a qualified contractor to perform any of the 
work authorized or required in this chapter on the utility operator’s behalf. Any contractor 
performing work on behalf of a utility operator shall be subject to applicable provisions of this 
chapter, except that a contractor that is not a utility operator shall not be required to obtain a 
license. In the event a utility operator authorizes a contractor to perform work on its behalf, the 
utility operator shall remain responsible and liable for compliance with the provisions of this 
chapter. 

12.24.080 Location of facilities. 

(1) Location of Facilities. Unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the city: 

(a)  Whenever any existing electric utilities, cable facilities or communications facilities are 
located underground within the rights-of-way of the city, the utility operator with permission to 
occupy the same rights-of-way shall install all new facilities underground at no cost to the city. 
This requirement shall not apply to facilities used for transmission of electric energy at nominal 
voltages in excess of 35,000 volts (“high voltage lines”) unless otherwise directed by the city, or 
to antennas, pedestals, cabinets or other above-ground equipment of any utility operator, subject 
to applicable City requirements, including but not limited GMC Chapter 17.61, and the City’s 
written approval. The city reserves the right to require written approval of the location of any 
such above-ground equipment in the rights-of-way. 

(2) Interference with the Rights-of-Way. No utility operator or other person may locate or 
maintain any utility facilities so as to unreasonably interfere with the use of the rights-of-way by 
the city, by the general public or by other persons authorized to use or be present in or upon the 
rights-of-way. Utility facilities shall not be located in a manner that restricts the line of sight for 
vehicles or pedestrians nor interferes with the proper function of traffic control signs, signals, 

13 - 42



lighting, or other devices that affect traffic operation. All use of the rights-of-way shall at all 
times be consistent with city codes, ordinances, rules and regulations. 

(3) Relocation of Utility Facilities. 

(a) A utility operator shall, at no cost or expense to the city, temporarily or permanently remove, 
relocate, change or alter the position of any utility facility within the rights-of-way, including 
relocation of aerial facilities underground, when requested to do so in writing by the city. The 
requirement to relocate aerial facilities underground shall not apply to high voltage lines unless 
otherwise directed by the city. 

(b) Nothing herein shall be deemed to preclude the utility operator from requesting 
reimbursement or compensation from a third party, pursuant to applicable laws, regulations, 
tariffs or agreements; provided, that the utility operator shall timely comply with the 
requirements of this section regardless of whether or not it has requested or received such 
reimbursement or compensation. 

(c) The city shall provide written notice of the time by which the utility operator must remove, 
relocate, change, alter or underground its facilities. If a utility operator fails to remove, relocate, 
change, alter or underground any utility facility as requested by the city and by the date 
reasonably established by the city, the utility operator shall pay all costs incurred by the city due 
to such failure, including but not limited to costs related to project delays, and the city may 
cause, using qualified personnel or contractors consistent with applicable state and federal safety 
laws and regulations, the utility facility to be removed, relocated, changed, altered or 
undergrounded at the utility operator’s sole cost and expense. Within 30 days of receipt of a 
detailed invoice from the city, the utility operator shall reimburse the city the full invoiced 
amount. 

(d) The city will cooperate with the utility operator in identifying alternate locations within the 
rights-of-way for its utility facilities. The city shall not bear any responsibility, incur any costs or 
otherwise compensate the utility operator in relocation of its facilities, including instances in 
which the utility operator must relocate outside the rights-of-way. 

(4) Removal of Unauthorized Facilities. 

(a) Unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the city, within 30 days following written notice 
from the city, or such other time agreed to in writing by the city, a utility operator and any other 
person that owns, controls, or maintains any abandoned or unauthorized utility facility within the 
rights-of-way shall, at its own cost and expense, remove the facility and restore the rights-of-way 
as provided in GMC Section 12.24.080. 

(b) A utility facility is unauthorized under any of the following circumstances: 

(A) The utility facility, or any portion of the facility, is outside the scope of authority 
granted by the city under the license or franchise. This includes utility facilities that were 
never licensed or franchised and utility facilities that were once licensed or franchised but 
for which the license or franchise has expired or been terminated. This does not include 

13 - 43



any utility facility for which the city has provided written authorization for abandonment 
in place. 

(B) The utility facility has been abandoned and the city has not provided written 
authorization for abandonment in place. A utility facility is abandoned if it is not in use 
and is not planned for further use. A utility facility will be presumed abandoned if it is 
not used for a period of 12 consecutive months. A utility operator may overcome this 
presumption by presenting plans for future use of the utility facility. 

(C) The utility facility is improperly constructed or installed or is in a location not 
permitted by the construction permit, license, franchise or this chapter. 

(D) The utility operator is in violation of a material provision of this chapter and fails to 
cure such violation within 30 days of the city sending written notice of such violation, 
unless the city extends such time period in writing. 

(5) Removal by City. 

(a) The city retains the right and privilege to cut or move any utility facilities located within the 
rights-of-way, without notice, as the city may determine to be necessary, appropriate or useful in 
response to a public health or safety emergency. The city will use qualified personnel or 
contractors consistent with applicable state and federal safety laws and regulations to the extent 
reasonably practicable without impeding the city’s response to the emergency. The city will use 
best efforts to provide the utility operator with notice prior to cutting or moving utility facilities. 
If prior notice is not possible, the city will provide such notice as soon as reasonably practicable 
after resolution of the emergency. 

(b) If the utility operator fails to remove any utility facility when required to do so under this 
chapter, the city may remove the utility facility using qualified personnel or contractors 
consistent with applicable state and federal safety laws and regulations, and the utility operator 
shall be responsible for paying the full cost of the removal and any administrative costs incurred 
by the city in removing the utility facility and obtaining reimbursement. Within 30 days of 
receipt of a detailed invoice from the city, the utility operator shall reimburse the city for the 
costs and expenses the city incurred. The obligation to remove and to reimburse the city for any 
failure to remove utility facilities shall survive the termination of the license or franchise. 

(c) The city shall not be liable to any utility operator for any damage to utility facilities, or for 
any incidental or consequential losses resulting directly or indirectly therefrom, by the city or its 
contractor in removing, relocating, changing or altering the facilities pursuant to subsection (2), 
(3) or (4) of this section or undergrounding its facilities as required by subsection (1) of this 
section, or resulting from the utility operator’s failure to remove, relocate, change, alter or 
underground its facilities as required by those subsections, unless such damage arises directly 
from the city’s negligence or willful misconduct. 

(6) Engineering Record Drawings. The utility operator shall provide the city with two complete 
sets of record drawings in a form acceptable to the city showing the location of all its utility 
facilities in the rights-of-way after initial construction if such plan changed during construction. 

13 - 44



The utility operator shall, at no cost to the city, provide updated complete sets of as built plans 
upon request of the city, but not more than once per year.  

(7) Within 30 days of a written request from the city, or as otherwise agreed to in writing by the 
city, every utility operator shall make available for inspection by the city at reasonable times and 
intervals all maps, records, books, diagrams, plans and other documents, maintained by the 
utility operator with respect to its facilities within the rights-of-way. Access shall be provided 
within the city unless prior arrangement for access elsewhere has been made with the 
city.12.24.090 Leased capacity. 

A utility operator may rent, sell, lease or otherwise provide capacity or space on or in its utility 
facilities to others; provided, that, upon request, the utility operator provides the city with the 
name and business address of any such person. A utility operator is not required to provide such 
information if disclosure is expressly prohibited by applicable law; provided, that the utility 
operator takes reasonable steps to ensure that such persons are in compliance with this chapter.  

12.24.100 Maintenance. 

(1) Every utility operator shall install and maintain all utility facilities in a manner that complies 
with applicable federal, state and local laws, rules, regulations and policies. The utility operator 
shall, at its own cost and expense, repair and maintain utility facilities from time to time as may 
be necessary to accomplish this purpose. 

(2) If, after written notice from the city of the need for repair or maintenance as required in 
subsection (1) of this section, a utility operator fails to repair and maintain utility facilities as 
requested by the city and by the date reasonably established by the city, the city may perform 
such repair or maintenance using qualified personnel or contractors consistent with applicable 
state and federal safety laws and regulations at the utility operator’s sole cost and expense. 
Within 30 days of receipt of a detailed invoice from the city, the utility operator shall reimburse 
the city the full invoiced amount. 

12.24.110 Vacation. 

If the city vacates any rights-of-way, or portion thereof, that a utility operator uses, the utility 
operator shall, at its own expense, remove its utility facilities from the vacated rights-of-way 
unless (i) the city reserves a public utility easement, which the city shall make a reasonable effort 
to do provided that there is no expense to the city, or (ii) the utility operator obtains an easement 
for its utility facilities. If the utility operator fails to remove its utility facilities within 30 days 
after a right-of-way is vacated, or as otherwise directed or agreed to in writing by the city, the 
city may remove the utility facilities using qualified personnel or contractors consistent with 
applicable state and federal safety laws and regulations at the utility operator’s sole cost and 
expense. Within 30 days of receipt of an invoice from the city, the utility operator shall 
reimburse the city the full invoiced amount. 

12.24.120 Right-of-way use fee. 

13 - 45



(1) Except as set forth in subsection (2) of this section, every person that owns utility facilities in 
the city and every person that uses utility facilities in the city to provide utility service, whether 
or not the person owns the utility facilities used to provide the utility services, shall pay the 
applicable ROW use fee(s) in the amount determined by resolution of the City Council. A utility 
provider shall pay the applicable ROW use fee for every utility service provided in the city. 

(2) A person that is a utility operator and a utility provider shall be subject to the ROW use fee(s) 
applicable to utility operators and, in addition, to the ROW use fee(s) applicable to utility 
providers; provided, however, that the person must pay only the greater of the two fees, or, if the 
two fees are the same, the utility operator ROW use fee.  

(3) No acceptance of any payment shall be construed as accord that the amount paid is in fact the 
correct amount, nor shall acceptance of payment be construed as a release of any claim the city 
may have for further or additional sums payable. 

(4) Right-of-way use fee payments required by this section shall be reduced by any franchise fee 
payments received by the city, but in no case will be less than $0.00. 

(5) Unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the city, the ROW use fee set forth in subsection (1) 
of this section shall be paid quarterly, in arrears, within 45 days after the end of each calendar 
quarter. Each payment shall be accompanied by an accounting of gross revenues, if applicable, 
and a calculation of the amount payable on a remittance form provided by the city. A utility 
operator or utility provide shall provide, at no cost to the city, any additional reports or 
information the city deems necessary, in its sole discretion, to ensure compliance with this 
section. Such information may include, but is not limited to: chart of accounts, total revenues by 
categories and dates, list of products and services, narrative documenting calculation, details on 
number of customers within the city limits, or any other information needed for the city to 
readily verify compliance. 

(6) The calculation of the ROW use fee required by this section shall be subject to all applicable 
limitations imposed by federal or state law in effect and as may be subsequently amended. 

(7) The city reserves the right to enact other fees and taxes applicable to the utility providers and 
utility operators subject to this chapter. Unless expressly permitted by the city in enacting such 
fee or tax, or required by applicable state or federal law, no utility operator or utility provider 
may deduct, offset or otherwise reduce or avoid the obligation to pay any lawfully enacted fees 
or taxes based on the payment of the ROW use fee or any other fees required by this chapter. 

12.24.130 Penalties and interest on right-of-way usage fee. 

(1)  ROW usage fees not received by the city on or before the due date are subject to the 
following penalties: 

(a) Any person who has not submitted the required remittance forms or remitted the correct fees 
when due as provided in GMC Section 12.24.130 shall pay a penalty listed below in addition to 
the amount due: 

13 - 46



(A) First occurrence during any one calendar year: 10 percent of the amount owed, or 
$25.00, whichever is greater. 

(B) Second occurrence during any one calendar year: 15 percent of the amount owed, or 
$50.00, whichever is greater. 

(C) Third occurrence during any one calendar year: 20 percent of the amount owed, or 
$75.00, whichever is greater. 

(D) Fourth occurrence during any one calendar year: 25 percent of the amount owed, or 
$100.00, whichever is greater. 

(b) If the city determines that the nonpayment of any remittance due under this section is due to 
fraud or intent to evade the provisions hereof, an additional penalty of 25 percent of the amount 
owed, or $500.00, whichever is greater, shall be added thereto in addition to other penalties 
stated in this section. 

(c) In addition to the penalties imposed, any person who fails to remit any fee when due as 
provided in GMC Section 12.24.130 shall pay interest at the rate of 1.5 percent per month or 
fractions thereof, without proration for portions of a month, on the total amount due (including 
penalties), from the date on which the remittance first became delinquent, until received by the 
city. 

(d) Every penalty imposed, and such interest as accrues under the provision of this section, shall 
be merged with, and become part of, the fee required to be paid. 

(2) The City Administrator or designee, in their sole discretion, shall have the authority to reduce 
or waive the penalties and interest due under this section. 

(3) Penalties and interest imposed pursuant to this section are in addition to any penalties that 
may be assessed under other sections or chapters of the Gladstone Municipal Code. 

12.24.140 Audits. 

(1) Within 30 days of a written request from the city, or as otherwise agreed to in writing by the 
city, every utility operator and utility provider shall furnish the city, at no cost to the city, with 
information sufficient to demonstrate compliance with all applicable requirements of this chapter 
and its franchise agreement, if any, including but not limited to payment of any applicable fees. 

  

(2) If the city’s audit of the books, records and other documents or information of the utility 
operator or utility provider demonstrates that the utility operator or utility provider has underpaid 
the ROW use fee or any other fee or payment by three percent or more in any one year, the 
utility operator, or utility provider shall reimburse the city for the cost of the audit, in addition to 
any interest and penalties owed pursuant to GMC Section 12.24.130. 

13 - 47



(3) Any underpayment, including any interest, penalties or audit cost reimbursement, shall be 
paid within 30 days of the city’s notice to the utility operator or utility provider of such 
underpayment. 

(4) The utility provider or utility operator shall maintain records subject to this subsection for not 
less than six years. 

12.24.150 Insurance and indemnification. 

(1) Insurance. 

(a) All utility operators shall maintain in full force and effect the following liability insurance 
policies that protect the utility operator and the city, as well as the city’s officers, agents, and 
employees: 

(A) Comprehensive general liability insurance with limits not less than: 

(i) Three million dollars for bodily injury or death to each person; 

(ii) Three million dollars for property damage resulting from any one accident; and 

(iii) Three million dollars for all other types of liability. 

(B) Commercial automobile liability insurance for owned, non-owned and hired vehicles with a 
limit of $1,000,000 for each person and $3,000,000 for each accident. 

(C) Worker’s compensation within statutory limits and employer’s liability with limits of not less 
than $1,000,000. 

(D) If not otherwise included in the policies required by subsection (1)(a)(A) of this section, 
maintain comprehensive form premises-operations, explosions and collapse hazard, underground 
hazard and products completed hazard with limits of not less than $3,000,000. 

(E) Utility operator may utilize primary and umbrella liability insurance policies to satisfy the 
preceding insurance policy limit requirements. 

(b) The limits of the insurance shall be subject to statutory changes as to maximum limits of 
liability imposed on municipalities of the State of Oregon. The insurance shall be without 
prejudice to coverage otherwise existing and shall name, or the certificate of insurance shall 
name, with the exception of worker’s compensation, as additional insureds the city and its 
officers, agents, and employees. The coverage must apply as to claims between insureds on the 
policy. The insurance shall not be canceled or materially altered without 30 days prior written 
notice first being given to the city, and the certificate of insurance shall include such an 
endorsement. If the insurance is canceled or materially altered, the utility operator shall obtain a 
replacement policy that complies with the terms of this section and provide the city with a 
replacement certificate of insurance. The utility operator shall maintain continuous uninterrupted 
coverage, in the terms and amounts required. The utility operator may self-insure, or keep in 
force a self-insured retention plus insurance, for any or all of the above coverage. 

13 - 48



(c) The utility operator shall maintain on file with the city a certificate of insurance, or proof of 
self-insurance acceptable to the city, certifying the coverage required above. 

(2) Financial Assurance. Unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the city, before a franchise 
granted or license issued pursuant to this chapter is effective, and as necessary thereafter, the 
utility operator shall provide a performance bond or other financial security or assurance, in a 
form acceptable to the city, as security for the full and complete performance of the franchise or 
license, if applicable, and compliance with the terms of this chapter, including any costs, 
expenses, damages or loss the city pays or incurs because of any failure attributable to the utility 
operator to comply with the codes, ordinances, rules, regulations or permits of the city. This 
obligation is in addition to the performance surety required by GMC Section 12.24.080(3). 

(3) Indemnification. 

(a) Each utility operator shall defend, indemnify and hold the city and its officers, employees, 
agents and representatives harmless from and against any and all liability, causes of action, 
claims, damages, losses, judgments and other costs and expenses, including attorney fees and 
costs of suit or defense (at both the trial and appeal level, whether or not a trial or appeal ever 
takes place) that may be asserted by any person in any way arising out of, resulting from, during 
or in connection with, or alleged to arise out of or result from the negligence, carelessness, 
wrongful acts, omissions, failure to act, or other misconduct of the utility operator or its 
affiliates, officers, employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors, or lessees in the work, 
construction, operation, maintenance, repair, or removal of its facilities, and in providing or 
offering utility services over the facilities, whether such acts or omissions are authorized, 
allowed, or prohibited by this chapter or by a franchise agreement. The acceptance of a license 
under GMC Section 12.24.070, or of a franchise granted by the city, shall constitute such an 
agreement by the applicant whether the same is expressed or not, unless expressly stated 
otherwise in the license or franchise. Upon notification of any such claim the city shall notify the 
utility operator and provide the utility operator with an opportunity to provide defense regarding 
any such claim. 

(b) Every utility operator shall also indemnify the city for any damages, claims, additional costs 
or expenses assessed against or payable by the city arising out of or resulting, directly or 
indirectly, from the utility operator’s failure to remove or relocate any of its facilities in the 
rights-of-way in a timely manner, unless the utility operator’s failure arises directly from the 
city’s negligence or willful misconduct. 

12.24.160 Compliance. 

Every utility operator and utility provider shall comply with all applicable federal and state laws 
and regulations, including regulations of any administrative agency thereof, as well as all 
applicable ordinances, resolutions, rules and regulations of the city, heretofore or hereafter 
adopted or established. 

12.24.170 Confidential/proprietary information. 

13 - 49



If any person is required by this chapter to provide books, records, maps or information to the 
city that the person reasonably believes to be confidential or proprietary, and such books, 
records, maps or information are clearly marked as confidential at the time of disclosure to the 
city (“confidential information”), the city shall take reasonable steps to protect the confidential 
information to the extent permitted by Oregon Public Records Laws. In the event the city 
receives a public records request to inspect any confidential information and the city determines 
that it will be necessary to reveal the confidential information, to the extent reasonably possible 
the city will notify the person that submitted the confidential information of the records request 
prior to releasing the confidential information. The city shall not be required to incur any costs to 
protect any confidential information, other than the city’s routine internal procedures for 
complying with the Oregon Public Records Law. 

12.24.180 Penalties. 

(1) Any person found in violation of any of the provision of this chapter or the license shall be 
subject to a penalty of not less than $150.00, nor more than $2,500 for each offense. A violation 
shall be deemed to exist separately for each and every day during which a violation exists. 

(2) Nothing in this chapter shall be construed as limiting any judicial or other remedies the city 
may have at law or in equity, for enforcement of this chapter. 

12.24.190 Severability and preemption. 

(1) The provisions of this chapter shall be interpreted to be consistent with applicable federal and 
state law, and shall be interpreted, to the extent possible, to cover only matters not preempted by 
federal or state law. 

(2) If any article, section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, term, provision, condition or 
portion of this chapter is for any reason declared or held to be invalid or unenforceable by any 
court of competent jurisdiction or superseded by state or federal legislation, rules, regulations or 
decision, the remainder of this chapter shall not be affected thereby but shall be deemed as a 
separate, distinct and independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining portions hereof, and each remaining article, section, subsection, sentence, clause, 
phrase, term, provision, condition and portion of this chapter shall be valid and enforceable to the 
fullest extent permitted by law. In the event any provision is preempted by federal or state laws, 
rules or regulations, the provision shall be preempted only to the extent required by law and any 
portion not preempted shall survive. If any federal or state law resulting in preemption is later 
repealed, rescinded, amended or otherwise changed to end the preemption, such provision shall 
thereupon return to full force and effect and shall thereafter be binding without further action by 
the city. 

12.24.200 Application to existing agreements. 

To the extent that this chapter is not in conflict with and can be implemented consistent with 
existing franchise agreements, this chapter shall apply to all existing franchise agreements 
granted to utility operators by the city. 

13 - 50



 

13 - 51



14



10/4/23

14 - 1



 

RESOLUTION NO. 1228  
CITY OF GLADSTONE, OREGON 

 
A Resolution Adopting a Revised Master Fee Schedule 

 

WHEREAS, The Gladstone City Council is authorized by the Gladstone Municipal Code 
to adopt certain fees; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council desires to adopt an updated Master Fee Schedule reflecting 

periodic updates; and 
 
WHEREAS, Certain updates to Ordinance No. 1526 would facilitate the administration and 

provide updated and uniform requirements for all utilities using City rights 
of way; and 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 1526 also clarifies the fee structures for owners and non-

owners of utilities within the City rights of way, along with licensing and 
registration requirements, as reflected in the updated Master Fee Schedule; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of 

Gladstone, a municipal corporation of the State of Oregon, the following: 
 

The City of Gladstone repeals the Master Fee Schedule adopted under 
Resolution 1220 and replaces it by adopting the Revised Master Fee 
Schedule, as set forth in the attached Exhibit A. Changes/additions are noted 
in highlight and deletions are noted in strikethrough. 

 
This Resolution is effective October 10, 2023. 

This Resolution adopted by the Gladstone City Council and approved by the Mayor this 

10th day of October, 2023. 
    

ATTEST: 
 
    _______________________________                        ___________________________   
    Michael Milch, Mayor      Hayley Kratz, Acting City Recorder            

 
               
 

14 - 2



1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32

A
B

C

Ad
op

te
d 

Bu
dg

et
$4

5.
00

Bl
as

tin
g 

Pe
rm

it 
Fe

e 
$5

,0
00

.0
0

Bl
as

tin
g 

Pe
rm

it 
In

sp
ec

tio
ns

 e
ac

h 
(a

fte
r f

irs
t t

w
o 

in
sp

ec
tio

ns
)

$2
,0

00
.0

0
Bu

sin
es

s L
ice

ns
e 

Ba
se

 F
ee

 
$1

00
.0

0
Bu

sin
es

s L
ice

ns
e 

Co
m

m
en

cin
g 

Ju
ly

-D
ec

em
be

r 
$5

0.
00

Bu
sin

es
s L

ice
ns

e 
fe

e 
pe

r e
m

pl
oy

ee
 o

ve
r 3

 F
TE

's
$5

.0
0

Bu
sin

es
s L

ice
ns

e 
fo

r R
en

ta
l P

ro
pe

rt
y 

in
 G

la
ds

to
ne

 - 
ba

se
 fe

e 
pl

us
 ti

er
ed

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
be

lo
w

$1
00

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
1 

re
nt

al
 u

ni
t

$2
5.

00
   

   
   

   
   

2 
- 5

 re
nt

al
 u

ni
ts

$5
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

6 
- 1

2 
re

nt
al

 u
ni

ts
$7

5.
00

   
   

   
   

   
13

+ 
re

nt
al

 u
ni

ts
$1

00
.0

0
Bu

sin
es

s L
ice

ns
e 

Pa
st

 D
ue

 F
ee

 p
er

 m
on

th
$1

0.
00

Ho
m

e 
Oc

cu
pa

tio
n 

- I
nt

ia
l A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
Fe

e
$5

0.
00

De
cla

ra
tio

n 
of

 C
an

di
da

cy
 F

ili
ng

 F
ee

$5
0.

00
El

ec
tr

on
ic 

Co
py

 o
f a

 R
ec

or
de

d 
M

ee
tin

g 
$2

0.
00

Liq
uo

r L
ice

ns
e 

Re
vi

ew
   

   
 O

rig
in

al
 A

pp
lic

at
io

n
$1

00
.0

0
   

   
 C

ha
ng

e 
in

 o
w

ne
rs

hi
p,

 lo
ca

tio
n,

 o
r p

riv
ile

ge
$7

5.
00

   
   

 R
en

ew
al

 o
r t

em
po

ra
ry

 a
pp

lic
at

io
n

$3
5.

00
Lie

n 
Se

ar
ch

$3
0.

00
No

ta
ry

 F
ee

 (N
on

-R
es

id
en

t)
$1

0.
00

No
ta

ry
 F

ee
 (R

es
id

en
t)

$5
.0

0
NS

F 
Ch

ec
k 

Ch
ar

ge
$3

5.
00

Pa
rk

in
g 

Pe
rm

its
$2

5.
00

Pe
na

lty
 fo

r w
or

k 
co

m
m

en
cin

g 
be

fo
re

 a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

ap
pr

ov
al

In
ve

st
ig

at
io

n 
fe

e 
eq

ua
l t

o 
pe

rm
it 

fe
e

Ph
ot

oc
op

ie
s B

&
W

 u
p 

to
 8

 x 
14

$0
.2

5
Po

st
ag

e 
an

d 
Ha

nd
lin

g 
Fl

at
 F

ee
 +

 a
ct

ua
l c

os
t o

f p
os

ta
ge

$1
.0

0
Pu

bl
ic 

Re
co

rd
s A

dm
in

ist
ra

tiv
e 

Re
se

ar
ch

 p
er

 h
ou

r (
qu

ar
te

r h
ou

r i
nc

re
m

en
t c

ha
rg

e)
Ba

se
d 

on
 h

ou
rly

 ra
te

Re
so

lu
tio

n 
12

28
 - 

Ex
hi

bi
t "

A"
Ci

ty
 o

f G
la

ds
to

ne
 M

as
te

r F
ee

 S
ch

ed
ul

e 
  E

ffe
ct

iv
e 

No
ve

m
be

r 1
, 2

02
3

AD
M

IN
IS

TR
AT

IO
N

EX
HI

BI
T 

A 
M

as
te

r F
ee

 S
ch

ed
ul

e 
Pa

ge
 1

14 - 3



33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59 60 61 62 63 64 65

A
B

C
Pu

bl
ic 

Re
co

rd
s C

le
ric

al
 R

es
ea

rc
h 

pe
r h

ou
r (

qu
ar

te
r h

ou
r i

nc
re

m
en

t c
ha

rg
e)

Ba
se

d 
on

 h
ou

rly
 ra

te
Pu

bl
ic 

Re
co

rd
s L

eg
al

 R
es

ea
rc

h 
pe

r h
ou

r (
qu

ar
te

r h
ou

r i
nc

re
m

en
t c

ha
rg

e)
Ba

se
d 

on
 h

ou
rly

 ra
te

Pu
bl

ic 
Re

co
rd

s R
eq

ue
st

 D
ep

os
it 

(la
rg

e)
 to

w
ar

d 
ho

ur
ly

 ra
te

$1
00

.0
0

Pu
bl

ic 
Re

co
rd

s R
eq

ue
st

 D
ep

os
it 

(s
m

al
l) 

to
w

ar
d 

ho
ur

ly
 ra

te
$2

5.
00

Re
tu

rn
ed

 C
he

ck
 C

ha
rg

e/
pr

oc
es

sin
g

$3
5.

00
Ro

ad
 R

e-
na

m
in

g
$1

50
.0

0
Sp

ec
ia

l E
ve

nt
 A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
(p

lu
s a

ct
ua

l s
ta

ff 
co

st
s f

or
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s s
pe

cif
ica

lly
$1

00
.0

0
 n

ee
de

d 
to

 w
or

k 
th

e 
ev

en
t a

nd
 b

ar
ric

ad
e 

fe
es

 if
 n

ee
de

d)

M
el

dr
um

 B
ar

 P
ar

ki
ng

 F
ee

:
   

   
   

No
n-

Re
sid

en
t

$3
.0

0/
da

y
   

   
   

No
n-

Re
sid

en
t

$4
0.

00
/y

ea
r

   
   

   
No

n-
Re

sid
en

t V
isi

tin
g 

Sp
or

ts
 T

ea
m

s
Fr

ee
 (i

n 
de

sig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

)
   

   
   

Re
sid

en
t 

Fr
ee

 (l
im

it 
tw

o 
pe

r h
ou

se
ho

ld
)

   
   

Ca
rd

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t f
ee

$5
.0

0 
pe

r c
ar

d

GL
AD

ST
ON

E 
US

ER
 G

RO
UP

 FE
ES

 FO
R 

RE
SE

RV
ED

 P
LA

Y

Ba
se

ba
ll/

So
ftb

al
l U

se
r G

ro
up

s:
   

   
Gl

ad
st

on
e 

Ju
ni

or
 B

as
eb

al
l A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
$2

0.
00

 p
er

 re
gi

st
er

ed
 p

la
ye

r/
ye

ar
   

   
Gl

ad
st

on
e 

Gi
rls

 S
of

tb
al

l A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n

$2
0.

00
 p

er
 re

gi
st

er
ed

 p
la

ye
r/

ye
ar

So
cc

er
 U

se
r G

ro
up

:
   

  G
la

ds
to

ne
 Y

ou
th

 S
oc

ce
r A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
(2

 ro
st

er
s a

 y
ea

r f
or

 p
er

 p
la

ye
r c

ha
rg

e)
$1

5.
00

 p
er

 re
gi

st
er

ed
 p

la
ye

r/
ye

ar
To

ur
na

m
en

t F
ee

s: 
Ba

se
ba

ll/
So

ftb
al

l S
oc

ce
r:

    
 M

el
dr

um
 B

ar
 P

ar
k 

Fi
el

ds
 - 

al
l f

ie
ld

s/
3-

da
y 

ca
p

$5
00

.0
0

    
 D

ie
ric

kx
 F

ie
ld

s -
 a

ll 
fie

ld
s/

3-
da

y 
ca

p
$2

00
.0

0
   

  B
an

ne
rs

: S
po

ns
or

 b
an

ne
rs

 a
llo

w
ed

 d
ur

in
g 

to
ur

na
m

en
t p

la
y 

on
ly

. B
an

ne
rs

 m
us

t b
e

   
  r

em
ov

ed
 a

t t
he

 e
nd

 o
f p

la
y

Pi
ck

le
ba

ll 
Us

er
 G

ro
up

:
   

  G
la

ds
to

ne
 P

ick
le

ba
ll 

Cl
ub

 (2
 ro

st
er

s a
 y

ea
r f

or
 p

er
 p

la
ye

r c
ha

rg
e)

$1
5.

00
 p

er
 re

gi
st

er
ed

 p
la

ye
r/

ye
ar

To
ur

na
m

en
t F

ee
s: 

Pi
ck

le
ba

ll/
Te

nn
is

    
 M

ax
 P

at
te

rs
on

 C
ou

rt
s -

 A
ll 

Co
ur

ts
 a

ll 
da

y/
3-

da
y 

ca
p

$2
00

.0
0

PA
RK

S 
AN

D 
RE

CR
EA

TI
ON

EX
HI

BI
T 

A 
M

as
te

r F
ee

 S
ch

ed
ul

e 
Pa

ge
 2

14 - 4



66 67 68 69 70 71 72 73 74 75 76 77 78 79 80 81 82 83 84 85 86 87 88 89 90 91 92 93

A
B

C
   

  B
an

ne
rs

: S
po

ns
or

 b
an

ne
rs

 a
llo

w
ed

 d
ur

in
g 

to
ur

na
m

en
t p

la
y 

on
ly

. B
an

ne
rs

 m
us

t b
e

    
 re

m
ov

ed
 a

t t
he

 e
nd

 o
f p

la
y

NO
N-

GL
AD

ST
ON

E 
US

ER
 G

RO
UP

 FE
ES

 FO
R 

RE
SE

RV
ED

 P
LA

Y
Ba

se
ba

ll/
So

ftb
al

l B
al

lfi
el

ds
 U

se
 (p

er
 fi

el
d/

pe
r h

ou
r)

   
  R

es
id

en
t T

ea
m

*
$1

0.
00

 p
er

 h
ou

r/
pe

r f
ie

ld
    

 N
on

-R
es

id
en

t T
ea

m
$1

5.
00

 p
er

 h
ou

r/
pe

r f
ie

ld
So

cc
er

 Fi
el

d 
(p

er
 fi

el
d/

pe
r h

ou
r) 

Do
es

 n
ot

 in
clu

de
 g

oa
ls

   
  R

es
id

en
t T

ea
m

*
$5

.0
0/

pe
r h

ou
r/

pe
r f

ie
ld

   
  N

on
-R

es
id

en
t T

ea
m

$1
0.

00
 p

er
 h

ou
r/

pe
r f

ie
ld

To
ur

na
m

en
t F

ee
s: 

Ba
se

ba
ll/

So
ftb

al
l/S

oc
ce

r
   

  M
el

dr
um

 B
ar

 P
ar

k 
Fi

el
ds

 - 
al

l f
ie

ld
s/

pe
r d

ay
$5

00
.0

0
   

  D
ie

ric
kx

 F
ie

ld
s -

 a
ll 

fie
ld

s/
pe

r d
ay

$2
00

.0
0

Pi
ck

le
ba

ll/
Te

nn
is 

Co
ur

ts
 (p

er
 co

ur
t/

pe
r h

ou
r)

   
  R

es
id

en
t*

*
$5

.0
0/

ho
ur

    
 N

on
-R

es
id

en
t

$1
0.

00
/h

ou
r

*R
es

id
en

t t
ea

m
 m

us
t c

on
sis

t o
f 8

5%
 G

la
ds

to
ne

 re
sid

en
ts

**
Re

sid
en

t m
us

t s
ho

w
 id

en
tif

ica
tio

n

Ad
dr

es
sin

g 
(N

ew
 o

r C
ha

ng
e 

of
 A

dd
re

ss
/U

ni
t/

Su
ite

)
$6

6.
00

 +
 $

7.
00

 p
er

 lo
t/

un
it/

su
ite

Ad
ju

st
m

en
t

$5
60

.0
0

An
ne

xa
tio

n

  *
No

n-
El

ec
tio

n
Co

st
 o

f s
ta

ff 
an

d 
co

ns
ul

tin
g 

se
rv

ice
s 

($
3,

00
0.

00
 d

ep
os

it)

  *
El

ec
tio

n
Co

st
 o

f s
ta

ff 
an

d 
co

ns
ul

tin
g 

se
rv

ice
s 

($
3,

00
0.

00
 d

ep
os

it)
Ap

pe
al

$2
50

.0
0

Ap
pl

ica
tio

n 
or

 A
pp

ea
l W

ith
dr

aw
n 

- n
o 

pu
bl

ic 
no

tic
e 

se
nt

, s
ta

ff 
re

po
rt

 is
su

ed
 o

r d
ec

isi
on

 
iss

ue
d

Re
ta

in
 2

5%
 o

f a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

fe
e 

or
 

m
in

im
um

 o
f $

25
0;

 w
hi

ch
ev

er
 is

 m
or

e

PL
AN

NI
NG

 A
ND

 B
UI

LD
IN

G

EX
HI

BI
T 

A 
M

as
te

r F
ee

 S
ch

ed
ul

e 
Pa

ge
 3

14 - 5



94 95 96 97 98 99 10
0

10
1

10
2

10
3

10
4

10
5

10
6

10
7

10
8

10
9

11
0

11
1

11
2

11
3

11
4

11
5

11
6

A
B

C

Ap
pl

ica
tio

n 
or

 A
pp

ea
l W

ith
dr

aw
n 

- p
ub

lic
 n

ot
ice

 se
nt

Re
ta

in
 5

0%
 o

f a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

fe
e 

or
 

m
in

im
um

 o
f $

50
0;

 w
hi

ch
ev

er
 is

 m
or

e
Ap

pl
ica

tio
n 

W
ith

dr
aw

n 
- s

ta
ff 

re
po

rt
 is

su
ed

 o
r d

ec
isi

on
 is

su
ed

No
 R

ef
un

d

Ap
pl

ica
tio

n 
W

ith
dr

aw
n 

- H
ea

rin
gs

 O
ffi

ce
r R

ev
ie

w
 F

ee
Re

fu
nd

 if
 th

e 
he

ar
in

g 
ha

s n
ot

 o
cc

ur
re

d
Bu

ild
in

g 
Pe

rm
it 

Re
vi

ew
 b

y 
Pl

an
ne

r -
 M

ul
ti-

fa
m

ily
, C

om
m

er
cia

l, 
3-

4 
pl

ex
, i

nt
er

na
l 

co
nv

er
sio

n,
 co

tt
ag

e 
clu

st
er

, i
nd

us
tr

ia
l, 

in
st

itu
tio

na
l, 

re
ta

il,
 o

ffi
ce

, d
up

le
x,

 n
on

-re
sid

en
tia

l, 
et

c:
 N

ew
 st

ru
ct

ur
e,

 a
dd

iti
on

, d
em

ol
iti

on
, a

cc
es

so
ry

 st
ru

ct
ur

e,
 p

or
ch

, m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n,

 fe
nc

e,
 

re
ta

in
ng

 w
al

l, 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t.

.1
%

 o
f B

ui
ld

in
g 

Pe
rm

it 
Va

lu
e 

M
in

im
um

 =
 $

89
.0

0 
M

ax
im

um
 =

 $
4,

04
3.

00
Bu

ild
in

g 
Pe

rm
it 

Re
vi

ew
 b

y 
Pl

an
ne

r -
 R

es
id

en
tia

l S
in

gl
e-

Ho
us

eh
ol

d 
an

d 
AD

U'
s: 

Ne
w

 
Ad

di
tio

n,
 D

em
ol

iti
on

, A
cc

es
so

ry
 S

tr
uc

tu
re

, P
or

ch
, M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n,
 F

en
ce

, R
et

ai
ni

ng
 W

al
l, 

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t, 

et
c.

$8
9.

00
 

Co
m

pr
eh

en
siv

e 
Pl

an
 A

m
en

dm
en

t
$1

2,
41

0.
00

Co
nd

ito
na

l U
se

$3
,9

05
.0

0

De
sig

n 
Re

vi
ew

.3
84

%
 o

f c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
co

st
, b

ut
 n

o 
le

ss
s 

th
an

 $
1,

34
0 

&
 n

o 
m

or
e 

th
an

 $
36

,8
35

In
te

rp
re

ta
tio

n 
- C

om
pr

eh
en

siv
e 

Pl
an

 o
r Z

on
in

g 
an

d 
De

ve
lo

pm
en

t O
rd

in
an

ce
$1

,3
00

.0
0

La
nd

 U
se

 P
er

m
it 

- T
yp

e 
II,

 N
ot

 o
th

er
w

ise
 li

st
ed

$1
,0

65
.0

0
Lo

t L
in

e 
Ad

ju
st

m
en

t
$1

,3
54

.0
0

M
ai

lin
g 

La
be

ls
$2

5.
00

M
ar

iju
an

a 
La

nd
 U

se
 A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
- T

yp
e 

I
$1

,0
00

.0
0

M
ar

iju
an

a 
La

nd
 U

se
 A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
- T

yp
e 

II
$1

,5
05

.0
0

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

of
 C

on
di

tio
n 

of
 A

pp
ro

va
l

$1
,0

65
.0

0
M

ob
ile

 H
om

e 
Pa

rk
 C

on
ve

rs
io

n
$2

,6
00

.0
0

No
nc

on
fo

rm
in

g 
Us

e 
- A

lte
ra

tio
n 

or
 V

er
ifi

ca
tio

n
$1

,4
05

.0
0

Op
en

 S
pa

ce
 R

ev
ie

w
$1

,0
65

.0
0

Op
en

 S
pa

ce
 R

ev
ie

w
 - 

Co
nf

lic
t R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
$1

,0
65

.0
0

Pa
rt

iti
on

$2
,7

05
.0

0
Pl

an
ne

d 
Un

it 
De

ve
lo

pm
en

t (
PU

D)
 - 

se
e 

Su
bd

iv
isi

on
Pl

an
ni

ng
 S

ta
ff 

Re
vi

ew
 =

 F
irs

t 1
5 

m
in

ut
es

 - 
no

 ch
ar

ge
; b

ill
ed

 in
 0

.5
 h

ou
r i

nc
re

m
en

ts
$1

50
.0

0/
ho

ur
Pl

at
 V

ac
at

io
n

$8
45

.0
0

EX
HI

BI
T 

A 
M

as
te

r F
ee

 S
ch

ed
ul

e 
Pa

ge
 4

14 - 6



11
7

11
8

11
9

12
0

12
1

12
2

12
3

12
4

12
5

12
6

12
7

12
8

12
9

13
0

13
1

13
2

13
3

13
4

13
5

13
6

13
7

13
8

13
9

14
0

14
1

14
2

14
3

14
4

14
5

14
6

14
7

14
8

14
9

A
B

C
Pr

e-
Ap

pl
ica

tio
n 

M
ee

tin
g

$1
,1

20
.0

0
Pr

op
er

ty
 Li

ne
 A

dj
us

tm
en

t -
 T

yp
e 

I
$7

95
.0

0
Pr

op
er

ty
 Li

ne
 A

dj
us

tm
en

t -
 T

yp
e 

II
$1

,0
50

.0
0

Re
pl

ac
em

en
t D

w
el

lin
g 

$9
95

.0
0

Re
pl

at
 - 

Ty
pe

 II
$2

,7
05

.0
0

Si
gn

s -
 D

es
ig

n 
Re

vi
ew

$5
30

.0
0

St
re

et
 N

am
e 

Ch
an

ge
$1

05
.0

0
St

re
et

 V
ac

at
io

n 
- A

pp
lic

at
io

n
$6

05
.0

0
St

re
et

 V
ac

at
io

n 
- P

ro
ce

ss
in

g 
of

 V
ac

at
io

n
Fu

ll 
co

st
 o

f r
ec

ov
er

y
Su

bd
iv

isi
on

 - 
M

aj
or

 (1
1 

or
 m

or
e 

lo
ts

)
$4

,0
40

.0
0 

+ 
$4

5.
00

/lo
t

Su
bd

iv
isi

on
 - 

M
in

or
 (4

 - 
10

 lo
ts

)
$2

,7
05

.0
0

Te
m

po
ra

ry
 D

w
el

lin
g 

fo
r C

ar
e 

pe
rm

it,
 n

ew
 a

nd
 re

ne
w

al
 (1

4+
 d

ay
s)

$8
35

.0
0

Te
m

po
ra

ry
 D

w
el

lin
g 

w
hi

le
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

(1
4+

 d
ay

s)
$5

00
.0

0
Te

m
po

ra
ry

 U
se

 O
th

er
w

ise
 P

ro
hi

bi
te

d
$1

,0
65

.0
0

Te
m

po
ra

ry
 S

tr
uc

tu
re

 fo
r E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
Sh

el
te

r
$5

00
.0

0
Ti

m
e 

Ex
te

ns
io

n
$1

,0
65

.0
0

Ti
m

e 
Ex

te
ns

io
n 

- T
yp

e 
1

$5
60

.0
0

Va
ria

nc
e

$1
,1

20
.0

0
Ve

st
ed

 R
ig

ht
 D

et
er

m
in

at
io

n
$5

,1
05

.0
0

W
ire

le
ss

 T
el

ec
om

m
un

ica
tio

n 
Fa

cil
ity

 - 
Ty

pe
 I

$5
85

.0
0

W
ire

le
ss

 T
el

ec
om

m
un

ica
tio

n 
Fa

cil
ity

 - 
Ty

pe
 II

$9
50

.0
0

W
ire

le
ss

 T
el

ec
om

m
un

ica
tio

n 
Fa

cil
ity

 - 
Ty

pe
 II

I (
w

ith
 a

n 
ad

ju
st

m
en

t)
$6

,5
70

.0
0

Zo
ne

 C
ha

ng
e 

$3
,0

60
.0

0
Zo

ne
 C

ha
ng

e,
 fi

le
d 

co
nc

ur
re

nt
ly

 w
ith

 a
no

th
er

 la
nd

 u
se

 a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

fo
r t

he
 sa

m
e 

pr
op

er
ty

$2
,5

10
.0

0
Zo

ne
 C

ha
ng

e 
- P

C 
Re

vi
ew

, f
ile

d 
co

nc
ur

re
nt

ly
 w

ith
 C

om
pr

eh
en

siv
e 

Pl
an

 A
m

en
dm

en
t

$2
,5

10
.0

0
Zo

ni
ng

 V
er

ifi
ca

tio
n/

Co
nf

irm
at

io
n 

Le
tt

er
$1

41
.0

0

A-
Fr

am
e 

Si
gn

 P
er

m
it 

 (i
ni

tia
l a

pp
lic

at
io

n 
fe

e)
$1

00
.0

0
Ad

dr
es

s R
ec

or
d 

Pr
in

t (
pe

r a
dd

re
ss

)
$1

0.
00

Al
ar

m
 P

er
m

it 
   

   
 In

iti
al

 P
er

m
it 

or
 R

en
ew

al
$2

5.
00

   
   

 La
te

 F
ee

 (a
fte

r 3
0 

da
ys

 e
xp

ira
tio

n 
or

 in
st

al
la

tio
n)

$2
5.

00

PO
LIC

E 

EX
HI

BI
T 

A 
M

as
te

r F
ee

 S
ch

ed
ul

e 
Pa

ge
 5

14 - 7



15
0

15
1

15
2

15
3

15
4

15
5

15
6

15
7

15
8

15
9

16
0

16
1

16
2

16
3

16
4

16
5

16
6

16
7

16
8

16
9

17
0

17
1

17
2

17
3

17
4

17
5

17
6

17
7

17
8

17
9

A
B

C
   

   
 S

ec
on

d 
Fa

lse
 A

la
rm

 (w
ith

in
 p

er
m

it 
ye

ar
)

$5
0.

00
   

   
 T

hi
rd

 F
al

se
 A

la
rm

 (w
ith

in
 p

er
m

it 
ye

ar
)

$1
00

.0
0

   
   

 F
ou

rt
h 

an
d 

Ea
ch

 S
ub

se
qu

en
t A

la
rm

 (w
ith

in
 p

er
m

it 
ye

ar
)

$1
50

.0
0

   
   

 F
ai

lu
re

 to
 o

bt
ai

n 
Al

ar
m

 P
er

m
it

$9
0.

00
An

im
al

 P
er

m
it 

Ap
pl

ica
tio

n 
(p

er
 y

ea
r) 

$2
5.

00
Bl

oc
k 

Pa
rt

y
$3

5.
00

Bo
dy

 W
or

n 
Ca

m
er

a 
Fo

ot
ag

e 
(N

EW
)

$2
5.

00
 in

tia
l f

ee
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 R
ed

ac
tio

n 
&

 P
ro

ce
ss

in
g

$4
8.

00
-$

58
.0

0/
hr

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 R

ed
ac

tio
n 

Re
vi

ew
$3

7.
00

/h
r

CD
's 

in
clu

di
ng

 p
ho

to
s/

vi
de

os
$2

5.
00

Lo
ca

l H
ist

or
y 

Pr
in

to
ut

 (p
er

 re
co

rd
)

$1
0.

00
No

ise
 v

ar
ia

nc
e

$7
5.

00
Nu

sia
nc

e 
Pr

op
er

ty
 A

ba
te

m
en

t
Ac

tu
al

 C
os

t 
Po

lic
e 

Re
po

rt
 - 

No
 C

ha
rg

e 
fo

r V
ict

im
s

$0
.0

0
Po

lic
e 

Re
po

rt
 (f

irs
t 2

 p
ag

es
) 

$1
5.

00
Po

lic
e 

Re
po

rt
 (p

ag
e 

3 
an

d 
ov

er
) e

ac
h 

pa
ge

$1
.0

0
Te

m
po

ra
ry

/P
or

ta
bl

e 
St

or
ag

e 
Co

nt
ai

ne
r

$5
0.

00
Ve

hi
cle

 Im
po

un
d 

(d
ur

in
g 

re
gu

la
r b

us
in

es
s h

ou
rs

)
$1

00
.0

0

Te
ch

ni
ca

l P
la

n 
Re

vi
ew

-D
ev

el
op

m
en

t E
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

Fe
e

    
    

    
   

   
Pl

an
 R

ev
ie

w
 &

 In
sp

ec
tio

n 
(u

p 
to

 tw
o 

pl
an

 su
bm

itt
al

s)
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 5

%
 (2

.5
%

 fo
r p

la
n 

re
vi

ew
 &

 
2.

5%
 fo

r i
ns

pe
ct

io
n)

 
   

   
   

   
   

 P
la

n 
Re

vi
ew

 (t
hr

ee
 o

r m
or

e 
pl

an
 su

bm
itt

al
s, 

in
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 2
.5

%
 fe

e
3%

 o
f c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

co
st

/p
er

 re
vi

ew
 3

+
Ba

rr
ica

de
 D

el
iv

er
y 

an
d 

Pi
ck

up
 F

ee
$5

0.
00

 
$1

00
.0

0
Er

os
io

n 
Co

nt
ro

l V
io

la
tio

n 
 

$3
00

.0
0

Hy
dr

an
t H

oo
k-

Up
 P

er
m

it 
Fe

e 
(p

lu
s w

at
er

 u
sa

ga
e 

co
st

)
$5

0.
00

Re
gi

st
ra

tio
n 

Fe
e

$5
0.

00
St

re
et

 O
pe

ni
ng

 In
sp

ec
tio

n 
Fe

e
$8

5.
00

St
re

et
 O

pe
ni

ng
 P

er
m

it 
Fe

e
$1

50
.0

0

PU
BL

IC
 W

OR
KS

EX
HI

BI
T 

A 
M

as
te

r F
ee

 S
ch

ed
ul

e 
Pa

ge
 6

14 - 8



18
0

18
1

18
2

18
3

18
4

18
5

18
6

18
7

18
8

18
9

19
0

19
1

19
2

19
3

19
4

19
5

19
6

19
7

19
8

19
9

20
0

20
1

20
2

20
3

A
B

C
St

re
et

 O
pe

ni
ng

 P
er

m
it 

Fe
e 

- O
ne

 T
im

e 
Ex

te
ns

io
n 

(9
0 

da
y 

pe
rio

d)
$1

00
.0

0
St

re
et

 O
pe

ni
ng

 R
e-

In
sp

ec
tio

n 
Fe

e 
(if

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
)  

$8
5.

00
Sy

st
em

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t C
ha

rg
es

 (S
DC

's)
   

   
* 

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n
 $

4,
44

0 
pe

r (
ED

U)
 

  *
 W

at
er

:
3/

4"
 m

et
er

 - 
 $

9,
40

2
1"

 m
et

er
 - 

$1
5,

58
1

1 
1/

2"
 m

et
er

 - 
$3

1,
30

9
2"

 m
et

er
 - 

$5
0,

11
3

3"
 m

et
er

 - 
$1

00
,3

20
4"

 m
et

er
 - 

$1
56

,7
35

6"
 m

et
er

 - 
$3

13
,3

76

  *
 S

ew
er

 C
ol

le
ct

io
n 

(C
ity

 S
ys

te
m

)
 $

6,
75

5 
  p

er
 (E

DU
) e

qu
iv

al
en

t d
w

el
lin

g 
un

it 

  *
 S

ew
er

 T
re

at
m

en
t p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
 o

th
er

s (
pa

ss
-th

ro
ug

h)
 to

 O
ak

 Lo
dg

e 
W

at
er

 S
er

vi
ce

s o
r 

Tr
i-C

ity
 (W

ES
) b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

in
di

vi
du

al
 d

ist
ric

t r
at

es
 th

at
 th

e 
pr

op
er

ty
 is

 se
rv

ed
 b

y.

  *
 P

ar
ks

 $
9,

38
8 

pe
r (

RP
E)

 re
sid

en
tia

l p
op

ul
at

io
n 

eq
ui

va
le

nt
 

  *
 S

to
rm

w
at

er
 $

3,
61

6 
 p

er
 (E

DU
) e

qu
iv

al
en

t d
w

el
lin

g 
un

it 

Bu
ild

in
g 

Re
nt

al
 (p

er
 h

ou
r) 

Gr
ou

p 
1:

 C
ity

 o
f G

la
ds

to
ne

 R
es

id
en

ts
, p

riv
at

e 
pa

rt
ie

s, 
in

di
vi

du
al

s, 
gr

ou
ps

, a
nd

 n
on

-p
ro

fit
s. 

(2
 h

ou
r m

in
im

um
 re

nt
al

) 
 P

la
nt

on
 R

oo
m

-$
60

.0
0 

Bl
oy

e 
Ha

ll-
$7

0.
00

 
 Li

br
ar

y-
$3

0.
00

 
Bu

ild
in

g 
Re

nt
al

 (p
er

 h
ou

r)G
ro

up
 2

: C
om

m
er

cia
l, 

fo
r-p

ro
fit

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l g
ro

up
s. 

(2
 h

ou
r 

m
in

im
um

 re
nt

al
)

 P
la

nt
on

 R
oo

m
-$

75
.0

0 
Bl

oy
e 

Ha
ll-

$9
0.

00
 

Lib
ra

ry
 $

40
.0

0

Ki
tc

he
n 

Fe
e 

$6
0.

00
Cl

ea
ni

ng
 F

ee
$6

0.
00

De
po

sit
 - 

Re
fu

nd
ab

le
; d

ue
 a

t t
im

e 
of

 sc
he

du
lin

g
$2

00
.0

0

SE
NI

OR
 C

EN
TE

R 
 C

OM
M

UN
IT

Y 
CE

NT
ER

EX
HI

BI
T 

A 
M

as
te

r F
ee

 S
ch

ed
ul

e 
Pa

ge
 7

14 - 9



20
4

20
5

20
6

20
7

20
8

20
9

21
0

21
1

21
2

21
3

21
4

21
5

21
6

21
7

21
8

21
9

22
0

22
1

22
2

22
3

22
4

22
5

22
6

22
7

22
8

22
9

A
B

C
M

ea
l u

nd
er

 6
0 

ye
ar

s
$5

.0
0

M
ea

l (
su

gg
es

te
d 

do
na

tio
n)

 o
ve

r 6
0 

ye
ar

s
$3

.0
0

Fa
x (

pe
r p

ag
e 

- s
ta

ff 
on

ly
)

$1
.0

0
Ph

ot
oc

op
y 

(p
er

 p
ag

e)
$0

.2
5

Va
n 

Do
na

tio
n 

(s
ug

ge
st

ed
 d

on
at

io
n)

 e
ac

h 
w

ay
$1

.0
0

Fr
id

ay
 E

xc
ur

sio
ns

 ($
7-

$2
5)

va
rie

s
Bi

lli
ar

ds
 R

oo
m

 (s
ug

ge
st

ed
 d

on
at

io
n 

of
 p

er
 g

am
e 

pl
ay

ed
)

$0
.2

5
No

ta
ry

 F
ee

- C
la

ck
am

as
 C

ou
nt

y 
re

sid
en

t a
ge

 6
0 

or
 o

ld
er

 F
re

e 
No

ta
ry

 F
ee

- G
la

ds
to

ne
 R

es
id

en
t 

$5
.0

0
No

ta
ry

 F
ee

- N
on

 R
es

id
en

t- 
Cl

ac
ka

m
as

 C
ou

nt
y 

$1
0.

00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
RI

GH
T-

OF
-W

AY
 (R

OW
) R

AT
ES

**
Fr

an
ch

ise
 A

dm
in

ist
ra

tiv
e 

Re
vi

ew
$5

,0
00

.0
0

RO
W

 Li
ce

ns
e 

Ap
pl

ica
tio

n 
Fe

e 
(E

xc
lu

di
ng

 S
m

al
l C

el
l W

ire
le

ss
 F

ac
ili

tie
s *

**
*)

$5
0.

00
$1

50
.0

0
RO

W
 R

eg
ist

ra
tio

n 
Ap

pl
ica

tio
n 

Fe
e 

(N
on

-o
w

ne
r/

Ut
ili

ty
 P

ro
vi

de
r o

nl
y)

$1
00

.0
0

RO
W

 Li
ce

ns
e 

Fe
e 

(fi
ve

 y
ea

r t
er

m
), 

(E
xc

lu
di

ng
 S

m
al

l C
el

l W
ire

le
ss

 F
ac

ili
tie

s)
 

$2
50

.0
0

el
im

in
at

e
RO

W
 U

se
 F

ee
:  

(E
xc

lu
di

ng
 S

m
al

l C
el

l W
ire

le
ss

 F
ac

ili
tie

s)
5%

 o
f g

ro
ss

 re
ve

nu
es

**
 o

r M
in

im
um

 
Ut

ili
ty

 O
pe

ra
to

r (
W

ire
lin

e 
Fa

cil
iti

es
)

5%
 o

f G
ro

ss
 R

ev
en

ue
s o

r, 
if 

no
 re

ve
nu

e 
ea

rn
ed

 in
 th

e 
Ci

ty
, L

in
ea

r F
oo

t F
ee

Ut
ili

ty
 O

pe
ra

to
r (

W
ire

le
ss

 F
ac

ili
tie

s)
Sm

al
l W

ire
le

ss
 F

ac
ili

ty
: $

27
0 

pe
r 

at
ta

ch
m

en
t

No
n-

Sm
al

l W
ire

le
ss

 F
ac

ili
ty

: $
5,

15
0 

pe
r 

at
ta

ch
m

en
t

Ut
ili

ty
 P

ro
vi

de
r

5%
 o

f G
ro

ss
 R

ev
en

ue
s 

M
in

im
um

 A
nn

ua
l R

ig
ht

-o
f-W

ay
 U

se
 F

ee
 *

**

   
   

   
   

   
TO

TA
L L

IN
EA

R 
FE

ET
 O

F 
UT

IL
IT

Y 
FA

CI
LI

TI
ES

 IN
 R

IG
HT

-O
F-

W
AY

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 U
p 

to
 5

,0
00

$6
,1

50
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 5

,0
01

 to
 1

0,
00

0
$9

,2
25

.0
0

UT
ILI

TY
 B

ILL
IN

G 
RA

TE
S 

&
 U

TI
LIT

Y 
RI

GH
T 

OF
 W

AY
 R

AT
ES

EX
HI

BI
T 

A 
M

as
te

r F
ee

 S
ch

ed
ul

e 
Pa

ge
 8

14 - 10



23
0

23
1

23
2

23
3

23
4

23
5

23
6

23
7

23
8

23
9

24
0

24
1

24
2

24
3

24
4

24
5

24
6

24
7

24
8

24
9

25
0

25
1

25
2

25
3

25
4

25
5

25
6

25
7

25
8

25
9

A
B

C
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 1

0,
00

1 
to

 2
0,

00
0

$1
2,

29
9.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 M

or
e 

th
an

 2
0,

00
0

$1
8,

44
8.

00
RO

W
 A

tt
ac

hm
en

t F
ee

 (E
xc

lu
di

ng
 S

m
al

l C
el

l W
ire

le
ss

 F
ac

iil
tie

s)
 

$5
,1

50

RO
W

 A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

fe
e 

fo
r S

m
al

l C
el

l W
ire

le
ss

 F
ac

ili
tie

s (
1-

5 
sit

es
)

$5
00

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  E

ac
h 

ad
di

tio
na

l S
ite

$1
00

.0
0

Sm
al

l C
el

l W
ire

le
ss

 F
ac

ili
ty

 A
tt

ac
hm

en
t F

ee
$2

70
.0

0

   
  S

EW
ER

 R
AT

ES
 

Se
w

er
 In

sp
ec

tio
n 

Fe
e,

 e
xc

ep
t m

ob
ile

 h
om

es
, m

ot
or

 h
om

es
 a

nd
 tr

av
el

 tr
ai

le
rs

$1
00

.0
0

Se
w

er
 In

se
pc

tio
n 

Fe
e 

fo
r m

ob
ile

 h
om

es
, m

ot
or

 h
om

es
, a

nd
 tr

av
el

 tr
ai

le
rs

$5
0.

00

Oa
k 

Lo
dg

e 
W

at
er

 S
er

vi
ce

s S
ew

er
 C

ha
rg

e 
(P

as
s-

th
ro

ug
h)

**
**

*
$7

2.
38

  p
er

 m
on

th
 p

er
 E

DU
*

W
at

er
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

t S
er

vi
ce

s (
W

ES
) S

ew
er

 T
re

at
m

en
t C

ha
rg

e 
(P

as
s-

th
ro

ug
h)

**
**

*
$2

9.
30

  p
er

 m
on

th
 p

er
 E

DU
*

Ci
ty

 o
f G

la
ds

to
ne

 S
an

ita
ry

 S
ew

er
 C

ol
le

ct
io

n 
Ch

ar
ge

  
 $

34
.8

9 
pe

r m
on

th
 p

er
 E

DU
*

Lo
w

 In
co

m
e 

Ra
te

 R
ed

uc
tio

n 
- a

dj
us

te
d 

an
nu

al
ly

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
HU

D 
Ve

ry
 Lo

w
 In

co
m

e
Lim

its
 fo

r P
or

tla
nd

-V
an

co
uv

er
-H

ill
sb

or
o,

 O
R-

W
A 

M
SA

(5
0%

) r
ed

uc
tio

n 
of

 b
as

e 
ra

te
s l

ist
ed

 
ab

ov
e

    
 S

TO
RM

W
AT

ER
 R

AT
ES

Re
sid

en
tia

l S
to

rm
w

at
er

 F
ee

 p
er

 E
DU

* 
ea

ch
 m

on
th

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  (

Cl
as

s 0
01

 a
cc

ou
nt

s)
$1

4.
28

Lo
w

 In
co

m
e 

Ra
te

 R
ed

uc
tio

n 
- a

dj
us

te
d 

an
nu

al
ly

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
HU

D 
Ve

ry
 Lo

w
 In

co
m

e
Lim

its
 fo

r P
or

tla
nd

-V
an

co
uv

er
-H

ill
sb

or
o,

 O
R-

W
A 

M
SA

(5
0%

) r
ed

uc
tio

n 
of

 b
as

e 
ra

te
s l

ist
ed

 
ab

ov
e

No
n-

Si
ng

le
 F

am
ily

 R
es

id
en

tia
l S

to
rm

w
at

er
 F

ee
 (P

er
 3

,0
00

 sq
ua

re
 fe

et
 o

f i
m

pe
rv

io
us

 a
re

a 
ea

ch
 m

on
th

)
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  (
Cl

as
s 0

02
 a

nd
 0

03
 a

cc
ou

nt
s)

$1
4.

28
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  (
Im

pe
rv

io
us

 a
re

a 
is 

ca
lcu

la
te

d 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
cit

y'
s G

IS
 sy

st
em

 d
at

a)

    
  W

AT
ER

 R
AT

ES
 (m

on
th

ly
)

Ba
se

 M
et

er
 C

ha
rg

e
M

et
er

 S
ize

   
   

   
   

 
   

(n
o 

w
at

er
 in

clu
de

d)
   

3/
4"

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
$3

1.
21

 
 1

.0
"  

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
$4

9.
65

 
1.

5"
   

   
   

   
   

   
$7

7.
45

 
2.

0"
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

$1
38

.5
0 

EX
HI

BI
T 

A 
M

as
te

r F
ee

 S
ch

ed
ul

e 
Pa

ge
 9

14 - 11



26
0

26
1

26
2

26
3

26
4

26
5

26
6

26
7

26
8

26
9

27
0

27
1

27
2

27
3

27
4

27
5

27
6

27
7

27
8

27
9

28
0

28
1

28
2

28
3

28
4

28
5

28
6

28
7

A
B

C
3.

0"
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

$1
72

.5
3 

4.
0"

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
$2

06
.5

8 

6.
0"

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
$2

29
.5

7 
8.

0"
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

$2
86

.9
8 

Lo
w

 In
co

m
e 

Ra
te

 R
ed

uc
tio

n 
- a

dj
us

te
d 

an
nu

al
ly

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
HU

D 
Ve

ry
 Lo

w
 In

co
m

e
Lim

its
 fo

r P
or

tla
nd

-V
an

co
uv

er
-H

ill
sb

or
o,

 O
R-

W
A 

M
SA

(5
0%

) r
ed

uc
tio

n 
of

 b
as

e 
ra

te
s l

ist
ed

 
ab

ov
e

W
at

er
 R

at
e 

Un
it 

Co
st

 P
er

 H
un

dr
ed

 C
ub

ic 
Fe

et
 O

f W
at

er
 (C

CF
) 7

48
 g

al
lo

ns
Us

ag
e 

Br
ac

ke
t  

   
   

   
Ra

te
Bl

oc
k 

Ra
te

 1
1 

- 6
 U

ni
ts

   
   

   
   

   
   

  $
1.

76
/u

ni
t

Bl
oc

k 
Ra

te
 2

7 
- 1

0 
Un

its
   

   
   

   
   

   $
2.

78
/u

ni
t

Bl
oc

k 
Ra

te
 3

11
 U

ni
ts

 a
nd

 U
p 

   
   

   
$3

.7
9/

un
it

W
at

er
 ra

te
s f

or
 p

ro
pe

rt
ie

s o
ut

sid
e 

th
e 

cit
y 

lim
its

 
Ad

d 
33

%
 to

 a
bo

ve
 ra

te
s

    
 W

AT
ER

 U
TI

LIT
Y 

CH
AR

GE
S

Lo
w

 In
co

m
e 

Ra
te

 V
io

la
tio

n 
Fe

e 
As

 se
t f

or
th

 in
 O

RS
 1

64
.1

25
Di

sc
on

ne
ct

/R
ec

on
ne

ct
 C

ha
rg

e 
(if

 g
re

at
er

 th
an

 3
0 

Da
ys

 fo
r W

at
er

 &
 S

ew
er

 b
as

e 
ch

ar
ge

s)
$2

5.
00

 e
ac

h 
tim

e
M

ai
le

d 
La

te
 N

ot
ice

/S
hu

t O
ff 

No
tif

ica
tio

n
$7

.0
0

Sh
ut

 O
ff 

Do
or

 H
an

ge
r (

2n
d 

La
te

 F
ee

)
$2

5.
00

Sh
ut

 O
ff 

W
at

er
$2

5.
00

Tu
rn

 O
n 

W
at

er
 (d

ur
in

g 
bu

sin
es

s h
ou

rs
)

$2
5.

00
Tu

rn
 O

n 
W

at
er

 (a
fte

r b
us

in
es

s h
ou

rs
)

$1
75

.0
0

W
at

er
 M

et
er

 T
am

pe
rin

g 
Ch

ar
ge

$2
50

.0
0

Co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

M
an

ag
em

en
t P

la
n

$7
30

.0
0

Fl
oo

dp
la

in
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

er
m

it 
- T

yp
e 

I
$7

85
.0

0
Ha

bi
ta

t C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
Ar

ea
 -D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

er
m

it-
Pu

rs
ua

nt
 to

 S
ub

se
ct

io
n 

17
.2

5.
10

0 
of

 
GM

C
$1

,6
85

.0
0

Ha
bi

ta
t C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

Ar
ea

 - 
M

ap
 V

er
ifi

ca
tio

n
$9

50
.0

0
St

re
am

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
Ar

ea
 P

er
m

it
$9

60
.0

0
W

at
er

 Q
ua

lit
y 

Re
so

ur
ce

 A
re

a 
Di

st
ric

t -
 B

ou
nd

ar
y 

Ve
rif

ica
tio

n
$7

85
.0

0

W
AT

ER
 R

ES
OU

RC
E 

AP
PL

IC
AT

IO
NS

:

EX
HI

BI
T 

A 
M

as
te

r F
ee

 S
ch

ed
ul

e 
Pa

ge
 1

0

14 - 12



28
8

28
9

29
0

29
2

29
3

29
4

29
5

29
6

29
7

29
8

A
B

C
W

at
er

 Q
ua

lit
y 

Re
so

ur
ce

 A
re

a 
Di

st
ric

t -
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

er
m

it
$1

,6
85

.0
0

W
ill

am
et

te
 R

iv
er

 G
re

en
w

ay
 P

er
m

it
$1

,4
70

.0
0

* 
   

   
   

  E
qu

iv
al

en
t D

w
el

lin
g 

Un
it 

(E
DU

)

**
* 

   
 T

hi
s r

at
e 

sh
al

l i
nc

re
as

e 
3%

 a
nn

ua
lly

 o
n 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1s
t o

f e
ac

h 
ye

ar
 b

eg
in

ni
ng

 in
 Ja

nu
ar

y,
 2

01
7.

**
**

*T
he

se
 ra

te
s a

re
 se

t b
y 

Oa
k 

Lo
dg

e 
W

at
er

 S
er

vi
ce

 a
nd

 W
at

er
 E

nv
io

rn
m

en
t S

er
vi

ce
s (

W
ES

). 
An

y 
up

da
te

s t
o 

th
es

e 
ra

te
s w

ill
 b

e 
br

ou
gh

t f
or

w
ar

d 
fo

r C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

ap
pr

ov
al

.

**
*  

   
 S

m
al

l C
el

l W
ire

le
ss

 F
ac

ili
tie

s a
re

 d
ef

in
ed

 a
s i

nc
lu

di
ng

 a
n 

an
te

nn
a 

of
 n

o 
m

or
e 

th
an

 th
re

e 
cu

bi
c f

ee
t a

nd
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t t
ot

al
in

g 
no

 m
or

e 
th

an
 2

8 
cu

bi
c f

ee
t, 

pl
ac

ed
 o

n 
a 

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
th

at
 is

 e
ith

er
 n

o 
m

or
e 

th
an

 5
0 

fe
et

 in
 h

ei
gh

t, 
no

 m
or

e 
th

an
 1

0 
pe

rc
en

t t
al

le
r t

ha
n 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 st
ru

ct
ur

e,
 o

r n
o 

m
or

e 
th

an
 1

0 
pe

rc
en

t t
al

le
r t

ha
n 

th
e 

st
ru

ct
ur

e'
s p

re
ex

ist
in

g 
he

ig
ht

 a
fth

er
 th

e 
ne

w
 a

nt
en

na
 is

 p
la

ce
d.

 

**
   

   
   

Gr
os

s r
ev

en
ue

s 
sh

al
l h

av
e 

th
e 

m
ea

ni
ng

 a
s d

ef
in

ed
 in

 C
ha

pt
er

 1
2.

24
 T

er
m

s s
ha

ll 
ha

ve
 th

e 
m

ea
ni

ng
 se

t f
or

th
 in

 G
M

C 
Ch

ap
te

r 1
2.

24
 e

xc
ep

t 
th

at
 "S

m
al

l W
ire

le
ss

 F
ac

ili
ty

" s
ha

ll 
ha

ve
 th

e 
m

ea
ni

ng
 se

t f
or

th
 in

 4
7 

C.
F.

R.
 1

.6
00

2,
 b

ut
 sh

al
l n

ot
 in

clu
de

 fi
be

r, 
co

ax
ia

l c
ab

le
, o

r o
th

er
 w

ire
lin

e 
fa

cil
iti

es
 o

r e
qu

ip
m

en
t l

oc
at

ed
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

rig
ht

-o
f-w

ay
 o

th
er

 th
an

 e
xt

er
na

l c
ab

le
s a

nd
 w

ire
s f

or
 a

ux
ili

ar
y 

su
pp

or
t e

qu
ip

m
en

t a
pp

ro
ve

d 
pu

rs
ua

nt
 to

 
GM

C 
Ch

ap
te

r 1
7.

61
.

EX
HI

BI
T 

A 
M

as
te

r F
ee

 S
ch

ed
ul

e 
Pa

ge
 1

1

14 - 13





15



10/4/23

15 - 1



RESOLUTION NO. 1229 
CITY OF GLADSTONE, OREGON 

 
A Resolution Formalizing the Allocation of Revenue Collected for the 

Implementation of Right-of-Way Ordinance No. 1465. 
 

WHEREAS, the City approved Right-of-Way (ROW) Ordinance No. 1465 in May 2016, to provide 
uniform requirements for all utilities using City rights of way, including a ROW Use 
Fee; and, 

 
WHEREAS, in April 2019, the City Council adopted Resolution 1158, allocating revenue from 

the ROW Use Fee across all infrastructure within the City rights of way; and 
 

WHEREAS, currently, Portland General Electric (“PGE”), Comcast-Cable Services (“C-CS”) and 
NW Natural Gas Company (“NWN”) have franchise agreements with the City and 
pay a franchise fee that is not subject to the allocation in Resolution 1158; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City anticipates that PGE, C-CS and NWN may transition to the ROW Use Fee 

as their franchise agreements expire; and  
 
WHEREAS,  the City desires to retain the current allocation of ROW Use Fees and franchise fees 

if PGE, C-CS and NWN begin to pay a ROW Use Fee. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Gladstone, a 
municipal corporation of the State of Oregon, the following: 

 
The City of Gladstone establishes the following allocation of the distribution of ROW Use 
Fees from the ROW Ordinance No. 1465, other than any ROW Use fees from Portland 
General Electric, Comcast-Cable Service and NW Natural Gas Company, which shall be 
allocated to General Fund Administration: 

 
2% into General Fund Administration 

20% into each fund for Water, Sewer, and Stormwater 
38% into Street Fund 

 
This Resolution adopted by the Gladstone City Council and approved by the Mayor this 10th day 
of October, 2023. 

ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________  _______________________________ 
Michael Milch, Mayor     Hayley Kratz, Acting City Recorder 

15 - 2




